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Citizen of the Year for 1988: FLOYD T. SMITH

Resolution

WHEREAS, Floyd T. Smith served as a Member of the Town of Pembroke Planning Board from 1972 to 1987; and

WHEREAS, he served as Chairman of the Board from 1975 to 1977 and 1982 to 1985; and

WHEREAS, he served as Vice Chairman from 1986 to 1987 and as Chairman of the important Roads Committee
during the same years; and

WHEREAS, he served as a Member of the Suncook Vitalization Committee from 1983 to 1986; and

WHEREAS, he helped to revise the Towns Master Plan and negotiate the acquisition of land for the new Town
Hall; and

WHEREAS, he served as an unofficial overseer on behalf of the Town of Pembroke for the Pembroke Hill Road
Reconstruction Project and the Main Street Reconstruction Project, and has long served as advisor

on Town Road and Highway Maintenance; and

WHEREAS, he served as a Member of the Pembroke Town Zoning Advisory Committee which developed our
first Town zoning ordinance; and

WHEREAS, he served as a Representative of the Town of Pembroke to the Central New Hampshire Regional

Planning Commission; and

WHEREAS, he was an early member and now serves as a member of the development of the Plausawa Valley

Country Club; and

WHEREAS, he has been a faithful and devoted member of the Pembroke Congregational Church having served

as a Deacon, as Trustee and in several other capacities; and

WHEREAS, Floyd has devoted his life and his professional knowledge to assisting the Town of Pembroke to

deal with the impact of growth on the future well being of all its' citizens; and

WHEREAS, as a mark of the Towns regard for this exemplary list of contributions he was nominated as Pem-
broke's candidate for the Governor's Volunteer Recognition Award in 1987.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it RESOLVED that in recognition of his services and in order to signify their gratitude,

affection and respect, the citizens of the Town of Pembroke here assembled do designate,

FLOYD T. SMITH
CITIZEN OF THE YEAR FOR 1988

and commend especially to the young people of the town that they consider this record of selfless devotion as

a model for the kinds of contribution which they may emulate during their lives.

Dated in Pembroke, New Hampshire this Twelfth day of March 1988

Charles Whittemore, Moderator
John Goff, Town Clerk

Daryl Borgman, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen
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Town Officials, Boards, Committees & Commissions
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Meetings: Thursday, 7:00 p.m.

Harold Paulsen, Chairman — 1989

Chester Martel — 1990

Daryl Borgman — 1991

David Stack — Administrative Assistant

SEWER COMMISSION
Meetings: 3rd Tuesday of the month, 7:00 p.m.

Andre O. St. Germain, Chairman — 1989

Roger Martin — 1990

Michael Loso — 1991

BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS
Meetings: 2nd Saturday of the month
Maurice Lavoie, Chairman — 1989

Michael Bobblis — 1990 William Stanley — 1992

Helen Petit — 1991 Armand Nolin — 1993

Maurice Lavoie, Superintendent

Andre O. St. Germain, Office

TAX COLLECTOR
Nancy Clifford

TOWN CLERK
James Goff — 1989

ASSESSOR
Donald Dollard, Assessor

Isabelle Racine, Asst. Assessor PLANNING BOARD
Meetings: 2nd & 4th Tuesday of the month

David Harrigan, Chairman — 1990

Mark LePage, Vice-Chair — 1989

Cindy Lewis — 1989 Normand Provencher—1991
Brian Tufts — 1990 Larry Young, Sr. — 1991

Alternates:

Vacant — 1989 Thomas Dyke — 1990

Fay Donaghey — 1990 William Boudreau — 1991

George Fryer — 1991

Charles Clifford, Town Planner

BUILDING DEFT.
Lissa A. Dorfman, Building Inspector/

Code Enforcement Officer

Jack Hoadley, Fire Inspector/Life Safety Officer

BOARD OF HEALTH
Dr. Vincent Greco, Health Officer

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
Thomas Connell, Road Agent

Henry Malo, Foreman
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Meetings: by notice, 7:00 p.m.

Donna Severance, Chairwoman—1991
William Bonney—1989 Patricia Manseau—1990
Richard Kelsea—1990 Andre O. St.Germain—1991

Alternate:

Vivian Adams—1991

POLICE DEPARTMENT
Lucien L. Bouffard, Chief of Police

Lt. Wayne Cheney, Supervisor/Training Officer

Sgt. Larry Houghton, Prosecutor/Juvenile Officer

TRUSTEES OF THE TRUST
Larry Young, Sr. — 1989

Linda Smith — 1990

Dale Robinson — 1991
CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Gordon Riedesel, Chairman — 1989

Michael Payeur — 1989 Ted Natti — 1990

Mark Munroe — 1990 Thomas Beaulieu — 1990

Charles Whittemore—1990 Vacant — 1991

Alternates:

Dr. Vincent Greco — 1991 Cheryl Tufts - 1991

Susan Seidner — 1991

CIVIL DEFENSE
Larry Young, Sr., Director

SUPERVISORS OF THE CHECKLIST
Voter Registration 8:00 a.m. - 3:30 p.m. in

the Town Clerk's Office

Barbara Payne — 1990

Manson Donaghey — 1992

Roland Young, Jr. — 1994

CEMETERY COMMISSION
Arthur Fowler, Chairman — 1990

Stanley Prescott, II — 1989 Kenneth Fowler — 1990

Robert Bourque — 1989 Lorette Girard — 1991BUDGET COMMITTEE
Floyd Smith, Chairman— 1989

Manson Donaghey— 1989 Richard Therrien— 1990

Nancy Hurd-Despres— 1989 Patricia A. Fair— 1991

John Fillmore— 1990 Florence Woods— 1991

James Goff— 1990 Vacant— 1991

Daryl Borgman, Board of Selectman

Ryland Weisiger, School Board

LIBRARY TRUSTEES
Katherine Fowler—1989
Linda G. Fenn—1990

Catherine Dowling—1991
Virginia Batchelder, Librarian



OLD HOME DAY COMMITTEE
Meetings: Last Monday of the month 7:00 Pembroke Town Hall

Lorette Girard, Chairman
Executive Committee:

Ed Emond, Assistant Chair Don Hill, Treasurer

Charles Albee, Program Pat Fowler, Parade

Joyce Armstrong, Concessions Sally Breslin, Publicity

Marcel Lascelle, Youth Program
Regina Frost & Pat Crafts, Crafts & Flea Market

Priscilla Lemaire & Pauline Boisvert, Fund Development
Helen Lafond, Allenstown Representative

Betty Thompson, Pembroke Representative

Members at Large:

Myron Grueneich Gary Fowler Carol Angowski
Gary Todd Edith Murray Linda Murray

Jennifer Raiche Keith Raiche



Minutes Of The Annual Town Meeting
Town Of Pembroke, N.H.

March 8, 1988

The meeting was opened at 7:00 a.m. by Moderator Whittemore with prayer and the reading of the warrant.

ARTICLE #1 To choose all necessary town officers for the

Town Clerk for one year

Town Treasurer for one year

Selectman for three years

Selectman for two years

Water Commissioner for five years

Sewer Commissioner for three years

Moderator for two years

Supervisor of the Check List for six years

Library Trustee for three years

Trustee of Trust Funds for three years

*Denotes Elected

year ensuing.

*John B. Goff 484

*Elaine Brown 454

*Daryl L. Borgman 442

*Chester R. Martel 435

*Armand J. Nolin 447

*Michael D. Loso 438

*Charles F. Whittemore 480

*Roland H. Young, Jr. 471

*Catherine Dowling 448

*Dale Robinson 376

Janice Edmunds 59

ARTICLE #2 To see if the town is in favor of the adoption of the following amendments to the existing zoning

ordinance of the Town of Pembroke as proposed by the Planning Board:

AMENDMENT #1

Amend Section 11.00 to add a Section 11.02.1.C and add a new Section 11.23 (to create an ar-

chitectural overlay district on Route 3 - Pembroke Street)

YES: 263 NO: 197 (Amendment Passed)

AMENDMENT #2

Amend Sections 3.00, 5.00, 6.00, 7.00, and 8.00 accordingly (to create a new limited office zoning

district)

YES: 246 NO: 200 (Amendment Passed)

AMENDMENT #3

Amend Section 11.08 conditions — special exception and permitted (to redefine home occupa-

tion and create a home occupation over-lay district)

YES: 237 NO: 209 (Amendment Passed)

6



Minutes Of The Annual Town Meeting

Town Of Pembroke, N.H.
March 12, 1988

The meeting was opened at 10:00 a.m. by Moderator Whittemore with a reading of the warrant and the results

of the March 8 Town Meeting on Articles 1 and 2.

ARTICLE #3 To see if the town will vote:

(a) To raise and appropriate a sum not to exceed $300,500 for the following purposes:

$65,000 for a large truck with snow plow for the Highway Department

$65,000 for a large truck with snow plow for the Highway Department

$45,000 for a backhoe for the Highway Department

$29,000 for a tractor for the Highway Department

$16,500 for a utility truck for the Highway Department

$80,000 for a loader for the Highway Department

(b) To withdraw a sum not exceeding $75,000 from the equipment capital reserve fund for the

purpose of defraying the cost of the forgoing, and

(c) To borrow in the name of the Town by the issue of bonds or serial notes in accordance with

the provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33) and Amendments thereto, and any other

statutes thereto enabling a sum not exceeding $225,500 for the purpose of defraying the cost of

the forgoing and to authorize the Selectmen to determine the time and place of payment and
the rate of interest on such bonds and notes, provided that any interest received or available may
likewise be applied to the purchase to the maximum extent permitted by law, and

(d) To authorize the Selectmen to do all things necessary or convenient to carry the foregoing

into effect.

(This article is approved by the Budget Committee)

Moved by Daryl Borgman, seconded by Lorette Girard

YES: 107 NO: 52

ARTICLE #4

(Article Passed)

To see if the town will vote to authorize the Board of Water Commissioners to construct a new
water tank; to appropriate the sum of two hundred and seventy-five thousand dollars ($275,000)

for this purpose; and to authorize the Board of Selectment to borrow said sum of money on the

credit of the town, by the issue of bonds or serial notes in accordance with the provisions of the

Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33) and amendments thereto, and to determine the time and place

of payment, the rate of interest thereon, and to provide for the sale thereof.

(This article is approved by the Budget Committee)

Moved by Harold Paulsen, seconded by Roy Annis, Sr.

YES: 133 NO: 25 (Article Passed)

Following a discussion on each of the articles and motions to pass were seconded, the Moderator
declared the polls open at 11:05 am. The polls remained open for voting until 12:05 pm at which
time the ballots were counted and the results announced.



ARTICLE #5

ARTICLE #6

ARTICLE #7

"Shall we adopt the provisions of RSA 80:58-86 for a real estate tax lien procedure?" These statutes

provide that tax sales to private individuals for nonpayment of property taxes on real estate are

replaced with a real estate tax lien procedure under which only a municipality or county where
the property is located or the state may acquire a tax lien against land and buildings for unpaid
taxes.

Moved by Daryl Borgman, Seconded by Harold Paulsen

YES: 149 NO: 10 (Article Passed)

"Shall we adopt optional adjusted elderly exemptions from property tax?" The optional exemp-
tions, based on assessed value, for qualified taxpayers shall be as follows: For a person 65 years

of age up to 75 years, $5,000; for a person 75 years of age up to 80 years, $10,000; for a person

80 years of age or older, $20,000. To qualify, the person must have been a New Hampshire resi-

dent for at least five (5) years; own the real estate individually or jointly, or if the real estate is

owned by his spouse, they must have been married for at least five (5) years. In addition, the

taxpayer must have a net income of less than $10,000 or, if married, a combined net income of

less that $12,000; and own net assets of $30,000, excluding the value of the person's residence.

Moved by Alan Topliff, seconded by Charles Albee

An Amendment was made;

Moved by Charles Hamilton, seconded by Vincent Greco

Voice Vote; YES

To Reconsider;

Moved by Helen Fryer, Seconded by Lorette Girard

New Vote to Reconsider; YES
New Vote on Amendment; NO
Vote on original article

YES: 148 NO: 11 (Article Passed)

To see if the Town will vote to establish the land acquisition Capital Reserve Fund, as authorized

in RSA 35:1, III (a), for the purpose of acquiring conservation land or interests in land for perma-

nent conservation use, to be used as local matching funds or part of the local matching funds

required under the New Hampshire Land Conservation Investment Program (LCIP RSA 221-A),

and to appoint the Conservation Commission as agents for the Town for purposes of expending

the principals of said fund, and to raise and appropriate $38,000 to said fund, and to authorize

the Selectmen to apply for and accept State matching funds under the LCIP for the purposes

of acquisition of the fee or lesser interest in conservation land and other costs associated therewith.

Said appropriated funds and state matching funds may be expended by a majority vote of the

Conservation Commission with the approval of the Selectmen. The unexpended funds from this

appropriation shall not lapse but shall be carried forward into the Land Acquisition Capital Reserve

Fund for the purposes stated above.

(This article is approved by the Budget Committee)

Moved by Gordon Reidesel to approve, seconded by Shirley Whittemore

(Article Passed)
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ARTICLE #8 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate an amount not to exceed $16,500 for the

purpose of water and sewer extension. Any unexpended funds from this appropriation shall not

lapse but shall be carried forward into the sewer and water extension Capital Reserve Fund.

(This article is approved by the Budget Committee)

Moved by Floyd Smith to approve, Seconded by Lorette Smith

(Article Passed)

ARTICLE #9 To see if the Town will vote to create a Capital Reserve Fund for the future purchase of an Aerial

Fire Truck and to appropriate the sum of $67,000 in the current year.

(This article is not approved by the Budget Committee)

Moved by Henry Munroe to dismiss, seconded by Roy Annis, Sr.

(Article Dismissed)

ARTICLE #10 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to borrow money in anticipation of taxes.

Moved by Daryl Borgman to approve, seconded by Don Hill

(Article Passed)

ARTICLE #11 To see if the Town will vote to authorize its Selectmen to sell any real estate which the town
may have acquired by deed as a result of non-payment of taxes or acquired by deed or security

for the completion of any development, and to authorize the Selectmen to give a deed, in the

name of the Town, to the purchaser of such land.

Moved by Harold Paulsen to approve, seconded by Daryl Borgman

(Article Passed)

ARTICLE #12 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to apply for, accept, and expend without

further action by the Town Meeting, money from the state, federal, or other government unit

or a private source which becomes available during the 1988 budget year, provided that such

expenditure be made for purposes for which a Town may appropriate money and that such ex-

penditure not require the expenditure of other town funds. Further, that the Selectmen hold a

public hearing prior to accepting and spending such money.

(77ns article is approved by the Budget Committee)

Moved by Phil Kennedy to approve, seconded by Charles Hamilton

(Article Passed)

ARTICLE #13 To raise such sums of money as may be necessary to defray Town charges for the ensuing year

and make appropriations to the same.

Moved by Charles Connor to accept, seconded by Vinny Greco

9



AMENDMENT #1

Moved to increase the Fire Department Budget by $5,000. For maintenance, $2,300 for masks
to be carried in the cars of two members of the Fire Department, and $2,500 to purchase a rescue

boat. For a total increase of $9,800.

Moved by Henry Munroe, seconded by Mark Munroe
(Amendment Passed)

AMENDMENT #2

Moved to amend the Town Officers expenses to add the sum of $500. And that the Board of

Selectmen appoint a three member committee to study the feasibility of cooperative, participating

or combining with the Allenstown Fire Department in order to provide better fire protection for

the citizens of both Towns. The money appropriated for this study will be used to defray any
costs this committee may incur and this committee report to the Board of Selectmen of the Towns
of Pembroke and Allenstown by November 1, 1988.

This motion is contingent that the Town of Allenstown also passes this motion.

Moved by Chester Martel, seconded by Charles Putnam

(Amendment Passed)

(Article passed as amended)

ARTICLE #14 To hear the reports of auditors, agents and committees or of officers heretofore chosen, and to

pass any vote relating thereto.

Amendments have been prepared to correct Tax Collectors report wrongly printed in the Town
Report:

Tax Collectors Report, page 24

Uncollected Taxes — Beginning of Fiscal Year (2)

Land use change taxes Prior to 1986 -0-

Yield Taxes 1986 - 1,196.30 Prior to 1986 900.00

Sewer Rents 1986 - 27,148.71 Prior to 1986 55.60

Interest collected on Delinquent Taxes. . . (property/yield/sewer)

1986 - 21,619.09

Moved by Charles Connor to accept as amended, seconded by Floyd Smith

(Article passed as amended)

ARTICLE #15 To transact any other business that legally come before said meeting.

Moved by Ernest Petit, seconded by Vincent Greco

To print name and salary of all elected Town Officials and Town Employees in the Town Report.

Amended by Roy Annis to print name and salary of all Town Officials and print salary schedule

of all Town positions.

(Passed as amended)

Recognition was given to Floyd T. Smith as Citizen of the Year.

The Proclamation is printed elsewhere in this report.

There being no further business to come before the annual meeting the Moderator accepted a motion to adjourn.

It was seconded and the 1988 Annual Town Meeting of Pembroke, N.H. adjourned at 1:09 p.m.

John B. Goff

Town Clerk

Pembroke, N.H.
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Minutes Of The Special Town Meeting

Town Of Pembroke, N.H.

June 13, 1988

The meeting was opened at 7:00 a.m. by Moderator Whittemore with a reading of the warrant.

ARTICLE #1 To see if the town will, pursuant to RSA 31:5-b (as enacted by Chapter 224 of the laws of 1988),

vote to legalize all actions taken by the Town at the second session of its annual meeting held

on March 12, 1988, including without limitation all votes on bond issues which were taken without

the use of a separate ballot box for each bond article as required by RSA 33:8-a (II).

(2/3 ballot vote required)

Moved by Harold Paulsen to approve, seconded by Thomas Petis

Moved to amend by Harold Paulsen to take out the words (including without limitation all

votes) so Article will read:

To see if the Town will, pursuant to RSA 31:5-b (as enacted by Chapter 224 of the laws of 1988),

vote to legalize all actins taken by the Town at the second session of its annual meeting held

on March 12, 1988 on bond issues which were taken without the use of a separate ballot box for

each bond article as required by RSA 33:8-a (II).

Seconded by Chester Martel

(Amendment passed)

Following a discussion on the article and motions to pass were seconded, the Moderator declared

the polls open at 7:19 p.m. The polls remained open for voting until 8:19 p.m. at which time

the ballots were counted and the results announced.

YES: 54 NO: 16 (Article Passed)

There being no further business, the Moderator accepted a motion to adjourn. It was seconded and the Special

Town Meeting of the Town of Pembroke, N.H. adjourned at 8:45 p.m. June 13, 1988.

James F. Goff

Deputy Town Clerk

Town of Pembroke, N.H.
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Town Warrant for Pembroke, New Hampshire

TO THE INHABITANTS OF TOWN OF PEMBROKE, IN THE COUNTY OF MERRIMACK, IN SAID STATE,

QUALIFIED TO VOTE IN TOWN AFFAIRS:

You are hereby notified to meet at the High Street School, in said Pembroke on Tuesday the 14th of March,

1989 from 10:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. for the casting of ballots; and at the Pembroke Academy Auditorium in

Said Pembroke Saturday the 18th day of March, 1989, 10:00 a.m. to act upon the following articles:

Ballot Articles

1. To choose all necessary town officers for the year ensuing.

2. To see if the Town is in favor of the adoption of the following Amendments to the existing Zoning Ordinance

of the Town of Pembroke, as proposed by the Planning Board.

AMENDMENT # 1: Amend Section 9.00 - Community Facilities, 18, Crematory: To read NOT PERMIT-
TED in the R-l and R-3 Zones and by Special Exception in the LO Zone. Permitted

in the B-l Zone.

AMENDMENT # 2: Amend Section 5.00 - Agricultural, f5, Commercial Stables: To read Special Exception

in the R-3 and NOT PERMITTED in the R-l, B-l, C-l and LO Zones.

AMENDMENT # 3: Amend Section 5.00 - Retail & Services, 111, Membership Clubs: To read Special Ex-

ception in all Zones except R-l where it is NOT PERMITTED.

AMENDMENT # 4: Amend Section 5.00 - Retail & Services, f12, Professional & Business Offices and Ser-

vices: To read Permitted in B-l, C-l & LO Zones and NOT PERMITTED in the R-l and
R-3 Zones.

AMENDMENT # 5: Amend Section 5.00 - Retail & Services, f13, Automotive Repair, Auto Service Station

or Garge: To read NOT PERMITTED in the R-l, R-3 or LO Zones, Special Exception

in B-l Zone and Permitted in C-l Zone.

AMENDMENT # 6: Amend Section 5.00 - Retail & Services, 114, Miscellaneous Business Repair & Service:

To read NOT PERMITTED in R-l, R-3 or LO Zones, Special Exception in B-l Zone and
Permitted in C-l Zone.

AMENDMENT # 7: Amend Section 5.00 - Wholesale, Transportation and Industrial, 12, "Gravel Pit Opera-

tion": To read NOT PERMITTED in R-l, R-3 and LO Zones, by Special Exception in

B-l Zone and Permitted in C-l Zone.

AMENDMENT # 8: Amend Section 5.00 - Accessory Uses, 13, Accessory Professional office of a licensed

medical or dental practitioner, architect, lawyer, engineer, CPA or similar type use in

dwelling: To read by Special Exception in R-l, R-3 Zones, Permitted in B-l and LO
Zones and NOT PERMITTED in C-l Zones.

AMENDMENT # 9: Amend Section 2.00 - Definitions. Delete definition of street and substitute the follow-

ing: STREET: Relates to and includes a public street, avenue, boulevard, road, highway,

freeway and other ways.

AMENDMENT #10: Amend Section 5.00 - Retail & Service, 18, Lodging House: Delete in its entirety.
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AMENDMENT #11: Amend Section 10, Article 10.09, 12 & 3 respectively-board of adjustment.

10.09.2 - Appointment: delete RSA 31:67. Add RSA 673:5.

10.09.3 - Powers: delete RSA 31:72. Add RSA 674:33.

This amendment will update the ordinance with current NH RSA numbering.

AMENDMENT #12: Amend Section 10, Article 10.10 - Variances. Delete entire article. Substitute wording
as specified in the Board of Adjustment in NH Handbook (per RSA 674:33). The
Substitute wording defines the "powers" more clearly than the present ordinance.

AMENDMENT #13: Amend Section 10, Article 10.13 - Public Hearing, Lines 3 and 5:

Line 3 - delete RSA 675:7 and add RSA 676:5-7

Line 5 - delete RSA 677:3 and add RSA 674:33 & 676:7

This amendment will update the ordinance with current NH RSA numbering.

AMENDMENT #14: Amend Section 10, Article 10.14 - Decision. Delete entire section and substitute new
section.

Following the public hearing of an appeal, the Board shall, in accordance with RSA
676.3, within 72 hours of the decision, file a copy with the Selectmen and notify the

applicant in writing of the decision.

AMENDMENT #15: Amend Section 11.00, Article 11.05, fD - Types of Cluster Residential development:

Add after the words "areas of land" the following: . . . (sec. 6.03) and street rights

of way (sec. 11.055A)

AMENDMENT #16: Amend Section 11.00, Article 11.04.2 - Removal of Sand, Gravel, Loam, Quarry or other

raw materials, will require all excavation operators to submit monthly reports of amounts

of excavated gravel, and will provide for annual & periodic inspection of all licensed

operations at operator's expense.

AMENDMENT #17: Add a new Section 11.24 - Aquifer Conservation District. Creates an overlay district

to protect, preserve and maintain existing and potential groundwater supply and
groundwater recharge areas within known aquifers from adverse development, land

use practices, or depletion.

DELIBERATIVE SESSION

3. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of twenty-eight thousand seven hundred dollars

($28,700) to be added to the Land Acquisition Capital Reserve Fund previously established.

(This article is approved by the Budget Committee)

4. To see if the Town will vote to establish a Capital Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA 35:1 for the

acquisition of fire equipment and to raise and appropriate the sum of forty-five thousand dollars ($45,000)

to be placed in this fund.

(This article is approved by the Budget Committee)
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5. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of twenty-two thousand dollars ($22,000) to

be added to the Town Equipment Capital Reserve Fund previously established.

(This article is approved by the Budget Committee)

6. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of eight thousand five hundred dollars (S8,500)

to be added to the Sewer and Water Line Extension Capital Reserve Fund previously established.

(77ns article is approved by the Budget Committee)

7. To see if the Town will vote to change the purpose of the existing Sewer and Water Line Extension Capital

Reserve Fund to designate the Board of Selectmen as agents to expend.

(% Vote Required) (This article is approved by the Budget Committee)

8. "Shall we modify optional adjusted elderly exemptions from property tax? The optional exemptions, based

on assessed value, for qualified taxpayers shall be as follows:

for a person 65 years of age up to 75 years, $15,000;

for a person 75 years of age up to 80 years, 530,000;

for a person 80 years of age or older, $60,000.

To qualify, the person must have been a New Hampshire resident for at least 5 years; own real estate in-

dividually or jointly, or if the real estate is owned by his spouse, they must have been married for at least

5 years. In addition, the taxpayer must have a net income of less than 512,000; and own net assets of 530,000

excluding the value of the person's own residence."

(Majority Ballot Vote Required)

9. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into a written agreement with the

City of Concord for the use and contribution toward closing costs of the Concord Landfill.

10. To see if the Town will vote to accept the provisions of RSA 149-M:13 to enable the Board of Selectmen to

make by-laws governing the solid waste facility and to establish rates.

11. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Planning Board to review and approve or disapprove site plans

for the development or change or expansion of use of tracts for non-residential uses or for multifamily dwell-

ing units, which are defined as any structure containing more than two dwelling units, persuant to RSA
674:43. Further, it shall be the duty of the Town Clerk to file with the Merrimack County Registry of Deeds
a Certificate of Notice showing that the Planning Board has been so authorized and giving the date of such

authorization.

12. (By Petition) To see if the Town will vote to instruct the Town's Representatives to the General Court to

respond to our solid waste crisis by taking all necessary measures to insure that New Hampshire adopt legisla-

tion that will permit consumers to return for refund of deposit within New Hampshire all soda, beer, wine

cooler and liquor containers and that all unclaimed deposit monies shall be collected by the state and no
less than 80% shall be returned annually to local municipalities for the sole purpose of implementing, expan-

ding and reimbursing community recycling projects.

13. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to borrow money in anticipation of taxes.
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14. To see if the Town will vote to authorize its Selectmen to sell any real estate which the Town may have ac-

quired by deed as a result of non-payment of taxes or acquired by deed as security for the completion of

any development, and to authorize the Selectmen to give a deed, in the name of the Town, to the purchaser

of such land.

15. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to apply for, accept, and expend without further

action by the Town meeting, money from State, Federal, or other Governmental unit or a private source

which becomes available during the 1989 budget year, provided that such expenditure be made for purposes

for which a Town may appropriate money and that such expenditure not require the expenditure of other

Towns funds. Further, that the Selectmen hold a public hearing prior to accepting and spending such money.

16. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $3,447,637 which represents the bottom

line of the posted budget (MS-7). Said sum is inclusive of all special articles addressed.

(Majority Vote Required)

17. To hear the reports of auditors, agents and committees or of officers heretofore chosen, and to pass any vote

relating thereto.

18. To transact any other business that may legally come before said meeting.

Given under our hands and seals this 23rd day of February, 1989.

Harold Paulsen, Chairman
Chester R. Martel

Daryl L. Borgman
SELECTMEN, TOWN OF PEMBROKE, N.H.

We hereby certify that we gave notice to the inhabitants within named, to meet at the time and place and for

the purpose within mentioned, by posting up an attested copy of the within Warrant at the places of meeting
within named, and a like attested copy at the following: Pembroke Town Library, being a public place in said

Town, on the 27th day of February, 1989.

Harold Paulsen, Chairman
Chester R. Martel

Daryl L. Borgman
SELECTMEN, TOWN OF PEMBROKE, N.H.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Revenue Administration

61 South Spring Street, P.O. Box 457

Concord, NH 03302-0457

November 9, 1988

Board of Selectmen

Town of Pembroke

Your summary Inventory of Property Valuation and Statement of Appropriations have been approved. You
may proceed with the assessment of 1988 taxes on the basis of the following figures.

Net Assessed Valuation $268,081,950.

Taxes Committed to Collector:

Town Property Taxes Assessed $ 5,353,597.

Precinct Taxes Assessed 0.

Total Gross Property Taxes $ 5,353,597.

Less: Est. War Service Tax Credits 23,650.

Net Property Tax Commitment $ 5,329,947.

Tax Rate—Town $19.97

In the event any adjustment was made in the Appropriations Section, we have enclosed a copy of the changes.

Revenues and Credits have been approved as shown on the enclosed copy of the third page of the Statement

of Appropriations. In accordance with RSA 21-J:35,II, we also enclose a written explanation of the change.

The net amounts approved for school, county and precincts are indicated below. These amounts are the total

monies which should be transferred to each of these units of government.

Net School Appropriations $ 3,973,525.

County Tax Assessment $ 373,535.

Net Precinct Appropriation (1) $ 0.

In arriving at the above approved rate the Overlay has been set in the amount of $10,299.

Very Truly yours,

Barbara T. Reid

Director

Tax Rate Breakdown
Separate Tax Rates to be Printed on 1988 Tax Bills (RSA 76:ll;ll-a,13)

Town of Pembroke, New Hampshire

Unit of Government Rate

Municipal $ 4.14

County 1.37

School 14.46

Combined Rate (Municipal, County, School) $19.97
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Budget of the Town of Pembroke, New Hampshire

Actual

Appropriations
Actual

Expenditures
Selectmen's

Budget

Budget Committee

PURPOSES OF APPROPRIATION Recommended
(RSA 31:4) 1988 1988 1989 1989 Not

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (1988-89) (1988-89) (1989-90) (1989-90) Recommended
Town Officers' Salary 45,461 44,593 50,088 50,088

Town Officers' Expenses 108,932 110,660 147,040 147,040

Election & Registration Exp. 2,930 2,985 1,657 1,657

Cemeteries 15,800 11,889 18,000 15,800 2,200

General Government Buildings 34,950 37,212 41,880 39,880 2,000

Reappraisal of Property 50,000 50,000

Planning and Zoning 75,752 48,902 75,730 75,730

Legal Expenses 8,000 6,259 10,000 9,000 1,000

Advertising and Regional Assoc. 33,188 33,181 6,144 6,144

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police Department 261,000 255,200 327,410 326,960 450

Fire Department 134,817 129,595 105,950 104,650 1,300

Civil Defense 2,320 2,320 836 836

Building Inspection 33,080 30,549 34,515 34,515

Tree Cutting 1,000

Fire Hydrants Rental 23,406 21,372 22,308 22,308

HIGHWAYS, STREETS & BRIDGES
Town Maintenance 243,839 202,531 237,533 235,324 2,209

General Highway Dept. Exp. 21,258 19,403 18,146 18,146

Street Lighting 25,000 22,661 24,000 24,000

Roads/Bridge Construction 318,860 288,628 342,000 342,000

Oiling/Asphalt/Sand 23,000 20,644

Sidewalk Construction 3,000 15

Fleet Operations 29,036 31,160 31,257 31,257

SANITATION
Garbage Removal 163,746 158,049 280,300 280,300

HEALTH
Health Department 9,000 9,000 10,000 10,000

Hospitals and Ambulances 21,820 20,620 25,841 25,841

WELFARE
General Assistance 30,000 53,778 63,425 63,425

Community Action Program 8,872 8,871 10,202 10,202

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Library 20,359 20,251 25,044 25,044

Parks and Recreation 27,390 22,634 32,305 31,030 1,275

Patriotic Purposes 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750

Conservation Commission 45,100 45,100 53,175 3,175 50,000
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Actual Actual Selectmen's Budget Committee
PURPOSES OF APPROPRIATION Appropriations Expenditures Budget Recommended

(RSA 31:4) 1988 1988 1989 1989 Not
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (1988-89) (1988-89) (1989-90) (1989-90) Recommended

DEBT SERVICE
Principal of Long-Term Bonds
& Notes 370,183 370,183 308,183 308,183

Interest Expense—Long-Term
Bonds & Notes 107,171 109,382 117,806 117,806

Interest Expense—Tax
Anticipation Notes 30,000 30,000 90,000 90,000

CAPITAL OUTLAY
Water/Sewer Extension 16,500 16,500 8,500 8,500

Water Tank Construction 275,000 275,000

New Equipment 329,350 299,291 63,000 53,000 10,000

Recreation Bldg. Addition 15,055 15,055

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
Highway Equipment 22,000 22,000

Fire Equipment 45,000 45,000

Land Acquisition-Conservation 28,700

MISCELLANEOUS
Municipal Water Department 376,165 376,165 376,165 330,200

Municipal Sewer Department 185,502 185,502 185,502 198,000

FICA, Retirement & Pension

Contribution 41,100 50,710 51,135 51,135

Insurance 109,867 113,093 150,416 150,416

Unemployment Compensation 1,450 1,848 7,040 2,702 4,338

Disability/BC-BS/Life 59,500 54,421 90,838 90,838

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $3,724,454 $3,592,074 $3,527,176 $3,447,637

Less: Amount of Estimated Revenues, Exclusive of Taxes (Line 133) $1,538,090

Amount of Taxes to be Raised (Exclusive of School and County Taxes) $1,909,547

THIS BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE TOWN WARRANT
RSA 31:95 and 32:5

Buddet Committee: (Please sign in ink) Data February 17. 1989

Q/i \ i
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Estimated Actual Selectmen's Estimated
Revenues Revenues Budget Revenues

1988 1988 1989 1989

SOURCES OF REVENUE (1988-89) (1988-89) (1989-90) (1989-90)

TAXES
Yield Taxes 10,000 6,544 6,000 6,000

Interest and Penalties on Taxes 40,000 61,239 40,000 40,000

Land Use Change Tax 40,000 60,708 50,000 50,000

Payment in Lieu of Taxes-Pembroke Hydro 34,699 23,742 29,000 29,000

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES-STATE
Shared Revenue-Block Grant 218,000 71,034 63,900 63,900

Highway Block Grant 75,358 75,358 75,000 75,000

State Aid Water Pollution Projects 35,343 32,883 31,858 31,858

Gas Sale-School 15,000 15,000 12,000 12,000

State Aid-Sewer Construction Fund 26,874 26,874 26,032 26,032

Withdrawal-Sewer Capital Project 33,333 64,034 42,110 42,110

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Motor Vehicle Permit Fees 410,000 435,362 435,000 435,000
Dog Licenses 2,000 1,971 2,000 2,000

Business Licenses, Permits and Filing Fees 1,500 1,571 1,500 1,500

Building Permits 23,000 17,713 10,000 10,000

Dump Permits 3,616 6,500 6,500
Dump Coupons 16,942 25,000 25,000

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Income from Departments 20,00*0 8,046 12,775 12,775
Rent of Town Property 400 400
Tri-Town-Workers Comp. Reimbursement 2,300 2,934 3,000 3,000
Planning Board Fees 48,000 48,000 53,815 53,815
ZBA Fees 2,000 2,000 3,000 3,000

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES
Interests on Deposits 30,000 17,810 55,000 55,000
Sale of Town Property 1,000 7,297 1,000 1,000
Welfare Refunds 6,000 940 1,000 1,000
Interest-Sewer Capital Project 40,000 45,058 21,000 21,000
Vitalization Closeout 6,885

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds of Bonds and Long-Term Notes 500,500 500,500
Income from Water and Sewer Departments 561,667 561,667 561,667 528,200
Withdrawals from Capital Reserve 75,000 75,000
Cemetery Trust 3,000 2,676 3,000 3,000

TOTAL REVENUES AND CREDITS $2,254,574 $2,193,404 $1,571,557 $1,538,090
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Long Term Indebtedness

Debt Service Requirements as of December 31, 1988

Maturities

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

Sewer Bonds

1971

5.1%

$3,042,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

Water Bonds

1985

8.5%

$240,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

New Equipt. Note

1987

$236,366

118,183

Town Hall Bond

1988

6.9%

$350,000

70,000

70,000

70,000

70,000

70,000

New Equipt. Bond

1988

7.5%

$225,000

45,500

45,000

45,000

45,000

45,500

TOTAL 1,300,000 140,000 118,183 350,000 225,500

Total Annual

308,183

235,500

235,000

235,000

235,000

165,000

120,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

2,133,683
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Comparative Statement of

Appropriations and Expenditures in 1988

1987 Approp. 1988 1988

Forwarded Approp. Expended

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Town Officer's Salary 45,461.00 44,592.97

Town Officer's Expenses 108,932.00 110,660.89

Elections 2,930.00 2,984.64

Cemeteries 15,800.00 7,743.48

General Government Buildings 555.00 34,950.00 37,212.75

Reappraisal 38,082.00 50,000.00 84,386.32

Planning/Zoning 10,000.00 75,752.00 53,111.84

Legal Expense 8,000.00 6,229.67

Regional Association 33,188.00 38,180.99

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police Department 261,000.00 255,199.76

Fire Department 134,817.00 129,199.76

Civil Defense 2,320.00 2,320.00

Building Inspection 33,080.00 30,548.61

Tree Cutting 1,000.00 100.00

Fire Hydrants 23,406.00 21,372.00

HIGHWAYS/BRIDGES
Town Maintenance 243,839.00 202,531.09

General Highway Expenses 21,258.00 10,576.86

Street Lighting 25,000.00 22,660.86

Road Construction 318,860.00 262,483.52

Oiling/Sanding 23,000.00 20,664.36

Sidewalk Construction 3,000.00 14.56

Fleet Operations 29,036.00 31,159.61

SANITATION
Garbage Removal 163,746.00 158,048.71

HEALTH
Visiting Nurses 9,000.00 9,000.00

Tri-Town/Hospitals 21,820.00 20,620.00

WELFARE
General Assistance 30,000.00 57,777.58

CAP 8,872.00 8,871.00

CULTURE & RECREATION
Parks & Recreation 27,359.00 22,633.61

Patriotic Purposes 1,750 1,750

Conservation 45,100.00 39,771.40

1988 Favorable

Encumbered ( - Unfavorable)

1,500.00

4,156.00

3,706.00

26,245.00

868.03

( -3,228.89)

( -54.64)

3,900.52

( -1,707.75)

( -10.32)

32,640.16

1,700.33

7.01

5,800.24

5,222.23

2,531.39

900.00

2,034.00

41,307.91

10,681.14

2,339.14

30,231.48

2,335.64

2,985.44

(-2,123.61)

5,697.29

1,200.00

( -23,777.58)

1.00

4,725.39

5,328.60
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DEBT SERVICE
Principal - Long Term
Interest - Long Term
Interest - TAN's

CAPITAL OUTLAY
Water/Sewer Ext.

Water Tank Construction

New Equipment
Town Hall/Police Ren.

Main Street Construction

Main Street Utility Move
Main Street Lights

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
Transfer to Library

Transfer to Conservation Fund

MISCELLANEOUS
Water Department
Sewer Department

FICA/Retirement

Insurance

Unemployment
BC/BS - Disability/Life

Overlay

TOTAL

1987 Approp. 1988 1988

Forwarded Approp. Expended

370,183.00 370,183.00

107,171.00 109,288.99

30,000.00 4,925.50

16,500.00 16,500.00

275,000.00 275,000.00

165,000.00 329,350.00 464,306.28

343,788.00 330,848.00

30,303.00 30,303.00

38,777.00 46,716.38

3,587.00 3,587.00

20,359.00 20,251.21

5,328.60

1988 Favorable
Encumbered ( - Unfavorable)

376,165.00 376,165.00

185,502.00

41,100.00

109,867.00

1,450.00

59,500.00

10,000.00

185,502.00

50,710.46

113,092.59

1,847.67

55,234.31

10,000.00

12,940.00

( -2,117.99)

25,074.50

30,043.72

( -7,939.38)

107.79

( -5,328.60)

(-9,610.56)

( -3,225.59)

( -397.67)

4,256.69

630,092.00 3,374,454.00 4,153,701.94 48,447.00 162,397.06
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Treasurer's Report

January 1, 1988 -December 31, 1988

Cash on Hand, January 1, 1988 $1,440,309.50

Receipts:

Nancy Clifford, Tax Collector 5,146,684.14

James Goff, Town Clerk

Auto Permit Fees 450,217.00

Dog Licenses 2,249.00

Marriage Licenses 988.00

Filing Fees 23.00

Dump Stickers 20.00

Returned Check Fees 39.00

State of New Hampshire

Block Grant 53,233.89

Sewer Grant 59,757.08

Revenue Sharing 204,571.60

Highway Grant 22,124.28

Utility Relocation Grant 5,135.00

Selectmen's Office

Pembroke Hydro 23,742.00

Planning Board Fees 22,581.69

Building and Miscellaneous Permits 20,865.28

Dump Permits and Coupons 20,394.50

Sale of Town Property 7,295.99

Engineering Fees 5,614.00

Insurance Reimbursements 5,550.30

Blue Cross/Blue Shield Reimbursements 4,405.57

Board of Adjustment Fees 3,651.86

Welfare Reimbursements 2,115.14

Cemetery Lots 1,800.00

Grave Openings 1,200.00

Books, Maps, etc. 851.00

Recreation Fees 447.93

Trailer Park Permit Fees 395.00

Miscellaneous Receipts 22,914.73

New Hampshire Municipal Unemployment Fund 13,376.46

Police Department

Parking Fines 2,543.00

Court Fines 628.00

Pistol Permits 579.00

Kennel Fees 180.00

Insurance Reports 27.00

Miscellaneous Receipts 100.00
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Fire Department $ 641.57

Vitalization Committee 6,885.21

Trustees of Trust Funds 77,676.04

Sewer Department 109,092.92

Pembroke Water Works 8,225.58

School District

Reimbursement - Town Report 2,178.00

Reimbursement - Gas 9,188.61

Reimbursement - Dispatch 750.00

Miscellaneous 120.00

Bond Anticipation Notes 350,000.00

Tax Anticipation Notes 2,000,000.00

Interest on Investments 41,881.72

Total Receipts From All Sources $10,153,249.59

Less Expenditure 7,167,229.23

Cash on Hand, December 31, 1988 $ 2,986,020.36

The Suncook Bank $1,431,560.74

BankEast 1,554,459,62

$2,986,020.36

Elaine Brown, Treasurer
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Tax Collector's Report

Summary of Tax Accounts

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1988 (June 30, 1989)

DEBITS

Uncollected Taxes -

Beginning of Fiscal Year (1)

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

Land Use Change Tax

Yield Taxes

Sewer Rents

Taxes Committed to Collector:

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

National Bank Stock

Land Use Change Tax

Yield Taxes

Sewer Rents

Added Taxes:

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

Overpayments: (2)

a/c Property Taxes

a/c Resident Taxes

Interest Collected on Delinquent Taxes

Penalties Collected on Resident Taxes

TOTAL DEBITS

1989

Levies Of:

1988 Prior

$ 655,753.08

$5,329,685.73

93,280.00

7,094.31

195,739.75

67.75

1,194.95

350.34

-0-

7,434.00

55.60

36,638.13

259.16

1,305.22

29,650.04

-0-

$5,627,412.83 $ 731,095.23
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Tax Collector's Report

Summary of Tax Accounts
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1988 (June 30, 1989)

Remitted to Treasurer

During Fiscal Year:

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

National Bank Stock

Land Use Change Tax

Yield Taxes

Sewer Rents

Interest on Taxes

Penalties on Resident Tax

Abatements Allowed:

Property Taxes

Yield Taxes

Sewer Rents

Excess Debits

Uncollected Taxes - End of Fiscal Year:

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

National Bank Stock

Land Use Change Tax

Yield Taxes

Sewer Rents

TOTAL CREDITS:

1989

CREDITS

Levies Of:

1988 Prior

$3,948,670.08 $ 657,317.46

53,456.04 7,434.00

6,544.33

47,304.42 36,638.13

350.34 29,650.04

12,610.78

107.30

202.00

1,369,465.57

39,823.96

549.98

48,328.03

55.60

$5,627,412.83 $ 731,095.23

(1) These uncollected balances should be the same as last year's ending balances.

(2) Overpayments should be included as part of regular remittance items.
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Tax Collector's Report

Summary of Tax Sale/Tax Lien Accounts

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1988 (June 30, 1989)

Balance of Unredeemed Taxes -

Beginning Fiscal Year

Taxes Sold/Executed To Town
During Fiscal Year

Subsequent Taxes Paid

Interest Collected After

Sale/Lien Execution

Redemption Costs

TOTAL DEBITS

Remittance to Treasurer During Fiscal Year:

Redemptions

Interest & Costs After Sale

Abatements During Year

Deeded To Town During Year

Unredeemed Taxes-End of Year

Unredeemed Subsequent Taxes

Unremitted Cash

TOTAL CREDITS

DEBITS

Tax Sale/Lien on Account of Levies Of:

1987 1986 Prior

$79,070.15 $44,020.63

$199,963.68

2,710.41 14,688.33

$202,674.09 $93,758.48

CREDITS

$123,573.95

2,710.41

76,389.73

$64,763.87

14,688.33

40.65

14,265.63

11,608.83

$55,629.46

$40,347.68

11,608.83

3,672.95

$202,674.09 $93,758.48 $55,629.46
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Town of Pembroke
Virilization Project

January 1, 1988, balance forwarded

Receipts: Received from Tewksbury Account

Interest Earned

Less Disbursements

Cash on Hand, December 31, 1988

$12,973.08

955.55

397.61 $14,326.24

11,625.00

$ 2,701.24

Tewksbury Account:

January 1, 1988, balance forwarded $ 1,551.78

Receipts: Interest Earned 4.69

Less Disbursements: State of New Hampshire 600.92

Town of Pembroke Vitalization 955.55

Cash on Hand, December 31, 1988

$ 1,556.47

1,556.47

$

Elaine Brown, Treasurer
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Report of the Town Clerk

Pembroke, N.H.
1988

MONIES REMITTED TO TREASURER:

AUTO PERMIT FEES: $450,217.00

DOG LICENSES 2,249.00

MARRIAGE LICENSES 988.00

DUMP STICKERS 20.00

FILING FEES 23.00

TOTAL REMITTED $453,497.00

ISSUED IN 1988

AUTOMOBILE PERMITS 7,073

DOG LICENSES:
1987 ISSUED IN 1988 12

1988 ISSUED IN 1988 452

1988 GROUP LICENSES 8

1988 DOG FINES 20

VITAL RECORDS
BIRTH RECORDS FILED 86

MARRIAGE RECORDS FILED 88

DEATH RECORDS FILED 33

THE TOWN CLERK'S OFFICE IS N0¥- AT THE NEW
TOWN HALL AND THE NEW HOURS ARE:

MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY 8:00 a.m. - 3:30 p.m.

THURSDAY NIGHTS 5:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m.

CAN BE REACHED AT 485-4747

JOHN B. GOFF
TOWN CLERK
PEMBROKE, N.H.
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Town Employee Salary Ranges
as of 12/31/88

OFFICE
Administrative Assistant $26,187 - 31,830

Tax Collector 16,076 - 19,540

Town Clerk/Secretary 19,540 - 23,752

Assistant Assessor 15,310 - 18,610

Bookkeeper 15,310 - 18,610

Building Inspector 23,621 - 28,871

Welfare/Office Clerk 12,596 - 15,310

POLICE DEPARTMENT
Chief 24,940 - 30,314

Lieutenant 22,621 - 27,496

Sergeant 19,540 - 23,752

Patrolman 16,880 - 20,518

Secretary 14,581 - 17,724

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
Road Agent 23,621 - 28,871

Foreman 16,880 - 20,518

Equipment Operator/Laborer 14,581 - 17,724

Laborer 13,226 - 16,076

Mechanic 18,610 - 22,621
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Town Officer's Salaries — 1988

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
Harold Paulsen, Chairman $1,714.00

Chester Mattel 1,460.00

Daryl Borgman 1,460.00

TREASURER
Elaine Brown $1,798.08

TOWN CLERK
James Goff $ 160.00 (salary)

12,078.50 (fees)

MODERATOR
Charles Whittemore $296.00

Tom Petit, Assistant 252.00

HEALTH OFFICER
Dr. Vincent Greco $265.00

SEWER COMMISSION
Andre St. Germain, Chairman $925.00

Michael Loso 778.00

Roger Martin 778.00

SUPERVISORS OF THE CHECKLIST
Barbara Payne $364.00

Manson Donaghey 364.00

Roland Young 364.00
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Report of Common Trust Fund Investments

Town of Pembroke
For the Calendar Year Ended December 31, 1988

: Shares

Dr

HOW INVESTED
PRINCIPAL INCOME

No. oi Balance

Beginning

Balance

End
Balance

Beginning

Income

During

Expended
During

Balance

Description of Investment End
Other Units (Names of Banks, Stocks, Bonds, etc.) Year Year Year Year Year Year

The Suncook Bank Certificate & Passbooks

The Suncook Bank Investment Account 161,193.68 161,193.68 11,084.36 17,897.49 14,577.50 14,404.35

Stocks

ate Name of Trust Fund

PRINCIPAL INCOME
D Balance Balance Balance Income Expended Balance

of List first those trusts invested Beginning End Beginning During During End
Creation in a common trust fund Year Year Year Year Year Year

American Brands 4,392.00 4,392.00 0.00 1,098.24 1,098.24* 0.00

AT&T 2,724.00 2,724.00 0.00 240.00 240.00* 0.00

Bank America 12,033.00 12,033.00 0.00 0.00 0.00* 0.00

N.E. Electric 5,710.50 5,710.50 0.00 1,239.30 1,239.30* 0.00

Nynex 10,164.22 10,164.22 0.00 1,201,96 1,201.96* 0.00

TSB CD 5045679 126,169.96 126,169.96 4,686.48 9,835.89 8,991.32** 5,531.05

TSB Investment 40-110-9-01 0.00 0.00 1,489.62 3,899.11 1,806.68** 3,582.05

1/23/84 Leon Anderson 4350187 0.00 0.00 1,778.24 100.61 0.00 1,878.85

11 3 67
r

James Watterson Memorial Fund 4207239 0.00 0.00 673.73 143.44 0.00 817.17

6/7/79 Dennis D. Clement 4312054 0.00 0.00 71.27 4.03 0.00 75.30

6/17/81 Richard Kalgren 4330452 0.00 0.00 2,385.02 134.91 0.00 2,519.93

*transferred to Account #40-110-9-01 161,193.68 161,193.68 11,084.36 17,897.49 14,577.50 14,404.35

**scholarships awarded

How Invested

Whether bank, deposi

Name of Trust Fund Stocks, bonds, etc.

5, PRINCIPAL INCOME
Date Balance New Balance Balance Income Expended Balance Grand Total

of List first those trusts invested Purpose of (If Common Beginning Funds Withdrawals End Beginning During During End of Principal

Creation in a common trust fund Trust Fund trust—So State) Year Created Year Year Year Year Year & Income

Total of all pages Cemetary Fund 5-02780 36,270.00 36,270.00 6,625.14 3,204.91 3,204.91 6,625.14 42,895.14

Library Funds:

1913 Warren F. Foss Books 2-00438-0 1.00 1.00
" "

5-04476-3 4.666.62 4,666.62 241.68 348.39 626.07 5,292.69

1937 Building Fund Building 2-05877-4 2,362.36 2,362.36 602.09 28.60 831.65 3,194.01
" " ' 5-03579-5 200.%

Sub-Totals Library Funds 7,029.98 7,029.98 844.77 613.95 1,457.72 8.487.70

1960 Town of Pembroke Equipment 2-16391-3 46,477.% 46,477.% -0- 4,031.01 1,156.21 5,187.22 -0-
" " " ,, ,,

5-04473-0 5,833.02 5,833.02 248.55 476.19 724.74 6,557.76
" " " " " 5-04742-8 10,000.00 10,000.00 2,339.61 942.83 3,282.44 13,282.44

1960 Town of Pembroke Sewer Fund 2-16903-5 1.00 1.00
,, it " " 5-04472-2 1,999.00 1,999.00 9,174.25 874.87 10,049.12 12,048.12

1987 " " Water Sewer Ext. 50553905 16,632.00 16,500.00 33,132.00 781.% 1,362.55 2,144.51 35,276.51

1986
„ „ Town Equip. 5049739 40,000.00

1JV.V/

14,852.96 25,010.97 6,035.19 2,446.67 8,481.86 -0- 25,010.97

1986 Water Works Cap. Imprvmts 40855901 63,750.00 22,500.00 38,931.72 47,318.28 3,460.97 4,269.86 7,730.83 -0- 47318.28

GRAND TOTAL: 227,992.% 39,000.00 100,398.71 166,594.25 33,540.45 15.348.04 24,604.82 24,283.67 190.877.92

This is to certify that the information contained in this report was taken from official records and is correct to the best

of our knowledge and belief.

January 20, 1989

Larry Young, Sr.

Linda Smith

Dale Robinson

Trustees of the Trust Fund Town of Pembroke
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Mason & Rich Professional Association

Accountants & Auditors

Two Capital Plaza, Suite 3-1

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

February 19, 1989

Board of Selectmen

Town of Pembroke
Pembroke, New Hampshire 03275

We have examined the financial statements of the Town of Pembroke, New Hampshire for the year ended

December 31, 1987, and have issued our report thereon dated February 19, 1988. As part of our examination,

we made a study and evaluation of the Town's system of internal accounting control to the extent we considered

necessary to evaluate the system as required by generally accepted auditing standards. The purpose of our study

and evaluation was to determine the nature, timing and extent of auditing procedures necessary for expressing

an opinion on the Town's financial statements. Our study and evaluation was more limited than would be necessary

to express an opinion on the system of internal accounting control taken as a whole.

The establishment and maintenance of a system of internal accounting control is an important responsibility

of Town officials. The objective of internal accounting control is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance

as to the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial

records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable

assurance recognizes that the evaluation of these factors necessarily requires estimates and judgements by Town
officials.

Because of the inherent limitations in any system of internal accounting control, errors or irregularities may
nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the system to future periods is sub-

ject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the procedures may deteriorate

Our study and evaluation made for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph would not necessarily

disclose all material weaknesses in the system. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the system of inter-

nal accounting control of the Town of Pembroke taken as a whole. However, our study and evaluation disclosed

that no conditions that we believe result in more than a relatively low risk that error or irregularities in amounts
that would be material in relation to the financial statements of the Town of Pembroke may occur and not be

detected within a timely period.

These conditions were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of the audit tests to be applied

in our examination of the 1986 financial statements, and this report does not affect our report on these financial

statements dated February 19, 1988.

We wish to express our appreciation for the cooperation we received from Town officials at all levels.

We would be pleased to discuss our comments further with you should you do desire. This report is intended

solely for the use of management and should not be used for any other purpose. The provisions of RSA 71-A:21

require that this letter be published in the next annual report of the Town.

Respectfully submitted,

Jon R. Lang
Certified Public Accountant

MASON & RICH PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
Accountants and Auditors
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I. INTERNAL CONTROLS
A) Cash Receipts and Disbursements

Significant internal accounting controls -

Cash Receipts - Segregation of duties, prompt recording and depositing and bonding of employees handling cash.

Cash Disbursements - Segregation of duties, control over unused, returned and voided checks, monthly recon-

ciliation of bank accounts, authorization for payment and cancellation of invoices.

We have evaluated all of the internal accounting controls in the foregoing paragraph We found no material

weaknesses.

B) Purchasing and Receiving

Significant accounting controls: bid process procedures, use of pre-numbered orders, and segregation of duties.

We have evaluated the internal controls in the preceding sentence. No material weaknesses were found.

C) Accounts Payable

Significant internal accounting controls: control established over incoming invoices, segregation of duties,

authorized payment, review of vouchers to check that proper procedures were followed, and program charged

checked against budget.

We have evaluated the internal accounting controls in the preceding sentence. No material weaknesses were

noted.

D) Payroll

Significant internal accounting controls: Segregation of duties, written personnel policies, payroll charges to

approved budget, and wages paid at or above Federal minimum wage.

We have evaluated the internal controls identified in the preceding paragraph. No material weaknesses were

found.
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Message From The Board Of Selectmen

As part of the Annual Report, the Board of Selectmen attempt to recap the year's accomplishments. Some
of our accomplishments are as follows:

The revaluation of all properties and buildings in Town was completed in the early fall and we are currently

in the final stages of reviewing applications for abatement. We would like to thank all of the citizens that patient-

ly waited to speak with the assessors during the hearings.

The Town was renumbered and each home (and 100' of property with frontage) now has a number/street ad-

dress. We undertook this project to eliminate the confusion that the police department, fire department and am-
bulance service experienced when attempting to find a home in an emergency situation.

We instituted regulations for the Town's solid waste facility in order to operate the facility in an efficient man-
ner. The regulations have helped us eliminate non-residents from using the facility as well as charge commercial

haulers a fee in line with the burden that they place on the facility.

Finally, the new Town Hall was completed and is in use. We would like to thank the members of the building

committee, Dick Pitman, Bill Clark, Floyd Smith, George Fryer, Lissa Dorfman, and David Stack for their work
in helping us meet our occupation date of December^.

We would also like to thank all of the Town employees and the volunteers who serve on the boards, commit-

tees and commissions of the Town. Most of all, we would like to thank the citizens of the Town of Pembroke
for their support and cooperation.

Harold Paulsen

Chairman

Chester Martel

Daryl Borgman

Board of Selectmen
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Pembroke Highway Department

The year 1988 was exciting and full of accomplishment and some disappointment. We scheduled a long list

of projects with only a few failing to be completed.

The major projects involved the road system. This included the oiling and sanding of 8.1 miles of road in the

North Pembroke area. This project will continue through 1989 and 1990. In addition, major improvements were
made on Church Road, Beacon Hill Road and Plauswa Hill Road. Turn-arounds were constructed on 3rd Range
Road and Staniels Road. We were again able to grade and shape all the gravel roads within the Town twice dur-

ing the summer, as well as sweeping the winter sand from the Town streets and parking lot.

Brush cutting along the roads in North Pembroke was not as successful nor completed to the degree we would
have liked. It will however be a priority during the coming year as will the clearing of drainage ditches.

We were all excited with the new equipment and we are sure the townspeople can see the improvement in

town services.

Once we had access to the new vehicles we were able to do several things that were neglected in the past

for lack of proper equipment. For example, we were able to rebuild several catch basins badly in need of repair.

Other projects were the construction of new hangers for the new spreaders, a new roof on the shed portion

of the Highway Department garage, reshaping the dump area behind the garage, the removal of the used tires

from the dump and the installation of a dump permit system to restrict the use of the facility to the residents

of Pembroke.

Additional projects were basically those we do as a matter of routing, ie; collecting rubbish, maintenance of

the town dump, cutting the grass at the parks and cemeteries, sweeping the streets, burying the dead, plowing

the snow, sanding and salting the ice, spring and fall cleanup, etc.

We believe that 1989 will be an even better year. We have one more year of experience together, plus the best

crew of people in the history of the Town of Pembroke. A vote of thanks is due the following:

Henry Malo - Maintenance Foreman
Clifton Chadbourn - Laborer

Darrell Amell - Fleet Mechanic

Michael McGranaghan - Laborer

Ron Wyman - Laborer

Michael Baum - Driver - Laborer

Steve Berube - Laborer

Glen Altimari - Driver - Laborer

Gerald Frechette - Driver - Laborer

David Bouffard - Driver - Laborer

13 years of Service

15 years of Service

2V2 years of Service

IV2 years of Service

1V2 years of Service

1 year of Service

6 mos. of Service

6 mos. of Service

6 mos. of Service

3 mos. of Service

Respectfully,

Thomas P. Connell

Road Agent
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Building Department Annual Report - 1988

A significant decrease in major construction resulted in 1988. Single family homes and duplexes decreased 10%
from 1987, however, alterations increased 15%. Permits have been issued to Hodges Development Corp. for their

construction of condominiums on Pembroke Street (south of Littlefield) but construction will not commence un-

til Spring of 1989. Stoneybrook Development Phase VI is nearing completion and Phase VII is slated to begin

in April.

The new Town Hall kept the Building Department busy during its construction from September through

December. The building was occupied December 12 and in full operation on December 14. A few finishing touches

still need to be tended to. The Chairman of the Board of Selectmen and our Administrative Assistant, were a

great help to the Building Department during this project and their support is greatly appreciated.

Summary of Building Permits Issued

Single Family Homes 41

Duplexes 04

Multi/Condos 04 Bldgs/24 Units

Garages 15

Additions 10

Alterations 58

In-ground Pools 06

Miscellaneous 03

TOTAL 141

Alteration Permits Issued 152

On-site Inspections Conducted 324

Fire Inspections Conducted 93

Lissa Dorfman Jack Hoadley

Building Inspector Fire Inspector

Code Enforcement Officer Safety Officer
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Pembroke Police Department

The dictionary defines the word Police as regulation and control of a community, especially with reference

to matters of public order, safety, health, moral and so forth. The last part of the definition where it says "and
so forth" can be quite challenging to a Police Officer. This is when something takes place and people are not

quite sure how to handle the situation. For example, when a sick skunk crawls into the main entrance of the

school and will not move, a Police Officer is called, and without special training on how to remove skunks, removes
it.

The activities for the Pembroke Police Department have been quite interesting in 1988. We have seen the Driv-

ing While Intoxicated arrests go from 113 in 1987 to 73 in 1988. We have also seen the arrests of drug violaters

go from 39 in 1987 to 12 in 1988. We are not saying that these problems are disappearing, but by using tough
enforcement tactics, it does suggest that the word is getting out onto the streets, and those words simply say

that we will not tolerate the sales and possession of illegal drugs, or people who drive while intoxicated by alcohol

or drugs.

In 1988 we have seen new improvements in our station. In the basement part of the station, new construction

of a holding cell area has started and this will make handling of prisoners a lot easier and safer for the Officer.

Trained Officers, good police equipment and new construction, as I have mentioned, are essential if you want
good police protection. The activity log and motor vehicle log shows that your Police Department has put into

action the definition of the words police protection, but it takes more then just equipment and trained men, it

also takes the support of the community. This support by the community shows them that they are appreciated

for what they do for the town. The Pembroke Police Department wishes to thank the citizens for that support

and the equipment.

We would also like to thank Harold Paulsen and his son Eric Paulsen for their time and energy in getting set

up a new street number system for the citizens of Pembroke. This new system has made our new job in respon-

ding to emergency calls alot easier and faster. The numbers especially on Pembroke Street used to be very hard

to find because they were not in a numerical order. This was a very big problem during night hours responding

to an emergency.

We would also like to thank all of the Town Departments and volunteers who have helped us make our job

easier and safer.

Finally I would like to thank the Officers for working those Holidays and sacrificing their time with their families

and friends, so that they could protect and serve the citizens of Pembroke.

Lucien L. Bouffard,

Chief of Police

Police Department Personnel

Chief Lucien L. Bouffard, Commanding Officer

Lieutenant Wayne A. Cheney, Chief Supervisor and Training Officer

Sergeant Larry J. Houghton, Court Prosecutor and Juvenile Officer

Police Officers:

Steve Gubitosi Bruce Lawler

Scott Lane Pamela Allgeyer

Brenda Du Pont Jason Leavitt

Part-Time Patrolmen:

William Schuett David Sheldon

Robert Monmarquet

Animal Control Officer

Maurice Regan

Police Secretary

Pennie Hutchinson
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Police Department
Activity Log

Alcohol Related/Drunks

Armed Holdups/Attempts
Arrests on Warrants

Assaults (aggravated)

Assaults (felonious sexual)

Assaults (on police officers)

Assaults (simple)

Assist (other departments)

Assist (pedestrians/motorists)

Bicycles (lost or stolen)

Bicycles (recovered)

Bomb Threats

Burglar Alarms
Burglaries/Attempts

Criminal Mischief

Criminal Threatening

Criminal Trespass

Disorderly Conduct
Disobeying Police Officer

Dog Attacks/Bites

Dog Complaints/barking/etc.

Dogs Lost/Stolen

Domestic Violence/Civil Standby
Fire Alarms Response/Assist

Forgeries/Bad Checks
Negligent Homicide

64 Harassment (phone calls) 38

1 Hindering Apprehension

47 Juvenile Complaints 120

4 Juveniles (Missing/Runaways) 35

3 Obscene Acts 1

4 Littering 1

17 Loud Noises/Parties/Fights 178

310 Possession of Alcohol 4

121 Possession of a Controlled Drug 12

3 Protective Custody/Lock ups 22

8 Resisting Arrest 9

5 Resisting Detention 2

118 Receiving Stolen Property 1

41 Recovered "O.H.R.V.'s" 2

126 Search Warrants/Drugs/Stolen Property 3

8 Suicides (attempts) 18

23 Stolen "O.H.R.V.'s" 6

18 Suspicious Persons/Prowlers/Motor Vehicles 185

3 Theft/Larceny/Attempts 95

10 Tri-Town Ambulance (response/assist) 146

142 Unsecured Buildings/Open Doors 100

6 Unwanted Persons 41

155 Dispatch Calls Received 9,412

54 Recovered Stolen Property 5

5

1

Cruelity to Animals 2

Motor Vehicle Log

Accidents (with M.V.)
Accidents (leaving scene/hit and run)

Allowing Improper Person to Operate
Defective Equipment
Disorderly Conduct (with M.V.)
Driving While Intoxicated (DWI)
Driving After Revocation

Failure to Change Address
Failure to Keep Right

Failure to Yield Right-of-Way

Following Too Closely

Improper Backing

Lost or Stolen Plates

Misuse of Plates

Operating without a License

Operating w/o Eye Protection (glasses)

Disable Vehicle/Abandon
Unauthorized use of M.V.

186 Passing School Bus with Flashing Lights 3

15 Reckless Operation 10

2 Recovered Motor Vehicles 11

96 Stop Sign Violation 27

17 Stolen Motor Vehicles 8

73 Stopping Prohibited 16

38 Transporting/Alcohol/Drugs 3

3 Uninspected Motor Vehicles 62

2 Unregistered Motor Vehicles 31

4 U-Turns Prohibited 4

7 Vehicle Lock Out (Assist) 93

1 Vehicle Stops/Warnings 1,350

4 Vehicles Towed 57

4 Yellow Line Violation 17

13 Unreasonable Speed 702

10 Unattended Vehicles 8

88 Improper Passing 8

1
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Pembroke Fire Department

As of this report your Fire Department has a new Chief, Richard Chase, who follows in the footsteps of his

father, former Chief Jacob A. Chase.

When I was appointed Chief, I said I would serve in a caretaker capacity. During this time the department

has purchased a new engine that meets the regulated safety edict, that all firefighters will ride in an enclosed

cab. Fully approved protective clothing has been issued to all members. New members are required to be State

Certified, and most of our officers have attended the prestigious National Fire Academy. As the add proclaims

"we have come a long way". We have, however, an even longer way to go as new regulations promulgated

by Federal, State, and professional organizations, may well end the volunteer fire service as we know it.

When I entered the Pembroke Fire Department in 1952, the fire service embarked on a period of exciting and
radical change emanating from the second world war. Radios, self-contained air masks, tank trucks, protective

clothing, and training schools hitherto unknown became standard

Pembroke was then a quiet town whose main source of employment was the mills. The fire department answering

some 100 calls annually and most of the fires consumed natural products. The town employed 3V2 persons - a

road agent and his assistant, a superintendent of water services, and a part time bookkeeper. Today, the town
employs some 20 people. The cause, a population explosion that has seen our fields sprout condominiums, com-
mercial enterprise, and housing developments. Pembroke Street, once a pleasure to drive down is one of the

busiest streets in New Hampshire.

In 1952 we had time to belong to a volunteer department while enjoying family and recreation. The economic

conditions were such that a single wage earner could provide for the needs of his dependents. Today, most wives

are working and time to spend with family is limited, yet your fire department makes more demands than in

the 50' s. Training, maintenance, fires, medical calls, mandate several evenings each week be spent after work
at the station. Add time and effort to meet an ever increasing number of regulations such as Hazardous Materials,

The Right to Know, and Occupational Safety Acts and you can see why the volunteer fire department has dif-

ficulty in recruiting and retaining members. Most of our neighboring towns, having been unable to maintain

sufficient volunteers to provide adequate protection, now employ several full time firefighters. The cost is high.

In communities where there are no volunteers the cost of fire protection is second only to schools. Pembroke
needs to take action soon if it wants to maintain its volunteer fire department.

In other States, towns with recruiting problems have offered volunteers such incentives as reduction in real

estate taxes, small retirement programs, and educational opportunities. At the National level Congress fearful

of the decline of the volunteer emergency services, is considering an income tax rebate. I hope Pembroke will

address this problem before it is too late.

I have enjoyed and am proud of my years with the Pembroke Fire Department. I wish Chief Chase and the

"boys" only the best and God's safe keeping as they labor now in yours and my behalf.

Henry W. Munroe
Fire Chief (Retired)
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Pembroke Planning Board

In 1988, the Planning Board reviewed and approved twenty-three applications for subdivision or residential

site plan approval, authorizing thirty new residential lots and eighteen commercial lots. Seven applications for

non-residential site plan review were approved, authorizing five new business locations.

Currently pending before the Board are several applications requesting approval for an additional fifty-eight

lots and ninety-seven cluster units.

Due to the hard work of the Conservation Commission and in cooperation with the Central New Hampshire
Regional Planning Commission, the Board adopted a Water Resources Management and Protection Plan for the

town. The Office of State Planning has certified that the Plan meets their regulations. It addresses surface water

(rivers and streams) and groundwater (the source for the town's water supply and private wells). Ordinances

implementing the Plan will be proposed in 1989.

Both the Board and the Conservation Commission will be making the protection of wetlands a priority in the

coming year. Contaminated wetlands lead quickly to contaminated surface and groundwater. Wetlands serve

as vital habitat for, and produce nutrients needed by, many plants and animals.

Development in the commercial zone along Route 106 has proceeded with special attention to its possible ef-

fects on the nearby wells that serve as the town's major water source. Special engineering studies will be sought

in 1989 to improve our ability to protect that source.

In November, the voters accepted the recommendations of the Board concerning amendments to the Zoning

Ordinance. The revision of the cluster housing provisions will make it easier to preserve open space in Pembroke.

Thanks to everyone who returned the questionnaire from the Board last Fall. The detailed results are available

at Town Hall. In general, those responding indicated that they did not favor expanding the commercial zone

(65%) with 33% favoring expanding the zone. Of those favoring the expansion, 31% favored expansion in the

Route 106 area and 29% in the Route 28 area. With respect to open space preservation, 96% were in favor of

such preservation with 38% indicating that the developers should bear the cost and 53% felt that both the town
and the developers need to pay the cost for open space lands. Also of note was the fact that 78% of the respondents

indicated that they would use recycling if it were available in the town.

The Board recently revised the Capital Improvements Plan for the town, providing a description and a sug-

gested schedule for those anticipated expenses.

Like Pembroke's other boards and commissions, the Planning Board consists of volunteer citizens who sacrifice

their personal time to help govern our town. We are very grateful for their dedication. Our Roads Committee

and the Capital Improvements Committee deserve special mention for the many extra hours they have contributed

in 1988.
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In December, our Chairperson, Patricia Fair, resigned to devote more energy to her new position as one of

our representatives to the Legislature. We will miss her strong leadership and good humor, which have seen

us through some difficult times in these recent years of increased growth.

With the expert assistance of Town Planner Chuck Clifford and Town Engineer Greg Miller, as well as the

entire Town Hall staff, we look forward to another year of challenges and successes in 1989.

Respectfully submitted,

David Harrigan, Chair

Mark LePage, Vice-Chair

Cindy Lewis

Brian Tufts

Normand Provencher

Larry Young
Fay Donaghey
George Fryer

William Boudreau

Thomas Dyke
Chester Martel, Selectman
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Pembroke Town Library

The Pembroke Town Library staff and trustees invite you to visit the library. We offer a selection of over 40

periodicals including Smithsonian, Life, Newsweek, Time, New England Monthly, Popular Science and more.

The Library is the perfect spot to read the daily newspapers, we offer the Concord Monitor and the Union Leader.

During 1988 the current edition of Lovejoy's College Guide and the 1988 World Book Encyclopedia were ac-

quired for our reference section along with other important additions.

We offer a varied selection of current best sellers as well as your old favorites. Our childrens' section has offer-

ings for every age group.

Building improvements for 1988 included a spotlight to enhance the library facade.

We welcome town residents as borrowers of the Library. Your suggestions for improvements in the library

collection or services would be appreciated.

Pembroke Town Library Hours

Monday 1:00- 8:30

Tuesday 10:00 - 5:00

Wednesday 1:00- 5:00

Thursday 1:00- 5:00

Friday 1:00- 8:30

Saturday 10:00 - 12:00

Linda G. Fenn
Katherine Fowler

Catherine Dowling
Library Trustees
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Central New Hampshire Regional Planning Commission
329 Daniel Webster Highway

Boscawen, New Hampshire 03303

(603) 796-2129

The Central New Hampshire Regional Planning Commission (CNHRPC) is an association of municipalities in

central New Hampshire. Seventeen towns and the City of Concord are within Merrimack County and two towns
are within Hillsborough County. Thirteen towns, the City of Concord, and Merrimack County are members in

fiscal year 1989. The Town of Pembroke is a member of the Commission.'

The CNHRPC is organized under RSA 36:45-53, which states that the purpose of the Commission is to prepare

a coordinated plan for the development of the region. The statute also enables us to assist communities with

local planning activities.

Three planners and one support person are currently employed by the CNHRPC. The staff prepares regional

plans and provides professional planning assistance to member communities.

In 1988 the Commission adopted the regional Housing and Community Development Plan, the regional Septage

Management Plan, the Initial Transportation Report, the Regional Profile, the Transportation Facilities and Information

Report, and the Guide to Municipal Plans and Regulations. The Guide contains models and outlines for master

plans, capital improvements plans, zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, and site plan regulations. We
had contracts to help six towns with master plans or land use regulations and helped communities write grant

applications.

Local water resource management and protection plans were a new activity in 1988. We completed and receiv-

ed Office of State Planning consistency approval on two plans, prepared a complete draft of a third, and started

work on two more.

During 1988 CNHRPC activities in Pembroke included:

• The preparation and successful NH Office of State Planning consistency review of the Pembroke Water Resource

Management and Protection Plan.

• Providing information and sample regulatory language on park dedication requirements for proposed

subdivisions.

• Providing census and NH OSP population information and estimates.

• Providing information on recycling programs to the recycling committee.
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Pembroke Conservation Commission

Conservation efforts in Pembroke have been widespread and significant this past year. As a lively and active

Commission we have been involved with many projects and programs that impact our environment and natural

resources. We believe the protection of he spotted turtle and its habitat is both a real and a symbolic victory

for the Town. Press coverage of the spotted turtle through the year made many of us aware of at least one very
special aspect of Pembroke's natural resources. There are many other resources we are dedicated to protect and
preserve.

One of the greatest gains came through the acqusition of lands for conservation purposes by either purchase
or by conservation easements. Pembroke has received approval for funding of a 27 acre parcel of land from the

Trust for New Hampshire Lands' program known as the Land Conservation Investment Program (LCIP). With
funds allocated by Town Meeting last year the Conservation Commission has been able to purchase the Bragfield

Pond Property which is located between Beacon Road and Brickett Hill Road just off the 3rd Range or T-Bridge

Road. With this purchase, Pembroke joins a handfull of New Hampshire towns that have been able to protect

locally significant lands with the financial assistance of the LCIP. The pond and adjoining land is home to many
species of wildlife and provides excellent habitat for both permanent and transient species. The Town also ac-

quired a conservation easement on a high and hilly ten acre parcel on Cross Country Road. The generosity of

the land owner, Charlotte Scripture, has enhanced the future of Pembroke's natural lands. The owners of the

wetland and marsh on Church Road adjacent to the Church Meadows subdivision have granted the town a con-

servation easement on the area where the rare spotted turtle is known to live. The protection and preservation

of such habitat is an unusual occurence during these days of high pressure to develop even marginally buildable

lands. All told, over 40 acres of land have been added to the conservation lands of Pembroke in 1988.

Development in Town required that 12 Dredge and Fill Permits be filed with the NH Wetlands Board. The
Conservation Commission intervened and walked the sites for 10 which required our inspection. In cases where
permits were granted most were given with certain conditions. In another water related issue the Commission
was the town's primary agency in developing, with the Central New Hampshire Regional Planning Commis-
sion, a Water Resources Protection Plan. Pembroke's plan was submitted to the Office of State Planning for review

and approved for consistency with statewide guidelines. This document will help the Town protect its surface

and groundwater resources. On this plan and on other issues the Conservation Commission has worked with
the Town's Planning Board in order to better coordinate planning and conservation activities.

Members have attended conferences on rare plants, gravel pits and their impact on the environment, and for

the New Hampshire Association of Conservation Commissions. We have spent time working on the Town Forest

and are making plans for utilizing it and our newly acquired Bragfield Pond parcel. Those of you who participated,

or tried to participate, in the 3rd Annual Household Hazardous Materials Clean Up Day found that it has grown
and that the need for such clean up days is great. Our coordinator this year, Susan Seidner, did an excellent

job in both planning and participating in this important project.

For 1989 we plan to continue with our activities and encourage anyone to get involved with conservation. Con-
tact the town offices if you would like to participate. With environmental issues once again making front page
news we urge everyone to "Think Globally, Act Locally."

Respectfully submitted,

Gordon Riedesel, Chair

Tom Beaulieu

Susan Seidner

Mike Payeur
Cheryl Tufts

Mark Munroe
Vincent Greco
Ted Natti

Charles Whittemore
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Pembroke Recreation Commission

Each year the Pembroke Recreation Commission supports: soccer league for children (grades kindergarten -6),

kiddie basketball (grades 4-6), Little League baseball and softball, summer recreation softball, summer recreation

program, summer swimming and Old-Home Day activities.

Youth soccer is off and running. Under the direction of Dick Giroux, a program for children in kindergarten

through grade two was very successful. Two teams in grades 3-4 and one team in grades 5-6 were entered

in the Merrimack Valley Youth Soccer League. Alan Williams directed those teams. The commission would like

to thank both Dick and Alan for their time and effort.

Last year a soccer goal post was placed on the utility field at Memorial Field. The backstop was replaced at

the major Little League field. New fencing was installed at the horseshoe pits, the right field line of the softball

field, and general repairs to the Little League fence at the Point. Picnic tables, redwood benches and trash recep-

tacles were placed around the park. Player benches were installed on the utility field. Much-needed bike racks

and posts were installed along with two new children's toys for the playground area. Water fountains were plac-

ed at the playground area and the major softball field. Signs were replaced at the entrance of the park. Tractor

tires, a reel mower and a fertilizer spreader were purchased to greatly enhance the general upkeep of the fields.

Carolyn Tucker and Donna Ong directed our summer recreation program. Children participated in sports and
activities, arts and crafts, and weekly field trips. At times, more than 70 children were involved. Plans for next

year include the possibility of renting another bus to accommodate the increase of children for field trips. The
program was well organized and we look forward to another exciting summer.
Helen Fryer organized our summer swimming program. Classes were offered in Beginner A, Beginner B, Ad-

vanced Beginner, Intermediate, and Swimmer. More than 100 children participated in these classes. Mrs. Fryer

continues to do an outstanding job coordinating the program.

Our intent next year is to: upgrade and build an addition to the bathrooms; build a storage area that would

be added on to the softball building to house equipment; install a fence around the playground area; construct

a beach volleyball area to the south of the recreation building; repair horseshoe pits; assist the Lions' Club in

the construction of a pavillion and picnic area; purchase an additional set of portable bleachers to be used for

soccer, softball, and Old-Home Day activities; purchase and plant shade trees; upgrade the area between the

Little League building and the recreation building; assess the possibility of upgrading the boat launch area; replace

the large sign at the entrance of the park and repair fence at the entrance of the park.

The increased use of the physical fitness course and the horseshoe pits has encouraged the commission to look

into other activities that would provide more recreational activities for both individuals and teams.

The commission would like to thank the Highway Department for its help and assistance last summer, Johnson's

Flower Shop for its annual planting of flowers around the monument and Maurice Lafond who donated wood
chips that were placed around the park.

Respectfully submitted,

Rose Galligan, Chairperson

Dave Seavy, Secretary

Greg Goff, Treasurer

Claude Bouchard

Roland Young, Jr.
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Old Home Day
Pembroke and Allenstown

Theme: A New Beginning

Our seventh anniversary of Old Home Day and our first effort at a joint celebration proved to be very successful.

We welcomed nine active members from Allenstown and several new members from Pembroke. I would like

to take this opportunity to thank a wonderful group of hard working people for providing both communities

with a fun filled day.

Thanks are also extended to both towns' municipal departments: selectmen, police, fire, highway and recrea-

tion. Rose Galligan and her staff did an excellent job at preparing Memorial Field for the day's event.

Through the generosity and support of many, we have met our financial needs. Thus enabling us to begin

a new tradition we hope to be able to continue each year. The donation of half of our yearly profits to a worthy

town cause. This year's profits will go to the Lions Club project - a new permanent pavillion at Memorial Field.

Plans are already underway for our eighth celebration which will be held August 26, 1989. Join us, we have

as much fun planning as you have attending the day's events. Photo albums of the entire day's celebrations

may be found in both town libraries.

Thank you for your continued support. The following poem sums up the day beautifully.

The day started with a drizzle,

but our hopes didn't fizzle.

With many people participating,

the parade was given a top rating.

By noon, the sun was shining,

and vendors were busy with everyone dining

The events were for all to enjoy,

great fun for every girl and boy.

A day to renew old acquaintances,

to buy some chances and dance a few dances.

About 20 minutes people waited,

. . . then, the cow cooperated.

The fireworks that lit the sky at nine,

put an end to a day that was just fine.

We thank you for your participation,

contribution and handmade donation.

Author: Priscilla Lemaire

Lorette Girard, Chairman
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Old Home Day - 1988

Pembroke & Allenstown

CASH REPORT

Cash on hand January 1, 1988 $2,155.36

Revenues received during the year:

Business Donations $5,900.00

Town of Pembroke 1,000.00

Town of Allenstown 1,000.00

Old Home Day Raffle 1,634.00

Concessions and Vendors 1,285.91

Craft Fees 440.00

Committee Booths, Hayride 523.75

Old Home Day Buttons 648.00

BVENUES $12,431.66

nditures

Fireworks $3,200.00

Parade-Bands, etc. 2,074.20

Stage Entertainment 1,825.00

Security-Police 443.72

Advertising, Banners 679.80

Sanitation-Rentals 300.00

Tent-Rentals 300.00

Misc. -Postage, Supplies, Pictures 420.22

Old Home Day Buttons 300.11

<PENDITURES $9,543.05

PROFIT for 1988 $2,888.61

Less Lions Club Donation 1,444.30 1,444.30

Cash on Hand December 31, 1988 $3,599.66
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Tri-Town Volunteer Emergency Ambulance Service, Inc.

Tri-Town Volunteer Emergency Ambulance Service, Inc. will soon start its 18th year of service to our com-
munities and we would like to take this opportunity to express our appreciation for the support you have shown
us through these years.

1988 was the busiest year on record for Tri-Town. As of December 1st, we have responded to 954 calls and
expect to respond to more than 1,000 calls by the end of the year, a major increase of emergency transports over

previous years. Nearly one-third of these calls were in the Pembroke area. From January through November
of 1988, Tri-Town responded to 291 calls in the Town of Pembroke - 86 by day personnel and 205 by volunteers.

A breakdown of calls and other facts are shown on the following page.

The spring of 1988 found Tri-Town acquiring its third ambulance (502). On numerous occasions since its ac-

quisition, all three ambulances have been in the field at the same time. Use of the three units to date (11 months
of 1988):

Unit 500: 435 calls

Unit 501: 201 calls

Unit 502: 286 calls

Tri-Town's ambulances continue to be equipped with the very best medical supplies and equipment available.

At this time we are also hopeful that we can acquire a defibrilator unit in the near future. We are fortunate to

have several I V trained attendants riding with our Service. We continue to attract highly qualified and dedicated

volunteers and personnel. Presently we have 14 licensed ambulance attendants covering approximately 100 square

miles and serving a population of over 20,000 residents.

We continuously strive to improve and better our service to the citizens of the Tri-Town area. In the process,

we have advanced from a BLS (Basic Life Support) service to an ALS (Advanced Life Support) service staffed

day crew and volunteers who are continuously upgrading their levels of training.

Although we have staffed coverage during weekdays, having only 14 volunteer attendants covering this large

area is stretching our resources to their limits. In fact, some of our volunteers are residents from surrounding

communities who contribute their time for our area. More volunteers are needed.

To date we have missed approximately 30 calls on Saturdays and Sundays where we have not been able to

have attendants available. Soon the possibility of paid attendants for weekends and the hours between 4 - 7 p.m.

each weekday may become necessary. This option has been discussed and we will seek the counsel and support

of residents in the Tri-Town area as to whether these hours should be covered by part-time paid personnel, in

addition to the regular staff (7 a.m. to 4 p.m.) we now have. In order to do this, the three communities should
decide if it is feasible to fund such a project.

Tri-Town's 1989 budget is over $100,000. Our request this year is for $7,500 for operating expenses and $18,341

for personnel costs. We respectfully request $25,841 from each of the Towns for 1989 funding.

Tri-Town not only needs the funds to operate our emergency medical service, but as mentioned above, volunteers

to respond to these emergencies. Please consider contacting the Membership Committee and finding out more
about how you can make an important contribution to your community by serving with Tri-Town Volunteer

Emergency Ambulance Service:

Membership Committee
Tri-Town Ambulance
P.O. Box 149

Suncook, N.H. 03275

The 1988 Fund Drive brought in approximately $18,000. We wish to thank those donating to the drive. As you
know, we are a volunteer organization which provides free emergency ambulance service to the residents of

Allenstown, Hooksett and Pembroke, and the contributions from residents and businesses in the Tri-Town area

are truly appreciated.

The support of these people contributes to our ability to provide the high standard of care Tri-Town Volunteer

Emergency Ambulance Service is proud to offer the residents of our communities.

Thank you for your continued support.

Tri-Town Volunteer Emergency Ambulance Service, Inc.
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Tri-Town Volunteer Emergency Ambulance Service, Inc.

January through November 1988

Average Response Times

Crew Hooksett Allenstown Pembroke

Day 08.73 04.86 04.35

Vol. 13.52 09.13 08.56

Avg. 11.13 06.99 06.46

Time

Day

4-Mid

Mid-7

W'End

TOTAL

Hooksett

147

85

43

128

403

Response by Town

Allenstown Pembroke Total

82 86 315

71 80 236

27 29 99

80 96 304

260 291 954

Mutual Aid Calls:

Epsom:

Manchester:

Boscawen:

Other:

I Cancelled: 80

L Non-Trans: 150

I Private: 36

Fire Stand-By: 11

Other: 10

Response by Unit

500: 435

501: 201

502: 286
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1988 Summary of Services Provided

to Pembroke Residents by the Suncook Area Center

Belknap-Merrimack Community Action Program

SERVICES UNITS OF SERVICE
# OF HOUSEHOLDS/

PERSONS VALUE

CONGREGATE MEALS - All senior citizens are

welcome to our congregate meal site for nutritious

hot meals, social/recreational activities, and field trips.

Value - $4.42 per meal.

MEALS-ON-WHEELS - Provides the delivery of

nutritionally-balanced hot meals to homebound elder-

ly or adult residents five days per week. Value - $4,91

per meal.

SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM - Provides

friendly visiting and respite services for homebound
elderly. Income eligible seniors (60 +) serve as com-
panions. Value to companions include mileage,

weekly stipend ($3.80 per unit). Value to visitees is

compared to similar private services ($4.50 per

unit/hour).

FUEL ASSISTANCE - Income-eligible households,

particularly the elderly, are assisted with energy costs

during the heating season. The average assistance per

household is $452.24.

WEATHERTZATION - Improves the energy efficiency

of income eligible households. Supplemental Pro-

gram also includes furnace replacement, water heater

replacement and roof repair. Value includes materials

and labor costs. $1,070.11 average support

costs.

RURAL HOME REHABILITATION PROGRAM -

Offers ncome eligible clients home repairs such as

foundation replacement, septic systems, wells or

roofing. Also includes general weatherization

measures. These services are provided when major

home repairs are necessary, which are not covered

by the Weatherization Program.

PERSONAL EMERGENCY RESPONSE SYSTEM -

Provides automated emergency response equipment

to income eligible elderly, disabled and medically at-

risk individuals who are physically or socially

isolated. Value based on cost for similar private ser-

vice. $25.00 per month.

2,081 Meals 27 Persons

8,444 Meals 41 Persons

1 Unit 1 Household

$ 9,198.02

41,460.04

1,033 Volunteer

Hours
1 Person 3,925.40

(volunteer)

515 Visitee

Hours

2 Persons 2,317.50

(visitees)

240 Applications 240 Households 108,539.10

2 Homes 2 Homes 1,809.98

(materials)

$2,140.22

(support costs)

3 Homes 3 Homes $8,704.60

300.00
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SERVICES
# OF HOUSEHOLDS/

UNITS OF SERVICE PERSONS VALUE

CAMP SEBAGO - A camping experience and

transportation in cooperation with Salvation Army.
Value approximately $250. each child.

WOMEN, INFANTS AND CHILDREN - Provides

specific foods to supplement daily diet of pregnant

or nursing women as well as children under 5. Par-

ticipants receive medical/nutritional screening,

counseling and education. Value includes monetary

value of vouchers and clinical services. $31.75 per

unit.

10 Children

910 Voucher

Packets

10 Persons

80 Persons

$ 2,500.00

28,892.25

HEAD START - This child development program

serves children before they enter public school. Pro-

vides classroom and in-home learning services for

both children and their families. Value - $3,297.00 per

child, per year.

RURAL TRANSPORTATION - Provides regularly

scheduled transportation to and from towns in

Belknap and Merrimack Counties to medical and pro-

fessional facilities, shopping centers and congregate

meal sites. Value - $2.50 per ride.

USDA COMMODITY FOODS - Distribution of

Federal Surplus Foods to income eligible people

through scheduled mass distributions.

Value of Cheese - $6.33/5 lb. block

Value of Butter - $1.42/1 lb. block

Value of Dry Milk - $3.68/4 lb. box

Value of Rice - $.42/2 lb. bag

Value of Corn Meal - $.68/5 lb. bag

Value of Flour - $.60/5 lb. bag

Rounds I, II, HI

7 Children 7 Households 23,079.00

482 Rides

1,139 Blocks of

Cheese

861 Blocks of

Butter

206 Boxes of

Dry Milk

622 Bags of Rice

174 Bags Corn Meal

172 Bags of Flour

67 Persons

230 Households

Persons

230 Households

206 Households

230 Households

174 Households

172 Households

1,675.00

7,209.87

(Cheese)

1,222.62

(Butter)

758.08

(Dry Milk)

261.24 (Rice)

118.32 (CM.)
103.20 (Flour)

EMERGENCY FOOD PANTRIES - Provides up to

three days of food for people facing temporary food

crisis. Value - $2.50 per meal.

CLOTHING ASSISTANCE - Provides locally do-

nated clothing to families in need. Value - $25.00 per

family.

283 Meals

344 Families

76 Persons

344 Households

707.50

8,600.00
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SERVICES
# OF HOUSEHOLDS/

UNITS OF SERVICE PERSONS VALUE

INFORMATION AND REFERRAL - CAP provides

utility, landlord/tenant, legal and health counseling,

as well as referrals for housing, transportation and

other concerns to anyone in need. Value of service

varies from client to client.

3,764 Units Not tracked

CHRISTMAS BASKETS - A Christmas dinner and

a few toys. Value $35.00 each basket.

SUMMER RECREATION PROGRAM - A six-week

summer recreation program. Value approx. $100.

each child.

107 Families

11 Children

107 Households

11 Persons

$ 3,745.00

1,100.00

TOTAL: $258,366.94
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AN OLD FRIEND

Fire destroyed the

original Town Hall on

August 27, 1965.

Below: Construction

begins on new Town

Hall, Sept. 6, 1988.
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Foundation for New Town Hall
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Concrete slab work

Exterior framing for first & second floor Interior framing of first floor
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PEMBROKE TOWN HALL

Gable end in place Raising the cupola

The finished product. Built on the site of the original Town Hall, the new
building strongly resembles the old. Welcome back!
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Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association

The Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association continues to offer three major health services to the residents

of Pembroke: Home Care, Hospice, and Health Promotion.

Home Care Services respond to the health care needs of those patients with acute or chronic illnesses that

require skilled professional and paraprofessional care so they may return to or remain in their homes. Emphasis

is on promoting independence and maximum functioning of the patient within the least restrictive setting.

Hospice Services provide professional and paraprofessional services to the terminally ill patient with a limited

life expectancy. The goal is to enhance the quality of the patient's remaining life by helping he/she remain at

home in comfort and dignity. Emphasis is on pain and symptom management and skilled intervention to meet
the patient's special physical and emotional needs.

Health Promotion Services focus on the low and marginal income families and individuals to prevent illness

by professional assessment and screening for health risks and needs, by early intervention to prevent, eliminate,

or minimize the impact of illness and/or disability, and by anticipatory guidance and health teaching. Services

rendered in the clinic setting are: child health, family planning, sexually transmitted disease, adult screening,

immunizations, and HrV testing and counseling. Home visits are made in crisis situations or when needed health

care cannot be given in the clinic. Senior Health services are provided at congregate housing sites. Professional

and paraprofessional hourly home services are provided on a private fee-for-service basis. Emphasis is on pro-

moting healthy children, families, and individuals through early intervention and health teaching.

Health Education and Instruction is part of each home visit or clinic visit.

Anyone in Pembroke may request service; patient, doctor, health facility, pastor, friend or neighbor. All re-

quests are answered, but continuing home care will only be provided with a physician's order.

A call to the Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association (224-4093) between the hours of 8:00 a.m. - 4:00

p.m. seven days a week is all that is necessary to start services or make inquiries. A Hospice nurse is on call

(224-4093) 4:00 p.m. - 8:00 a.m. daily.

Federal regulations specify a charge is applicable to all visits. Fees are scaled for that person without a health

plan who is unable to pay the full charge. However, for fee scaling, federal regulations require a financial state-

ment be completed by the patient or responsible person. Town monies subsidize those visits that are scaled or

that no fee is collectible.

This agency is certified as a Medicare/Medicaid Provider, licensed by the State of NH and is a member agency

of the United Way of Merrimack County.

Total visits made during the year October 1, 1987 through September 30, 1988.

No. of Clients Visits

Home Care 42 543

Health Promotion 185 413
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Pembroke Water Works
Annual Report

A complete water main system for a new industrial park on Route #106; a new water main for Willow Street

in Allenstown; a main for a new street off of Buck Street; the completion of phases 6 and 7 of Stoneybrook Develop-

ment; and a new 900,000 gallon water tank testify to the expansion of the town owned water system. All of the

above represents over 8000 feet of new mains laid and 13 new hydrants installed to better serve our water users.

The most important event of the past year was the building of the new tank atop a hill on the Allenstown/Hooksett

line on land generously given to the Town Water Department by the Parker Bailey Trust. The Board of Water
Commissioners is most grateful to the Trustees; Ruth McKay, Mary Louis, C. Benjamin Bailey, and Richard Bailey

for their public spirited gift.

After a road was built and the site work done the tank firm arrived and installed a glass lined steel tank that

will now balance the system and prevent low pressure problems that many of our users had whenever a fire

hydrant was used in certain sections of the system.

Major improvements to the pump station on Pembroke Street were accomplished when we installed a new
gas fired boiler and hot water system to the building. In addition we installed a gas powered generator to provide

electricity for our pumps whenever power fails to the building.

For 1989 we see a few big projects on the horizon. We are particularly interested in the reconstruction of Glass

Street that will require much attention from the water department.

Board of Water Commissioners
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Pembroke Water Works Balance Sheet

December 31, 1988 and 1987

ASSETS

1988 1987

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash:

Savings accounts

Checking accounts

Change fund
Captial reserve fund account (Note E)

Accounts receivable

Materials and supplies inventory (Note A)
Prepaid expense

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note A)
Land
Structures

Water supply and pumping equipment
Water distribution equipment
Other equipment
Well exploration costs

Less allowances for depreciation

$ 69,523 $ 112,727

32,926 37,652

185 185

47,318 67,211

149,952 217,775

25,272 41,327

22,617 14,564

15,586 7,076

213,427 280,742

31,935 31,935

702,219 379,253

161,172 77,126

1,079,081 1,053,436

107,558 83,358

18,516 18,516

2,100,481 1,643,624

(701,239) (656,809)

$1,612,669 $1,267,557

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued interest

Current portion of long-term debt

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM DEBT, less portion payable

within one year classified as a current

liability (Note C)

CAPITAL
Municipal investment (Note D)
Retained earnings (operating)

Capital reserve fund (Note E)

$ 7,781

1,795

15,000

24,576

290,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

$ 1,461

1,333

15,000

17,794

30,000

213,693 213,693

1,037,082 938,859

47,318 67,211

1,298,093 1,219,763

$1,612,669 S 1,267,557
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Pembroke Water Works
Statements of Operations and Retained Earnings

Years ended December 31, 1988 and 1987

OPERATING REVENUE (Note B)

Residential water sales

Hydrant rentals

Commercial water sales

Merchandise sales and job work

OPERATING REVENUE DEDUCTIONS
Operating expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Property taxes

Engineering survey

OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE (REVENUE)
Interest

Interest on savings

Finance service charges on delinquent accounts

NET INCOME

Retained earnings (operating) at beginning of year

Transfer from capital reserve

RETAINED EARNINGS (OPERATING)
AT END OF YEAR

1988 1987

$ 245,765 $ 235,686

29,172 28,704

27,972 23,919

23,968 74,528

326,877 362,837

233,861 202,063

44,431 35,321

198 164
- 2,691

278,490 240,239

48,387 122,598

10,680 3,395

(12,231) (7,760)

(1,622) (1,469)

(3,173) (5,834)

51,560 128,432

938,859 810,427

46,663 -

$1,037,082 $938,859

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Pembroke Water Works
Statement of Capital Reserve Fund

Years Ended December 31, 1988 and 1987

1988 1987

OPERATING REVENUE (Note E)

Permit fees $22,500 $31,500

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Interest 4,270 2,540

NET INCOME 26,770 34,040

Capital reserve fund at beginning of year 67,211 33,171

Less: Transfer to operating fund for capital improvements (46,663 )
-

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND AT END OF YEAR $47,318 $67,211

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Pembroke Water Works
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 1988

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income

Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization $ 44,431

Decrease in accounts receivable 16,055

Increase in inventory (8,053)

Increase in prepaid insurance (6,573)

Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,782

Increase in prepaid expenses (1,937)

$ 78,330

Total adjustments 50,705

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditures (456,858)

129,035

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Debt reduction

Short term

Proceeds of bond
(15,000)

275,000

(456,858)

Net cash provided by financing activities 260,000

NET DECREASE IN CASH

Cash at beginning of year

(67,823)

217,775

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

$149,952
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Pembroke Water Works
Schedules of Operating Expenses

Years Ended December 31, 1988 and 1987

1988 1987

Water supply and pumping:
Power purchases

Pumping station labor

Pumping station supplies and expense

Repairs-pumping stations structures and equipment

Purification labor

Water purification supplies and expense

Water distribution:

Gravel and hot top

Repairs and supplies-services

Repairs and supplies-hydrants

Repairs and supplies-mains

Repairs and supplies-meters

Miscellaneous labor

Administration:

Superintendent

Office

Insurance

Garage
Commissioners' and treasurer salaries

Meter readings

Miscellaneous

Payroll taxes

Store department and shop

Professional fees

Printing of Town Report

Deferred compensation expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

$ 42,198 $ 39,575

5,907 5,476

7,559 8,193

1,496 1,410

5,383 5,420

10,887 6,891

4,641 1,982

5,906 9,954

2,454 4,272

6,729 5,827

4,288 2,226

9,070 4,748

26,279 23,796

24,364 23,475

28,675 19,744

6,794 7,847

5,800 5,800

1,320 1,680

9,805 6,223

7,314 6,284

7,053 9,199

8,345 1,465

625 576

969 -

$233,861 $202,063

62



Pembroke Water Works
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 1988 and 1987

NOTE A - ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies of Pembroke Water Works ("the Water Works") are as follows;

Accounting Basis

The Water Works uses the accrual method of accounting for all revenue and expenses.

Property and Equipment

These assets are carried at cost. Maintenance repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals

and betterments are capitalized. When an asset is retired or disposed of, the related costs and accumulated deprecia-

tion are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss on the disposition is credited or charged to income.

Provision is made on the straight-time method for depreciation by annual charges to operations calculated to

absorb the costs over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The cost of water mains included under the caption "Water distribution equipment" reflects only those costs

actually expended by the Water Works. In prior years, the Water Works acquired title to additional mains located

in housing development areas. The cost of such mains has been borne by the developer. Under the standard

contract provision mains installed in development areas become the property of the Town after a specified period

of time. The cost of mains so acquired is not reflected in the property and equipment accounts.

Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory is valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method.

NOTE B - EASTMENT AGREEMENT
In August, 1973, the State of New Hampshire granted to the Water Works an easement and right of way for

the construction of a well and pumping station on land situated in Bear Brook State Park. Under the terms of

the easement agreement, the Water Works is obligated to supply up to 50,000 gallons of water a day indefinitely

to the State at no charge.

NOTE C - LONG TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31, 1988 and 1987.

1988 1987

7.5% serial bond issued 1988, and maturing at the rate of $30,000

annually beginning in 1990 and maturing in 1999, backed by the

full faith and credit of the Town of Pembroke. $275,000

6.4% serial water bonds issued in 1975 and maturing at the rate of

$15,000 annually through 1990. 30,000 45,000

Less portion payable within one year classified as a current

liability 15,000 15,000

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT NET OF CURRENT PORTION $290,000 $30,000
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Principal is to be repaid as follows:

Year Ending

December
31, Amount

1989 $ 15,000

1990 45,000

1991 30,000

1992 30,000

1993 30,000

$150,000

NOTE D - MUNICIPAL INVESTMENT

During fiscal year 1985 Pembroke Water Works constructed a new water main on Route 106 from Pembroke
Street to the Concord City Line. The town of Pembroke voted to authorize $200,000 for this construction and
issued this amount to Pembroke Water Works. This increased the municipal investment to $213,693 at December

31, 1985. The total construction cost of this project was $213,815.

NOTE E - CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
During fiscal year 1986, Pembroke Water Works established a $750 per unit tap fee to finance construction,

reconstruction, acquisition of needed water works system equipment, improvements and/or acquisition of land

for water system expansion. The fee is only charged to Pembroke and Allenstown applicants; monies are held

by the town trustees of trust funds. The fund amounted to $47,318 and $67,211 at December 31, 1988 and 1987,

respectively.

NOTE F - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
During 1988, the company established a deferred compensation plan available to all employees in accordance

with section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan expense for 1988 was $969. The plan will be administered

by a third party.
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Pembroke Sewer Commission

Planning and "catch-up" are the words that reflect the past year on the Sewer Commission.

We have had a number of possible projects come to the Board for plan review but few are yet to be built. Stoney

Brook did finish laying all of their sewer lines and every lot is now connected to the system.

The Waste Water Treatment Plant has a new superintendent and he has seen to the complete rehabilitation

of the Bridge Street Station and has also made needed repairs to the Bow Lane Station. Both Stations are now
operating in a satisfactory manner. Their appearances also have been enhanced by a sandblasting job and new paint.

We will replace the sewer main that runs from the Hill School all the way to Pembroke Street. This line is

old and we had it inspected using TV cameras this year. We found the line damaged in many places and roots

are invading. All the plans are complete and we will begin work in the early spring.

The short line that we have on Academy Road will also need examination in the spring. If it is found deficient

we will arrange for its replacement.

The best news is that again this year we will not need to increase the user fee. We are doing our best to keep

the system up to standards, save for "a rainy day" and still keep the costs down. For the last three years we
have succeeded.
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Pembroke Sewer Commission

UTILITIES:

Bridge Street

Bow Lane

ADMINISTRATION:
Advertising

Clerical

Insurance-Pump Stations

Payment to Allenstown

Payroll Taxes

Postage

Professional Fees

Supplies/Miscellaneous

To Town: Report and Stipend

TOTAL

MAINTENANCE:
Bridge Street

Bow Lane

Line & Manholes
Engineering

TOTAL

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

WARRANT
FROM SAVINGS

1988 EXPENDED 1989

REQUESTED TO DATE REQUESTED

$ 1,500.00 $ 1,017.90 $ 1,500.00

3,700.00 2,280.92 3,700.00

$ 5,200.00 $ 3,298.82 $ 5,200.00

$ 100.00 $ 0.00 $ 100.00

500.00 0.00 500.00

3,400.00 1,640.00 2,200.00

138,082.00 122,933.34 170,066.00

37.55 0.00 37.55

750.00 811.54 850.00

100.00 0.00 100.00

400.00 173.00 400.00

400.00 330.00 3,200.00

$143,769.55 $125,887.88 $177,453.55

$ 5,000.00 $ 5,445.97 $ 5,000.00

5,000.00 671.94 5,000.00

17,531.75 796.02 58,000.00

9,000.00 0.00 10,000.00

$ 36,531.75 $ 6,913.93 $ 78,000.00

$185,501.30 $136,100.63 $260,653.55

$198,000.00

62,653.55
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Suncook Wastewater Treatment Plant

1988

Staff Salaries

Superintendent

Chief Operator

Mechanic

Laborer

Clerical

Total Salaries

Plant

Allenstown

Pembroke

Utilities:

Electric

Telephone

Fuel-Heat-Water

TOTAL

Administrative Cost:

Office Supplies

Insurance/BC/BS

Fica

Uniforms

Miscellaneous

TOTAL

Other Operating Costs:

Chemicals

Outside Contractors

Supplies and Materials

Equipment
Vehicle Expense

Alarm System Fee

TOTAL

TOTAL
Rebate

GRAND TOTAL

49% 51%
TOTAL PEMBROKE ALLENSTOWN

$ 22,462.02

24,073.32

20,464.81

14,656.23

13,787.61

$ 95,443.99

$ 82,066.45 $ 40,212.56 $ 41,853.89

4,870.01 4,870.01

8,507.53 8,507.53

$ 42,476.16 $ 20,813.32 $ 21,662.84

1,892.59 927.37 965.22

7,720.14 3,782.87 3,937.27

$ 52,088.89

$ 3,580.34 $ 1,754.37 $ 1,825.97

13,391.99 6,562.08 6,829.91

7,167.83 3,658.87 3,508.96

2,203.55 1,079.74 1,123.81

2,187.75 1,072.00 1,115.75

$ 28,531.46

$ 13,336.95 $ 6,535.11 $ 6,801.84

38,675.13 18,950.81 19,724.32

13,771.55 6,748.06 7,023.49

1,853.14 908.04 945.10

2,418.17 1,184.90 1,233.27

650.00 318.50 331.50

$ 70,704.94

$246,769.28 $123,016.13 $123,753.15

(168.95) (82.79) (86.16)

$246,600.33 $122,933.34 $123,666.99
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Replacement Account

Beginning Balance $102,468.99

Permits

Interest

Transferred from Operating

Transferred to Operating

21,000.00

5,085.95

40,000.00

-53,026.91

Ending Balance $115,528.03

Operating Beginning Balance $113,489.43

Interest

Income Rents

Miscellaneous

Expenses and Grant Payment
Transferred from Replacement

Transferred to Replacement

10,330.58

187,283.95

184,299.22

-304,950.63

53,026.91

-40,000.00

Ending Balance $203,479.46

Pembroke Sewer Commission
Capital Fund

Beginning Balance $542,341.50

Revenues:

State Grant-Plant $ 32,883.08

State Grant-Town 26,874.00

Interest 20,703.61

Total Revenues $ 80,460.69

Expenses:

Payment to Town $168,850.00

Total Expenses ($168,850.00)

Year End Balance $453,952.19

68



Zoning Board of Adjustment

The Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) heard 25 cases in 1988. The breakdown of the cases is as follows:

Variances — 19 cases: 8 granted, 8 denied, 2 dismissals, 1 recessed

Special Exceptions — 6 cases: 2 granted, 3 denied, 1 recessed

As the Town has grown, so has the complexity of the hearings. Many cases now require detailed, technical

reports and studies.

Planning and Zoning Board's joint hearings have proven very beneficial. Information presented by the appli-

cant is heard and shared by both groups. The expertise from the Boards has helped everyone involved in the

hearing process.

It is with great pleasure that the Zoning Board of Adjustment moves into its new meeting accommodation.

The meeting room in the new Town Hall will give access to town records and the many maps housed there.

Having assessment cards and deeds, maps and lot measurements available to us from the Building Inspector's

records will certainly aid in answering detailed questions.

The Board would like to thank the Fire Departments for allowing us to hold our prior public hearings in the

Gile Room. We realize that at times we have inconvenienced them, but they were always a gracious host. Thanks

again.

Donna Severance - Chair

Andre St. Germain - Vice-Chair

Pat Manseau - Clerk

William Bonney

Richard Kelsea

Vivian Adams - Alternate
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Pembroke School District

School District Officers

MODERATOR
Thomas E. Petit

DISTRICT CLERK
Roberta Doore

TREASURER
Helen Fryer

SCHOOL BOARD
Stanley Grimes Term Expires 1989

Charles Mitchell Term Expires 1939

June Cote Term Expires 1990

Clinton Hanson Term Expires 1990

Ryland Weisiger Term Expires 1991

AUDITORS
Brent W. Washburn, C.P.A.

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Paul DeMinico

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Thomas Haley

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR BUSINESS
Jack Henderson

Abstract of the Meeting of the Pembroke School District

March 5, 1988 and March 8, 1988

The Pembroke School District Meeting on Saturday, March 5, 1988, was called to order by Moderator Thomas
Petit at 1:06 p.m. at the Pembroke Academy Auditorium. Moderator Petit called for a moment of silence prior

to the reading of the Warrant. The reading of the Pembroke School District Warrant was the first order of business.

Article 1. TO SEE IF THE DISTRICT WILL VOTE TO RAISE AND APPROPRIATE THE SUM OF $6,300,000.00

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND ORIGINAL EQUIPPING AND SUPPLYING OF A NEW PEM-
BROKE MIDDLE SCHOOL, SAID SUM TO BE IN ADDITION TO ANY FEDERAL, STATE, OR
PRIVATE FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE THEREFOR, AND TO AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF NOT
MORE THAN $6,300,000.00 OF BONDS OR NOTES THEREFOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
MUNICIPAL FINANCE ACT (RSA CHAPTER 33); TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO
CONTRACT OR APPLY FOR, OBTAIN AND ACCEPT FEDERAL, STATE OR OTHER AID, IF ANY,
WHICH MAY BE AVAILABLE FOR SAID PROJECT AND TO COMPLY WITH ALL LAWS AP-
PLICABLE FOR SAID PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO NEGOTIATE
AND ISSUE SUCH BONDS OR NOTES AND TO DETERMINE THE RATE OF INTEREST
THEREON AND THE MATURITY AND OTHER TERMS THEREOF; FURTHERMORE TO
AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO USE INTEREST EARNED FROM SHORT-TERM INVEST-
MENT OF BOND OR NOTE PROCEEDS TO APPLY TO THE COST OF CONSTRUCTION, EQUIP-
MENT, AND FURNISHINGS OF THE PROJECT, AND FURTHER, TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL
BOARD TO TAKE ANY AND ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT ANY VOTE
HEREUNDER AND TO TAKE ANY OTHER ACTION RELATIVE THERETO. (% BALLOT VOTE
REQUIRED) (BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVAL).

Charles Mitchell moved that Article 1 be accepted. Clint Hanson seconded the motion. Charles

Mitchell reviewed the recent history of the Pembroke Schools and the phases which the District

has gone through. Clint Hanson, the School representative on the Building Committee gave a report

on the middle school building project. Steve Clayman explained the site selection and discussed

the design of the proposed middle school and the rationale for this design. Gerald Fleury, member
of the Building Committee highlighted the findings of this committee. Allen Zipke described the

program needs of the middle school and how they could best be met with the proposed school

building project. Jack Henderson, Assistant Superintendent of Schools for Business, explained the

impact this middle school building project would have on our present and future property tax rates.

Patricia Fair, Chairman of the Pembroke Planning Board, made the following amendment to Arti-

cle 1. The proposed middle school project shall be submitted to the Planning Board for site plan

review with a decision that is binding on the School Board. This amendment was seconded by Charles

Whittemore. After a brief discussion concerning this amendment, the amendment was defeated
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by a voice vote. The balloting on Article 1 began at 2:38 p.m. and ended at 3:42 p.m. A total of

358 ballots were cast. A two-thirds majority vote or 239 YES votes were needed to pass this article.

The resulting count was 216 YEAS and 142 NAYS. Article 1 was defeated.

Article 2. TO SEE IF THE DISTRICT WILL VOTE TO RAISE AND APPROPRIATE THE SUM OF $500,000.00

FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING ATHLETIC FACILITIES AT PEMBROKE ACADEMY
TO INCLUDE TRACK FACILITIES, SOCCER AND OTHER ATHLETIC FIELDS, AND TENNIS
COURTS AND TO CONSTRUCT ADDITIONAL PARKING LOT AT PEMBROKE ACADEMY, SAID
SUM TO BE IN ADDITION TO ANY FEDERAL, STATE OR PRIVATE FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE
THEREOF, AND TO AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF NOT MORE THAN $500,000.00 OF BONDS OR
NOTES THEREFORE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MUNICIPAL FINANCE ACT (RSA CHAPTER
33); TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO CONTRACT OR APPLY FOR, OBTAIN AND
ACCEPT FEDERAL, STATE OR OTHER AID, IF ANY, WHICH MAY BE AVAILABLE FOR SAID
PROJECT AND TO COMPLY WITH ALL LAWS APPLICABLE TO SAID PROJECT AND TO
AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO NEGOTIATE AND ISSUE SUCH BONDS OR NOTES
AND TO DETERMINE THE RATE OF INTEREST THEREON AND THE MATURITY AND OTHER
TERMS THEREOF, FURTHERMORE TO AUTHORIZE TO SCHOOL BOARD TO USE INTEREST
EARNED FROM SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT OF BOND OR NOTE PROCEEDS TO APPLY TO
THE COST OF CONSTRUCTION, EQUIPMENT, AND FURNISHINGS OF THE PROJECT, AND
FURTHER, TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO TAKE ANY AND ALL ACTION
NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT ANY VOTE HEREUNDER AND TO TAKE ANY OTHER ACTION
RELATIVE THERETO. (% BALLOT VOTE REQUIRED) (BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS
APPROVAL)
Ryland Weisiger moved that Article 2 be accepted. Clint Hanson seconded this motion. The discus-

sion of Article 2 was taking place during the time allowed for the balloting on Article 1. Upon learn-

ing the results of the balloting on Article 1, Charles Mitchell moved that after the completion of

all other business on this warrant, we reconsider our action on Article 1 at a recessed session of

this meeting to be held on April 9, 1988 10:00 a.m. in the Pembroke Academy Auditorium. Clint

Hanson seconded this amendment. Following a brief discussion this amendment passed by a voice

vote. Charles Mitchell then moved to table any further discussion and action on Article 2 until the

April 9, 1988, 10:00 a.m. meeting. Clint Hanson seconded this motion. This amendment passed by

a voice vote.

TO HEAR THE REPORTS OF AGENTS, AUDITORS, COMMITTEES, OR OFFICERS CHOSEN,
AND TO PASS ANY VOTE RELATING THERETO.
There being none this Article was not acted upon.

TO SEE IF THE DISTRICT WILL VOTE TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO ACCEPT
GIFTS AND DONATIONS FROM ANY SOURCE ON BEHALF OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT.

Shirley Mitchell moved that this Article be accepted. Charles Hamilton seconded this motion. The

motion was accepted by a voice vote.

Article 5. TO SEE IF THE DISTRICT WILL VOTE TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND ON BEHALF OF THE DISTRICT A SUM OF MONEY NOT TO EXCEED $80,907.00 TO
BE OBTAINED FROM THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OR OTHER SOURCES THAT MAY MAKE
SUCH FUNDS AVAILABLE TO THE DISTRICT; PROVIDED THAT THE SCHOOL DISTRICT WILL
NOT BE THEREBY REQUIRED TO RAISE ANY MONEY BY LOCAL TAXATION IN THIS OR
SUBSEQUENT YEARS AS THE RESULT OF SUCH EXPENDITURE OF $80,907.00. (BUDGET COM-
MITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVAL)
Charles Hamilton moved that Article 5 be accepted. George Fryer seconded this motion. The mo-

tion was accepted by a voice vote.

Article 6. TO SEE IF THE DISTRICT WILL VOTE TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO APPLY FOR,
ACCEPT, AND EXPEND, WITHOUT FURTHER ACTION BY THE SCHOOL DISTRICT MEETING,
MONEY FROM THE STATE, INCLUDING N.H. SWEEPSTAKES SURPLUS, FEDERAL, OR
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNIT OR A PRIVATE SOURCE WHICH BECOMES AVAILABLE DUR-
ING THE 1988-89 SCHOOL FISCAL YEAR, PROVIDED THAT SUCH EXPENDITURE BE MADE
FOR PURPOSES FOR WHICH A SCHOOL DISTRICT MAY APPROPRIATE MONEY AND THAT
SUCH EXPENDITURE NOT REQUIRE THE EXPENDITURE OF OTHER SCHOOL DISTRICT
FUNDS. FURTHER, THAT THE SCHOOL BOARD HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING PRIOR TO AC-

Article 3.

Article 4.
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CEPTING AND SPENDING SUCH MONEY AND HAVE THE APPROVAL OF THE MUNICIPAL
BUDGET COMMITTEE.

Dave Sheldon moved to accept Article 6. Clint Hanson seconded this motion. Article 6 passed

by a voice vote.

Article 7. TO DETERMINE AND APPOINT THE SALARIES OF THE SCHOOL BOARD AND TRUANT OF-
FICER, AND FIX THE COMPENSATION OF ANY OTHER OFFICERS OF AGENTS OF THE
DISTRICT.

It was moved by Charles Mitchell and seconded by Clint Hanson that Article 7 be acted upon
with Article 9. This motion was passed by a voice vote.

Article 8. TO SEE IF THE DISTRICT WILL VOTE TO RAISE AND APPROPRIATE THE SUM OF $71,963.00

FOR THE PURPOSE OF ESTABLISHING A HALF DAY PUBLIC KINDERGARTEN FOR ALL ELIGI-

BLE CHILDREN IN THE DISTRICT. THE PROGRAM WILL BE VOLUNTARY FOR ALL
CHILDREN. THE SUM WILL PROVIDE EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES AND STAFFING. (BUDGET
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVAL)

Dolly Albee moved to accept Article 8. Dave Sheldon seconded this motion. Pat Fowler, member
of the Kindergarten Committee, reported on the need for public kindergarten for all children. This

article passed by a voice vote.

Article 9. TO SEE WHAT SUM OF MONEY THE DISTRICT WILL RAISE AND APPROPRIATE FOR THE
SUPPORT OF SCHOOLS, FOR THE PAYMENT OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS FOR SCHOOL
DISTRICT OFFICIALS AND AGENTS AND FOR THE PAYMENT OF STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS
OF THE DISTRICT.

Charles Mitchell moved to adopt the budget of $6,397,008.00 as presented. Ryland Weisiger second-

ed this motion. Charles Connor, Chairman of the Budget Committee highlighted major areas of

change in this year's budget. Both Articles 7 and 9 passed by voice vote.

Article 10. TO CHOOSE AGENTS AND COMMITTEES IN RELATION TO ANY SUBJECTS EMBRACED IN

THE DISTRICT.

There being none, this article was passed over.

Article 11 . TO TRANSACT ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY LEGALLY COME BEFORE SAID MEETING

.

There being none, this article was passed over.

Charles Mitchell moved to recess the meeting until April 9, 1988 at 10:00 a.m. at the Pembroke Academy
Auditorium. Motion was seconded by Clint Hanson. The motion to recess was passed by a voice vote. The Pem-
broke School District Meeting was recessed at 4:36 p.m.

The meeting on Tuesday, March 8, 1988, was called to order by Moderator Thomas Petit at 7:00 a.m. The
Moderator read the School District Warrant. Manson Donaghey made the motion to open the polls and Harold

Paulsen seconded the motion. The polls were declared open until 6:00 p.m. for the purpose of electing a school

board member and school district officers. The checklist was used with the following checklist supervisors and

assistants attending: Manson Donaghey, Barbara Payne, Roland Young, Jr., Janet Anderson, Ed Currier, Louise

Roberts, Florence Woods, Lorette Girard, and Maurice Lavoie.

1. To choose a Moderator for the ensuing year.

Thomas E. Petit—489 (elected)

2. To choose a Clerk for the ensuing year.

Roberta W. Doore—456 (elected)

3. To choose a member of the School Board for the ensuing three years.

Ryland Weisiger—431 (elected)

4. To choose a treasurer for tj.e ensuing year.

Helen Fryer—460 (elected)

The polls were closed at 6:00 p.m. with 518 regular ballots cast and no absentee ballots. Tellers to count were:

Barbara Payne, Darryl Borgman, Roland Young, Jr. and Manson Donaghey.
Respectfully submitted,

Roberta W. Doore

School District Clerk

March 8, 1988
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Pembroke School District Warrant
State of New Hampshire

TO THE INHABITANTS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT IN THE TOWN OF PEMBROKE, QUALIFIED TO VOTE
IN DISTRICT AFFAIRS:

You are hereby notified to meet at Pembroke Academy in said District on the 21st day of March, 1989 at 7:00

p.m. to act upon the following subjects:

1. To see if the District will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $5,400,000 for the construction and original

equipping and supplying of a new Pembroke Middle School, said sum to in addition to any federal, state, or

private funds made available therefor, and to authorize issuance of not more than $5,400,000 of bonds or notes

therefor in accordance with the Municipal Finance Act (RSA Chapter 33); to authorize the School Board to con-

tract or apply for, obtain and accept federal, state or other aid, if any, which may be available for said project

and to comply with all laws applicable to said project and to comply with all laws applicable to said project and
to authorize the School Board to negotiate and issue such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest

thereon and the maturity and other terms thereof; furthermore to authorize the School Board to use interest

earned from short-term investment of bond or note proceeds to apply to the cost of construction, equipment,

and furnishings of the project, and further, to authorize the School Board to take any and all action necessary

to carry out any vote hereunder and to take any other action relative thereto. (2/3 ballot vote required) (Budget

Committee recommends approval)

2. To see if the District will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $300,000 for the purpose of constructing

athletic facilities at Pembroke Academy to include track facilities, soccer and other athletic fields, and to construct

additional parking lot at Pembroke Academy, said sum to be in addition to any federal, state or private funds

made available therefor, and to authorize issuance of not more than $300,000 of bonds or notes therefor in accor-

dance with the Municipal Finance Act (RSA Chapter 33); to authorize the School Board to contract or apply for,

obtain and accept federal, state or other aid, if any, which may be available for said project and to comply with

all laws applicable to said project and to authorize the School Board to negotiate and issue such bonds or notes

and to determine the rate of interest thereon and the maturity and other terms thereof, furthermore to authorize

the School Board to use interest earned from short-term investment of bond or note proceeds to apply to the

cost of construction, equipment, and furnishings of the project, and further, to authorize the School Board to

take any and all action necessary to carry out any vote hereunder and to take any other action relative thereto.

(2/3 ballot vote required) ( Budget Committee recommends approval)

3. To hear the reports of Agents, Auditors, Committees, or Officers chosen, and to pass any vote relating thereto.

4. To see if the District will vote to authorze the School Board to accept gifts and donations from any source

on behalf of the School District.

5. To see if the District will vote to authorize the School Board to accept and expend on behalf of the District

a sum of money not to exceed $104,080 to be obtained from the Federal Government or other sources that may
make such funds available to the District; provided that the School District will not be thereby required to raise

any money by local taxation in this or subsequent years as the result of such expenditure of $104,080.
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6. To see if the District will vote to authorize the School Board to apply for, accept, and expend, without fur-

ther action by the School District Meeting, money from the state, federal, or other governmental units or a private

source which becomes available during the 1989-90 school fiscal year, provided that such expenditure be made
for purposes for which a School District may appropriate money and that such expenditure not require the ex-

penditure of other School District funds. Further, that the School Board hold a public hearing prior to accepting

and spending such money and have the approval of the Municipal Budget Committee.

7. To see if the District will vote to establish a capital reserve fund under the provisions of RSA 35:1 known
as the School Building Capital Reserve fund for the construction and/or reconstruction of school buildings and/or

for the addition to existing school buildings and/or for the acquisition of land; and to raise and appropriate the

sum of $91,500 to be placed in this fund, and to authorize the expenditure of sweepstakes revenues in the amount
of $91,500 distributed by the Department of Education under the provisions of 1988 New Hampshire Laws, Chapter

278 to fund this appropriation. (Budget Committee recommends approval)

8. To see if the School District will authorize the School Board to convey to the town of Pembroke on such

terms and conditions as the School Board deems are in the best interest of the district an easement in a portion

of land at the Pembroke Hill School for the installation and maintenance of sewage and water lines.

9. To see if the School District will authorize the School Board to convey to Mr. Greg Makris on such terms

and conditions as the School Board deems are in the best interest of the district an easement in a portion of land

at the Pembroke Hill Schocl for the installation of drainage pipe.

10. To determine and appoint the salaries of the School Board and Truant Officer, and fix the compensation

of any other officers or agents of the District.

11. To see what sum of money the District will raise and appropriate for the support of schools, for the pay-

ment of salaries and benefits for school district officials and agents and for the payment of statutory obligations

of the District.

12. To choose Agents and Committees in relation to any subjects embraced in the District.

13. To transact any other business that may legally come before said meeting.

Given under our hands at said Pembroke this 28th day of February, 1989.

Charles Mitchell

Stanley Grimes

June Cote

Clinton Hanson
Ryland Weisiger

Pembroke School Board
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Abstract of the Reconvened Meeting

of the Pembroke School District

April 9, 1988

The Pembroke School District Meeting was reconvened on Saturday, April 9, 1988, and called to order by

Moderator Thomas Petit at 10:09 a.m. at the Pembroke Academy auditorium. The reading of the Pembroke School

District Warrant Article 1 was the first order of business.

Article 1. TO SEE IF THE DISTRICT WILL VOTE TO RAISE AND APPROPRIATE THE SUM OF $6,300,000.00

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND ORIGINAL EQUIPPING AND SUPPLYING OF A NEW PEM-
BROKE MIDDLE SCHOOL, SAID SUM TO BE IN ADDITION TO ANY FEDERAL, STATE, OR
PRIVATE FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE THEREFOR, AND TO AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF NOT
MORE THAN $6,300,000.00 OF BONDS OR NOTES THEREFOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
MUNICIPAL FINANCE ACT (RSA CHAPTER 33); TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO
CONTRACT OR APPLY FOR, OBTAIN AND ACCEPT FEDERAL, STATE OR OTHER AID, IF ANY,
WHICH MAY BE AVAILABLE FOR SAID PROJECT AND TO COMPLY WITH ALL LAWS AP-

PLICABLE BONDS OR NOTES AND TO DETERMINE THE RATE OF INTEREST THEREON AND
THE MATURITY AND OTHER TERMS THEREOF; FURTHERMORE TO AUTHORIZE THE
SCHOOL BOARD TO USE INTEREST EARNED FROM SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT OF BOND
OR NOTE PROCEEDS TO APPLY TO THE COST OF CONSTRUCTION, EQUIPMENT, AND FUR-

NISHINGS OF THE PROJECT, AND CARRY OUT ANY VOTE HEREUNDER AND TO TAKE ANY
OTHER ACTION RELATIVE THERETO. (% BALLOT VOTE REQUIRED) (BUDGET COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL)

Clinton Hanson moved that his article be adopted. Charles Mitchell seconded this motion.

Clinton Hanson explained that the Pembroke School Board had carefully reviewed the middle

school plan, student enrollment projections, and various ways to reduce the school per square foot

cost, but decided to propose again the plan brought earlier to the voters.

After all questions pertaining to Article 1 had been asked, Lorette Girard moved to act upon the

Article. Richard Therriault seconded her motion.

Mr. Petit, Moderator, then read Article 2.

Article 2. TO SEE IF THE DISTRICT WILL VOTE TO RAISE AND APPROPRIATE THE SUM OF $500,000.00

FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING ATHLETIC FACILITIES AT PEMBROKE ACADEMY
TO INCLUDE TRACK FACILITIES, SOCCER AND OTHER ATHLETIC FIELDS, AND TENNIS
COURTS AND TO CONSTRUCT ADDITIONAL PARKING LOT AT PEMBROKE ACADEMY, SAID
SUM TO BE IN ADDITION TO ANY FEDERAL, STATE OR PRIVATE FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE
THEREOF, AND TO AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF NOT MORE THAN $500,000.00 OF BONDS OR
NOTES THEREFOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MUNICIPAL FINANCE ACT (RSA CHAPTER
33); TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO CONTRACT OR APPLY FOR, OBTAIN AND
ACCEPT FEDERAL, STATE OR OTHER AID, IF ANY, WHICH MAY BE AVAILABLE FOR SAID
PROJECT AND TO COMPLY WITH ALL LAWS APPLICABLE TO SAID PROJECT AND TO
AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO NEGOTIATE AND ISSUE SUCH BONDS OR NOTES
AND TO DETERMINE THE RATE OF INTEREST THEREON AND THE MATURITY AND OTHER
TERMS THEREOF, FURTHERMORE TO AUTHORIZE TO SCHOOL BOARD TO USE INTEREST
EARNED FROM SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT OF BOND OR NOTE PROCEEDS TO APPLY TO
THE COST OF CONSTRUCTION, EQUIPMENT, AND FURNISHINGS OF THE PROJECT, AND
FURTHER, TO AUTHORIZE THE SCHOOL BOARD TO TAKE ANY AND ALL ACTION
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NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT ANY VOTE HEREUNDER AND TO TAKE ANY OTHER ACTION
RELATIVE THERETO. (% BALLOT VOTE REQUIRED) (BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS
APPROVAL)

Stanley Grimes moved that Article 2 be accepted. Charles Mitchell seconded the motion.

Clinton Hanson explained the component parts included in Article 2. After all questions had been

asked. Moderator asked if people were ready to vote. The balloting on both Article 1 and Article

2 began at 11:20 a.m. Two separate ballots were used, one for Article 1 and a different colored ballot

for Article 2.

The checklist was used with the following checklist supervisors and assistants attending: Barbara

Payne, Mansor. Donaghey, Roland Young, Jr., Dolly Albee, Lorette Girard, and Darryl Borgman.

The polls were closed at 12:58 p.m. Tellers to count were: Article 1: Patricia Fowler, Redmond Carroll, Chris

Toy, Ryland Weisiger, Celeste Borgman, and Manson Donaghey; Article 2: Barbara Payne, Roland Young, Jr.,

Lorette Girard, Darryl Borgman, Stanley Grimes, Dolly Albee.

There were 596 votes cast for Article 1. Therefore, 398 votes for the Article were needed to pass the Article.

Results were: 330 Yeas and 266 Nays votes. Article 1 was defeated.

There were 595 votes cast for Article 2. Therefore, 398 votes for the Article were needed to pass the article.

Results were: 367 Yeas and 228 Nays votes. Article 2 was defeated.

Moderator Thomas Petit asked if there was any other business to come before the meeting. Charles Mitchell

moved to reconsider Article 1 on Saturday, June 4, 1988, at 10:00 a.m. at the Pembroke Academy Auditorium

and Clinton Hanson seconded his motion. This motion passed by a voice vote.

Chester Martel moved to reconsider Article 2 and Brian Tufts seconded the motion. This motion also passed

by a voice vote.

Chester Martel moved to recess the meeting until June 4, 1988. Ryland Weisiger seconded the motion. This

meeting ended at 1:30 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Roberta Doore

School District Clerk

April 9, 1988
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Abstract of the Reconvened Meeting

of the Pembroke School District

June 4, 1988

The Pembroke School District Meeting was reconvened on Saturday, June 4, 1988, and called to order by

Moderator Thomas Petit at 10:04 a.m. at the Pembroke Academy Auditorium.

Charles Mitchell moved to pass over Articles 1 and 2. Stanley Grimes seconded this motion. The motion pass-

ed by a voice vote.

Charles Mitchell then moved to reconsider Article 9. Stanley Grimes seconded this motion. This motion pass-

ed by a voice vote.

Charles Mitchell moved to amend the budget upward by $98,500 and that we adopt the new budget $6,495,958

(6,397,008 + 98,950). Stanley Grimes seconded this motion.

Mr. Mitchell explained why this increase is needed. In order to provide answers to the questions asked by

the taxpayers regarding the proposed middle school this money will be used to further study this building project.

Schematic Phase $43,650.00

Site Phase 37,500.00

Structural Review of Existing School 8,800.00

Surveys 9,000.00

Total $98,950.00

Following a brief question period this motion passed by a voice vote.

Under other business Charles Mitchell reconstituted the School Study Committee. Stanley Grimes asked peo-

ple present to serve on this committee and take seriously the needs of the schools.

Stanley Grimes moved to adjourn the meeting. Ryland Weisiger seconded the motion. The meeting was closed

at 10:15 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Roberta W. Doore

School District Clerk

June 4, 1988
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Pembroke School District Warrant
State of New Hampshire

TO THE INHABITANTS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT IN THE TOWN OF PEMBROKE, QUALIFIED TO VOTE
IN DISTRICT AFFAIRS:

You are hereby notified to meet at the Pembroke High Street School in said District, on the 14th day of March,

1989 at 7:00 o'clock in the forenoon, to act upon the following subjects:

1. To choose a Moderator for the ensuing year.

2. To choose a Clerk for the ensuing year.

3. To choose two members of the School Board of the ensuing three years.

4. To choose a Treasurer for the ensuing year.

5. To choose an Auditor for the ensuing year.

The polls are to open at 7:00 a.m. and will close not earlier than 6:00 o'clock p.m.

All other School District business to be conducted at the regular School District meeting as otherwise posted.

Given under our hands at said Pembroke this 28th day of February, 1989.

Charles Mitchell

Stanley Grimes

June Cote

Clinton Hanson
Ryland Weisiger

Pembroke School Board
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Budget—Pembroke School District

Approved School Board's Budget Committee
Budget Budget Recommended Not Recommended

PURPOSE OF APPROPRIATION 1988-89 1989-90 1989-90 1989-90

INSTRUCTION
Regular Programs $2,104,494.00 $2,464,688.00 $2,439,888.00 $ 24,800.00

Special Programs 731,303.00 729,596.00 729,596.00

Vocational Programs 388,019.00 443,698.00 443,698.00

Other Instructional Programs 92,857.00 98,345.00 98,345.00

Adult/Continuing Education 6,600.00 600.00 600.00

SUPPORT SERVICES
Pupil Services

Attendance & Social Work 100.00 100.00 100.00

Guidance 189,474.00 208,317.00 208,317.00

Health 40,408.00 36,297.00 36,297.00

Instructional Staff Services

Improvement of Instruction 16,600.00 18,300.00 18,300.00

Educational Media 125,025.00 137,465.00 137,465.00

School Improvement 7,150.00 12,650.00 12,650.00

General Administration

All Other Objects 36,783.00 41,389.00 41,389.00

S.A.U. Management Services 145,687.00 176,014.00 176,014.00

School Administration Services 310,797.00 391,215.00 391,215.00

Business Services

Operation & Maintenance of Plant . 586,907.00 565,750.00 565,750.00

Pupil Transportation 199,551.00 231,678.00 231,678.00

Managerial Services 77,644.00 0.00 0.00

Other Support Services 642,520.00 780,255.00 759,255.00 21,000.00

FACILITIES ACQUISITIONS & CONST. 118,950.00 5,787,625.00 5,723,625.00 64,000.00

OTHER OUTLAYS
Debt Service

Principal 251,435.00 265,039.00 265,039.00

Interest 168,020.00 156,462.00 358,452.00

Fund Transfers

To Federal Projects Fund 36,000.00 36,000.00 36,000.00

To Food Service Fund 219,634.00 260,879.00 260,879.00

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $6,495,958.00 $12,842,362.00 $12,934,552.00 $109,800.00
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Estimated Revenues

Revised
REVENUES & CREDITS AVAILABLE Revenues

TO REDUCE SCHOOL TAXES 1987-88

Foundation Aid $250,734.00

School Building Aid 74,623.00

Area Vocational School 16,934.00

Driver Education 10,000.00

Catastrophic Aid 26,179.00

Adult Education 6,000.00

Child Nutrition 5,799.00

Child Nutrition Program 68,080.00

Other-Computer Grant 49,085.00

Block Grant 0.00

Transferred From Capital Projects Fund 1,949.00

Sale of Bonds or Notes

Interest From Temporary Investment of Bond
Sale of Bonds
Tuition 1,818,693.00

Earnings on Investments 7,000.00

Pupil Activities 9,600.00

Other-School Lunch Sales 170,000.00

Transportation 7,757.00

TOTAL SCHOOL REVENUES & CREDITS 2,522,433.00

DISTRICT ASSESSMENT 3,973,525.00

TOTAL REVENUES & DISTRICT ASSESSMENT $6,495,958.00

School Board's

Budget
1988-89

Budget
Committee Budget

1988-89

$272,712.00

103,517.00

16,934.00

10,000.00

15,530.00

0.00

5,799.00

68,080.00

0.00

36,000.00

0.00

5,400,000.00

108,000.00

300,000.00

2,316,600.00

7,000.00

9,600.00

187,000.00

7,800.00

8,864,572.00

4,179,780.00

$13,044,352.00

$272,712.00

103,517.00

16,934.00

10,000.00

15,530.00

0.00

5,799.00

68,080.00

0.00

36,000.00

0.00

5,400,000.00

108,000.00

300,000.00

2,316,600.00

7,000.00

9,600.00

187,000.00

7,800.00

8,864,572.00

4,069,980.00

$12,934,552.00
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School Administrative Unit Budget 1989-1990

Estimated Revenues

Account
4000

4410
4470

1000

Description

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES
Elementary & Secondary Education Title I - Pine Haven
Handicapped Foundation (P.L. 94-142)

Other 89:313

Adult Ed. & Pre-School Incentive

LOCAL REVENUE EXCLUSIVE OF DISTRICT SHARE
Tuition

Other (Special Ed. Transportation)

TOTAL REVENUES

199,876.00

117,750.00

5,500.00

26,926.00

592,076.00

53,225.00

$995,353.00

Estimated Expenditures

Function
2000

2200
2210

2300
2310

2370

2500
2520

2600

2900

Purpose of Expenditure
SUPPORT SERVICES
INSTRUCTIONAL STAFF SERVICES
Improvement of Instruction

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION SERVICES
School Administrative Unit Board
Superintendent's Office/Administrative Services

BUSINESS SERVICES
Other Support Services

MANAGERIAL SERVICES
OTHER SUPPORT SERVICES
Chapter I/Pine Haven
Other Grants
Support Services 89:313

Project TELL
Skills/Pre Skills

Alternative School

Epsom Intensive Instruction

Pre-School Incentive

Adult Education
Special Education Transportation

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
LESS ESTIMATED REVENUES
AMOUNT TO BE SHARED BY DISTRICTS

1,500.00

8

249

66

26

89

199

117

5

162

147

213

68

20

6

53

,572.00

,528.00

,284.00

,969.00

,125.00

,876.00

,750.00

,500.00

,455.00

,156.00

,999.00

,466.00

,326.00

,600.00

,225.00

$1,437
-995

,331.00

,353.00

$441,978.00
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Districts' Share of SAU
1988 —1989

1988 1989

Equalized Valuation 1987-88 Pupil District District

District Valuation % Pupils % Share % Share

Allenstown 138,806,051.00 17.3 607 19.47 18.42 81,412.00

Chichester 88,252,284.00 11.1 215 6.91 9.01 36,352.00

Deerfield 190,427,711.00 23.7 385 12.35 18.03 79,689.00

Epsom 146,956,747.00 18.3 347 11.13 14.72 65,059.00

Pembroke 237,242,568.00

801,685,361.00

29.6 1563

3117

50.14

100.00

39.82

100.00

175,996.00

TOTAL 100.0 438,508.00
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Statement of Revenues

For the Fiscal Year June 30, 1988

FUND EQUITY
July 1, 1987 $ 63,804.46

REVENUES FROM LOCAL SOURCES
Current Appropriation $2,830,182.00

TUITION
Pupils, Parents & Other Sources $1,818,693.42

Adult Continuing Education Tuition 6,000.00

Pupils, Parents & Other Sources $ 7,756.76

Earnings on Investments 7,997.93

Pupil Activities 19,794.57

Rentals 15,700.00

Other Local Revenue 4,390.02

REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES
Unrestricted Grants-In-Aid Foundation Aid $ 134,156.58

Sweepstakes 242,497.33

RESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID
School Building Aid $ 110,214.98

Transportation 5,192.74

Driver Education 17,600.00

Catastrophic Aid 20,713.49

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES
Restricted Grants-In-Aid $ 2,186.00

FOOD REVENUE
Food Service $ 162,740.44

Child Nutrition 68,080.00

$ 63,804.46

$2,830,182.00

$1,824,693.42

$ 55,639.28

$ 376,653.91

$ 153,721.21

$ 2,186.00

$ 230,820.44

OTHER SOURCES
Transfer from Capital Projects Funds $ 1,949.44

$ 1,949.44

TOTAL REVENUES $5,539,650.16
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Financial Report

INSTRUCTION
Regular Education Programs $1,832,944.28

Special Education Programs 453,664.06

Vocational Education Programs 348,044.29

Other Instructional Programs 92,320.81

PUPILS
Guidance $ 163,443.83

Health 35,243.25

INSTRUCTIONAL
Improvement of Instruction $ 14,338.00

Educational Media 116,011.38

Other Instructional Staff 6,347.59

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
School Board $ 34,639.82

Office of Superintendent 128,113.00

School Administration 266,799.52

BUSINESS
Operation & Maintenance & Plant $ 576,675.59

Pupil Transportation 141,842.58

Other Supporting Services 559,362.84

GENERAL FUND
Adult/Continuing Education

Facilities Acquisition & Construction

OTHER OUTLAYS
Debt Service

FEDERAL PROJECT FUNDS
Adult/Continuing Education

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Facilities Acquisition & Construction

FOOD SERVICE FUND
Food Service

$ 1,886.15

53,896.25

$ 438,485.25

$ 3,943.05

$ 1,949.44

$ 229,656.23

$2,726,973.44

$ 198,687.08

$ 136,696.97

$ 429,552.34

$1,277,881.01

$ 55,782.40

$ 438,485.25

$ 3,943.05

$ 1,949.44

$ 229,656.23

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $5,499,607.21
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Report of School District Treasurer

For the Fiscal Year July 1, 1987 to June 30, 1988

SUMMARY
CASH ON HAND JULY 1, 1987

Received from Selectmen

Revenue from State Sources

Received from Tuitions

Received from all Other Sources

TOTAL RECEIPTS

Total Amount Available for Fiscal Year

Less School Board Orders Paid

BALANCE ON HAND JUNE 30, 1987

$2,830,182.00

551,576.08

1,803,878.60

264,616.97

$ 241,334.44

$5,450,253.65

$5,691,588.09

5,622,196.18

$ 69,391.91

Helen Fryer

District Treasurer

Statistical Report for Pembroke Academy & Elementary
1987-1988

Half Days in Session

Enrollment

Percent of Attendance

Average Daily Attendance

Elementary Secondary Total

360 360

695 784 1,479

95.7 93.5 94.5

661.3 708.2 1,369.5

Superintendent's Salary

1987-1988

Allenstown $ 8,993.00

Chichester 4,347.00

Deerfield 7,337.00

Epsom 7,245.00

Pembroke 18,078.00

$46,000.00

Assistant Superintendent's

Salary 1987-1988

Allenstown $ 8,113.25

Chichester 3,921.75

Deerfield 6,619.25

Epsom 6,536.25

Pembroke 16,309.50

$41,500.00

Assistant Superintendent's

Salary 1987-1988

Allenstown $ 5,865.00

Chichester 2,835.00

Deerfield 4.785.00

Epsom 4.725.00

Pembroke 11,790.00

$30,000.00
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Pembroke School District

Bond Payment Schedule

Principle

Issue #1

Issue #2

Issue #3

Issue #4

Issue #5

May, 1963 Hill School ($140,000)

1989-90 $ 5,000
1990-91 (Final) 5,000

December, 1969 Hill School Addition ($150,000)

1990-91 (Final) $ 5,000

May, 1971 Pembroke Academy Addition ($780,000)

1989-90 $35,000
1990-91 (Final) 35,000

May, 1971 Pembroke Academy Addition ($780,000)

1989-90 $35,000
1990-91 (Final) 35,000

Original February, 1985 Hill School Addition ($1,845,000)

Refunding February, 1987 ($1,750,000)

1989-90 $95,000
1990-91 95,000

1991-92 95,000

1992-93 95,000

1993-94 95,000

1994-95 90,000

1995-96 90,000

1996-97 90,000

1997-98 90,000

1998-99 90,000

1999-00 90,000

2000-01 90,000

2001-02 90,000

2002-03 90,000

2003-04 90,000

2004-05 (Final) 90,000

Interest

$ 320

160

$ 156

$ 4,130

2,065

$ 3,780

1,890

$129,088

121,308

112,376

103,425

95,536

86,486

77,638

71,158

63,300

54,585

47,052

38,962

30,369

22,067

13,813

5,586
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Superintendent's Report

The future of school enrollment combined with State recommended elementary standards continue to be the

primary issues that are facing the Pembroke School Board and the school community in general. After last year's

defeat of the proposed middle school, the Pembroke School Board charged a School Study Committee with

reassessing the status of space needs of the Pembroke School District. The committee has met throughout the

fall and winter months. The Board has not received a report as of this writing, but one is expected in time for

the School District meeting. Members of the School Study Committee have worked very hard throughout the

year and on behalf of the Pembroke School Board, I would like to extend my appreciation to all the members

of the Committee for their time and effort in assisting the Board in deciding a course of action in dealing with

the space issues.

The teachers, principals and support staff of the Pembroke School District have been active in providing the

children of Pembroke with the very best in service and in program. Much time has been spent in the revision

and rewriting of the district's mathematics, science and foreign language curricula. Completed program reports

will be presented to the Pembroke School Board for adoption later this spring. The district has also continued

its efforts in reviewing guidance and counseling services and in dealing with the ever present problem of student

drop outs. I wish to express my appreciation to the teachers and staff of the Pembroke School District for their

superior effort directed toward the development and review of programs and for their genuine concern of the

children of Pembroke.

During 1988, the Pembroke School District and SAU #53 were fortunate in receiving several successful grant

applications. Monies from state and federal resources supported the purchase of computers, printers, software

and training for faculty along with the development of substance abuse awareness program and a drop out preven-

tion program. Grants for these various activities at the local and SAU level approached $115,000.

The Pembroke School District has joined other SAU #53 school districts in participating in the federally funded

Chapter I program. Students in grades one through eight are selected for tutorial assistance in reading and

mathematics based on achievement testing results and teacher recommendations. Pembroke's current allocation

of $24,614 funds three tutors along with the purchase of instructional and assessment materials. During 1988,

an extensive long-range planning study of Chapter I services was conducted. Representatives of all SAU #53

districts participated in gathering and analyzing data upon which future programmatic decisions will be based.

Chapter I provides valuable and worthwhile services to many of Pembroke's students.

Volunteerism is, once again, on the increase within the Pembroke School District. Citizen participation in an

organized form through PALS are in less formal form, such as periodic volunteerism, is one important factor

for the success of the schools. I thank all of you who have been involved in the schools and wish to encourage

others to participate. Please feel free to contact your school principal should you wish to become more active

in the schools.

The 1988 fall standardized tests scores show students in grades four, eight and ten scoring generally above

national averages once again. Specific areas of increase over last year's achievement results at the fourth and

eighth grade levels are in reading and social studies. Students at the tenth grade level continue to show high

achievement, specifically in the areas of science and study skills. In addition, students at the grade four and grade

eight levels have scored generally above their anticipated scores. Much time has been devoted to the analysis

of these tests scores for the purpose of program review and for program changes.
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As most of you know by now, the Pembroke School Board charged a screening committee to review the ap-

plications and to conduct interviews for the selection of a new headmaster. Mr. George Edwards was nominated
and was elected unanimously by the Pembroke School Board last April to serve as the new headmaster of Pem-
broke Academy. Mr. Edwards, most recently, was assistant principal at the Milford Area High School in Milford,

New Hampshire. He has had various successful teaching and administrative experiences during his career. Mr.

Edwards received a bachelor's degree in Social Studies from Keene State College and a master's degree in educa-

tional administration also from Keene State College. He is certified as a principal in the State of New Hampshire
and is indeed a most welcomed addition to the professional staff of Pembroke Academy.

I would like to express my most sincerest appreciation to Mrs. Roberta Doore for assuming the responsibilities

of interim headmaster for a period of eighteen months. Mrs. Doore performed her professional duties as interim

headmaster in a most professional and competent manner. Bobbie Doore has resumed her responsibilities as

department head of the business education program at Pembroke Academy.

I thank you for your continued support of the Pembroke School District and of the SAU #53 Office and I look

forward to working with you providing the very best education for the children of the Pembroke School District.

Respectfully submitted,

Paul DeMinico, Ed.D.

Superintendent of Schools
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Pembroke Academy Headmaster's Report 1988

This has been a year of change at Pembroke Academy, however at the same time many important things have

remained constant.

I was nominated as Headmaster of Pembroke Academy in April of 1988 and began my duties on July 1st. Mrs.

Doore, the Interim Headmaster, returned to her duties as Department Administrator for the Business, Home
Economics, Health and Computer Departments. I am very happy to have been chosen for this position and look

forward to serving Pembroke Academy.
Pembroke Academy students and staff began school, again this year, during the last week of August, with

great enthusiasm. We experienced a very successful opening of school with little of the expected confusion which
sometimes accompanies the first week. This was due in great part to the diligent work of students, parents and
the Pembroke Academy staff, especially the Guidance and Counseling staff who invested much time and effort

in the selection and scheduling of classes. Hours of hard work spent checking and double checking student

schedules by Ms. Jeannie Johnson and building the master schedule by Mr. Ron Rush contributed greatly to

the smooth opening of school.

The faculty and staff at Pembroke Academy has not changed a great deal in the past year. Only three staff

members: Mr. Russell Quinney, Ms. Kay Beaver and Mrs. Shirley Propper have left to pursue other professional

challenges. In addition Ms. Barbara Stamm is on a leave of absence and Mrs. Carol Ehmling has been selected

as Department Administrator of the Fine Arts Department. New teachers at Pembroke Academy include Mrs.

Bonnie Allen, Latin; Ms. Aubre Brogden, Art; Mrs. Emily Burr, Science; Mr. Richard Dutremble, Math/Com-
puter; Mrs. Joan Fossum, Home Economics; Ms. Joan Macfarlane, Librarian; Mr. John Munroe, Spanish; and
Mrs. Helen Roth, Special Education.

Improvements in the curriculum continues to be an ongoing process in every area at Pembroke Academy. We
are placing particular emphasis this year on Science, Foreign Language (which continues to grow in popularity

at Pembroke Academy) and the services of our Guidance and Counseling Department.

All students are now required to complete 100 credits of coursework to be eligible for graduation. These new
state standards have dramatically increased the number of classes students must complete and placed greater

emphasis on student achievement.

Pembroke Academy continues to be accredited by the New England Association of Schools and Colleges. This

year we reviewed the report of the visiting committee and responded with the progress we are making towards

implementing all of the recommendations. We are also fully approved as a high school by the State of New Hamp-
shire, Department of Education.

In June of 1988, 151 seniors graduated from Pembroke Academy with 33 of our students receiving Certificates

of Proficiency from the Concord Regional Vocational Center.

Pembroke Academy students continue to score above the national average in both the Math and Verbal sec-

tions of the SAT. The class of 1988 had an average score of 438 on the Math and 478 on the Verbal section of

the Scholastic Aptitude Test.

We continue to be concerned by factors which prevent students from reaching their full potential in school.

Many times these factors will lead to a student dropping out of school. Pembroke Academy is striving to prevent

this and help students succeed through a number of programs. JAGS, (Jobs for American Graduates) a program

which was started last year, continues to be very successful at working with students to help them find suc-

cessful employment and provide follow-up to ensure career development. This program has been supplemented

by a similar program (Opportunity Awareness) designed to work with younger students and district-wide research

to identify the factors which cause a student to drop out and further develop programs to help prevent students

from dropping out.

Drug and alcohol use and abuse are two other factors which affect students everywhere and Pembroke Academy
is no exception. Substance use and abuse directly and indirectly leads to many serious problems. Through the

help of Federal, State and local resources including grant money, we have developed several programs to assist

students who have problems related to substance use and abuse. We have also developed student counseling

and peer outreach programs to help students understand better the social and emotional pressures which are

a part of adolescence today.
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Once again we are fortunate enough to have international exchange students studying at Pembroke Academy.
There are students from Germany, Sweden and Venezuela at Pembroke Academy this year sharing their culture,

language and customs. Our students also have the opportunity to travel the world through school approved
trips. This spring students have traveled to England and Quebec on trips sponsored and chaperoned by our faculty.

Co-curricular activities continue to be an active and exciting part of student life at Pembroke Academy. Students

have a wide variety of activities from which to choose. From the Key Club to Student Senate and FBLA to Na-
tional Honor Society there are activities representing many student interests. Significant student achievements

included award winning and published writing, participation in youth leadership seminars, state elected student

officials, a successful Thanksgiving dinner for senior citizens, student selection to All State music and drama
groups and student participation in the summer honors program at St. Paul's School.

Our Horticulture students were commended by Governor Sununu for their work with the propagation of the

state flower, the lilac. The Quiz Bowl team had an excellent season of competition progressing to the second

round of the Granite State Challenge and placing high against top New England schools in the Hanover Round-
Robin Quiz Bowl Competition.

The Whittemore Chapter of the National Honor Society inducted seven new members this year and one stu-

dent was named as a National Merit Scholarship semi-finalist. Students displayed their talents at the Christa

McAuliffe Education Festival and one student was recognized for her contribution in the Voice of Democracy
Essay Contest.

Pembroke Academy athletics has enjoyed continued success measured both through participation and ac-

complishments. Participation was good in all sports and each team played competitively. We competed in Girls'

Varsity Soccer for the first time this year and narrowly missed qualifying for the tournament. The Boys' Varsity

Basketball, Boys' Varsity Soccer and Girls' Varsity Field Hockey teams qualified for the Class I state tournament

with the soccer team advancing to the second round. First time since 1976.

Student Senate has experienced a resurgence this year by sponsoring 2 highly successful blood drives, a voter

registration drive and becoming much more involved in issues related to students and school.

We were fortunate to benefit from the generous donation of community members during the past year. Mr.

Charles Whittemore donated a beautiful signed and numbered print of Christa McAuliffe, and Mrs. Diana Prescott

donated a pottery kiln and supplies to the Art Department. The Four Girls' Memorial Fund received funds as

the beneficiaries of the estate of the late Mrs. Shirley Ryan of Pembroke. This can be used to continue improving

the library at Pembroke Academy.
This past year has also been one of challenges. With measles disrupting a part of the school year, field trips

and athletic events had to be rescheduled. A vaccination clinic was held to inoculate students who were suscepti-

ble to the illness. We were also confronted by challenges of need in the community and our school family responded

by helping to provide the necessities for those in need.

I'm sure you can see, it has been a very busy year for us at Pembroke Academy. I would like to thank the

people of Pembroke for their continued support of education and Pembroke Academy. I would also like to thank

the staff at SAU ^63 for helping to make this busy year run more smoothly. I am very appreciative to the Pem-

broke School Board for their support and their confidence in allowing me to serve the community. I am also

very appreciative to the students and staff of Pembroke Academy for the pride they have shown in the school

and their commitment to making Pembroke Academy a great school. Finally, I would like to express my gratitude

to Mrs. Roberta Doore for her thoughtful, patient and tireless dedication to Pembroke Academy, especially through

this time of change and challenge.

Respectfully submitted,

George H. Edwards
Headmaster
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Pembroke High Street School

Principal's Report 1988

Education at Pembroke High Street School continues to focus on basic academic skills while providing varied

opportunities and assistance for interested students. Teachers begin the year by working with students on study

skills. Students learned how to set up an assignment book, how to take notes, how to study, etc. Throughout

the year, teachers continue to work with students on these skills and others that are important for success in

school. We try to help students accept responsibility for their own learning.

Teachers in the regular subject areas (math, science, French, reading, English, social studies) work to help

students progress as far as they can. Students are helped to maximize their potential and to accomplish as much
as they can. Much of the teaching involves students in activities, which help them to retain what they learned.

When students are having difficulty with their academics, they are able to find ample assistance. Teachers pro-

vide students with extra help in class or after school. Teachers work as a team and regularly communicate about

ways to help students. Special Education classes and assistance are available for students having special learning

needs. Frequent communication with all parents ensures good school-home contact. Reports go home to parents

every four weeks, and parent-teacher conferences are held in the fall and spring.

Students in grades 6-8 are passing through a very critical period of their lives. The change from childhood

to adolescence is a tremendously important time of life, and it can also be very difficult. Students are changing

physically, mentally, socially, and emotionally. They need to cope with many issues in order to be able to suc-

cessfully focus on academics. Every student at the High Street School has an advisor, a teacher who "knows"
that student. Students and advisors meet together weekly in a small group, in addition to the class time spent

together. School related issues are discussed frequently.

Our counseling program offers a variety of services. All students meet in scheduled classes with our guidance

counselor to cover important topics. Individual and group counseling are ongoing facets of the program. Special

groups made up of students with common concerns meet as needed with the counselor.

Opportunities for student involvement in the school are many. We have a variety of interscholastic athletic

sport teams, intramural sports, and musical activities for student participation. Also offered are art, drama, math,

and skiing clubs. The math club is our newest club. Students from all grades are eligible to join and participate

in math competitions with schools in five other area towns. The meets provide students the opportunity to use

their math skills and to meet students from other schools.

Students are encouraged to be involved in writing activities through our literary magazine and student

newspaper. Many of our students have excellent writing skills and enjoy having an outlet for their work.

Our mock trial activity has been very popular with students. The New Hampshire Bar Association conducts

a competition each winter for interested schools. A trial transcript is provided. Students take part and act out

the trial in front of a student jury. The trial is video taped and then judged by lawyers. In addition students

attend a real trial and learn the basics of courtroom procedures. They film their trial in an actual courtroom.

Two experiential programs offer students the opportunity to use their interest in science. Seventh and eighth

grade students participate in the Hoating Lab Project through the University of New Hampshire. These students

study the ocean and then go out on a boat to conduct experiments. Sixth grade students "experience" science

by spending a week at an outdoor education camp in Maine.

We have expanded our involvement in the New Hampshire Artists in Residence Program. Through a successful

grant application, we have been able to have two professional, practicing artists visit our school to work with

students. For ten weeks in the fall a poet (Jim Kates) worked with students on their writing. In the spring a potter

(Kathy Hanson) worked with students.

Our computer program continues to grow. All students are regularly scheduled into computer classes throughout

their three years at the High Street Schools. Successful completion of the three year course will enable students

to meet the state minimum competency requirement for high school students before entering ninth grade. Many
students are proficient on the computer and use the computers not only for required classes, but also for their

writing and course work.
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We continue to examine certain curriculum areas each year. This examination helps us to see how well we
are doing in particular areas and to update what we cover, what materials we use, and how we teach that sub-

ject. This year the focus is on science and french. A committee comprised of teachers from grades K-12 examine

the topics covered and materials and methods used in teaching those topics. The examination results in a written

curriculum describing the various skills and knowledge students should cover at each grade level.

Staff at the Pembroke High Street School is very committed to offering the best possible program for students.

They are devoted to providing an excellent academic program, as well as helping students to do their best. The
quality program at High Street reflects the concern of staff for every student's involvement and success. Staff

also works hard in areas such as curriculum development, grant writing, school improvement committees, and
self-improvement

.

I would like to thank Dr. Paul DeMinico, our superintendent, and the staff of the Central Office for their en-

couragement and advice. I also want to thank members of our School Board, parents, and community members
for their support of education in Pembroke.

Respectfully submitted,

Allen Zipke, Principal

The staff at Pembroke High Street School for 1987-88 is listed below:

Amy Buckingham
Sue Jenna

Betty Petit

Mary Campbell-Wenig

Lesley Masters

Carolyn Lis

Richard Onufry
Maureen McGarrigle

Julia Fuller

Jackie Leathers

Cyrene Wells

Sue Huppi
Duke Jones

Jonathan Marston

John Farese

Kathy Weisiger

Nancy Lofstrand

Carolyn Patterson

Sixth grade

Sixth grade

Sixth grade

Science

Math/Science

Math/Social Studies

Social Studies

English

English/Enrichment

English/French

Reading

Art

Music

Physical Ed. /Health

Counselor

Librarian

Nurse
Secretary

SPECIAL EDUCATION
Loretta Hill, Resource

Kathy Wilson, Res. /Trans.

Denise Getts, Chapter I

Emily Haywood, Speech

INSTRUCTIONAL AIDES
John Fraser

Joan Gendron
Debbie Hayes
Pat Ingerson

Connie Landry

Donna Quinzani

Sharon Morris

CUSTODIANS
Claude Culberson

Rene Letendre

Harry Dean
LUNCHROOM PERSONNEL
Jeannine Nagie

Teresa Torres
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Pembroke Hill School

Principal's Report 1988

August 30, 1988, 600 students arrived at Pembroke Hill for the 1988-89 School year. It has been a yearly increase

of 35-50 new students across the 6 grade levels. While 80 of the 600 students comprise our kindergarten, only

40 of them are in the building at one time, making up 4 sections, 2 in the morning and 2 in the afternoon.

The kindergarten program has been extremely successful for your children. I have never seen children adjust

so readily to the school environment. When the children arrive at school, they are walked to their classrooms,

by student volunteers. This has been a very positive process for the children. I would like to publicly say thank

you to Matthew Baron and Heather Provencal for volunteering to help our youngsters go from the bus to the

classroom each day.

Kindergarten teachers, Mrs. Cotter and Mrs. Plourde, and their aides, Mrs. Shea and Mrs. Sica, have worked
extremely well together to provide your children with a program that has helped them through many phases

of their development. The kindergarten program has been based on the development of children rather than

strong academics. Our school philosophy encourages this approach, so children will learn at their own rate of

development and be ready for what they are learning.

I would like to briefly explain that the kindergarten program has not been the cause of our building reaching

its capacity. The growth in our population 2 years ago made it necessary to purchase a modular building for

music and art, both areas are important to children's development. With music being offered in a classroom next

to a regular classroom, both programs had to be somewhat limited, due to the noise from music. Therefore, when
we moved music to the modular building, we recommended that the art program be housed there also, to pro-

vide us some expansion within the building. At that time, art was a half day program in our building. The art

room became a resource room at that time.

When we realized the need for a kindergarten program, we relocated many of ancillary services within the

building to some of our smaller areas and opened up some storage areas. Those services include enrichment,

occupational therapy, Chapter I and special education classes. These programs are still providing superior ser-

vices to your children. Readiness teachers, Lorry Gagne and Marilyn Wolf, were able to see the value of

kindergarten and felt very qualified to provide the readiness program in the art area. At the present time, we
have two readiness classes in the art space and children are very happy and quality education is continuing.

As we approach the 89-90 school year we shall once again face the space problem we had two years ago. But

at this time we have made use of all our little spaces. Next year we will need an additional third grade classroom

and fifth grade classroom. This is to provide for the present enrollment in grades two and four.

The educational program at Pembroke Hill presently meets all but two of the minimum State standards. One
is in the area of library materials and by next year this standard will be met. The other is the area of a reading

specialist. This standard needs to be met by 1990.

While State standards do recommend class size to be twenty-five for students in grades one and two, and thir-

ty in grades three-five, it has been the philosophy of the Pembroke School Board to keep the maximum number
of students per class at twenty-two. This philosophy is based on the fact that many youngsters with special needs

are mainstreamed into our classrooms and this class size provides teacher and students the time to provide the

kind of attention and program our children need.

Our teachers continue to be active in workshops and the development of curriculum. The science curriculum

is presently being reviewed. We are implementing the math curriculum that was reviewed last year. The language

arts committee continues their work on the writing process. The kindergarten, readiness and grade one staff

are reviewing all curriculum areas.
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Students continue to be involved in various programs. Our fifth grade students adopted the kindergarten pro-

gram and have done various projects and activities together. Some of our third graders read to the readiness

children, and some of our readiness children read to the older children. The first graders once again made their

gingerbread house that was raffled off by the library to those children who did not have overdue books. The
second graders held their annual Thanksgiving feast. Fourth graders had a play and feast that was the culmina-

tion of a unit in their reading program. Fifth graders presented a play during the holiday season. Students in

the transition room have put together a newspaper. In spite of a long season of no snow our kindergarten and
readiness children did get the opportunity to go cross country skiing on our play area.

Sixty students in grades four and five participated in the ski program at Pats Peak for five weeks. During this

time the other students participated in mini units of mammal tracking, string art, poetry, crafts and sewing.

This year we started a student council. The students in grades four and five are the core representatives for

the student body. The officers for the remainder of this year are: President, Sarah Martin; Vice President, Molly

Gignac; Secretary, Lindsay Zeaman and Treasurer, Susan Thompson. This Board along with their representatives

from each fourth and fifth grade classroom meet twice a week. Their goals this year are to have some fund raisers,

a school store, a yearbook and help out in the library, office and nurse's office. They are a very active group

and I am sure will discuss many issues as the year progresses.

I would like to thank your entire staff for their work and concern for your children. Children at Pembroke
Hill are very creative, challenging, hard working, happy and going to be excellent citizens as they continue to

grow and develop. It is the dedication of our staff that provides them with the environment and challenges to

become all they are capable of.

I would like to thank Mrs. Suzanne Whitbeck, transportation coordinator and bus drivers, Joy Barker, Linda

Beaudoin, Gordon Blais, Linda Haggett, Pat Houle, Patsy Malo, Margaret Myers and Kathy Olivier for their dedica-

tion and concern. These people have been very supportive of our children and strive to make their experience

on getting to and from school as safe and happy as possible.

A special thank you to Linda Johanson for coordinating our volunteer program. Linda and Clair Loiselle, teacher,

have worked closely to assist our teachers and students with mentors from the community to help with addi-

tional services in our classrooms.

Thank you to Cindy Little and Janet Dumas for their support of our PALS program. These people continued

to operate our program until the new coordinator, Mary Destefano took over in January. We look forward to

the continuing support of our PALS program within our school.

I would like to say thank you to Dr. Paul DeMinico and his office staff, Mr. Tom Haley, Mr. Jack Henderson,

Ms. Janet Snyder, Ms. Kathy Conlin and Ms. Meg Stone for their continued support of all programs at Pembroke

Hill.

Thank you to the Pembroke School Board for their continued support and caring for all the children and the

staff at our school. It is their dedication that is the key to our being able to provide your children with such a

quality and current educational program.

Last, but not least, thank you parents and Pembroke citizens for your encouragement and support of your

children.
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Principal

Eleanor Harriger

Assistant Principal

Suzanne Whitbeck

Secretary

Dianne Morrissette

Clerical Aide
Barbara Severance

Kindergarten

Nancy Cotter

Cindy Plourde

Moneta Shea, Aide

Jean Sica, Aide

Readiness

Lorry Gagne
Claire Loiselle

Marilyn Wolf

Grade 1

Susan Carignan

Susan Cassidy

Ginger Lister

Nancy Murphy
Marge Poznanski

Grade 2

Judy DeFelice

Crystal Dubois

Robin Erskine

Sheila Lugg
Anna Varsalone

Grade 3

Nancy Beaudry

Carol Lanseigne

Beverly Sarapin

Sandy Valine

Grade 4

Betty Cate

Lucy Constantine

Sophie Guiliano

Judy Todd

Grade 5

Pat Gaynor
Julie Raduazo
Nancy Vaughn

Custodians

Annette Vezina

Brent Michiels

Frank Stone

Armand Rondeau

Support Staff

Jean Briggs, Chapter I

Lisa Colpitts, Resource Room
Nancy Earley, Speech

Kristin Gesen, Physical Education

Ellen Hayes, Music

Emily Haywood, Speech
Kathy Hering, Transition

Carolyn Libby, Transition

JoAnn Menard, Enrichment

Katy O'Gorman, Art

Kevin Wason, Guidance

Kathleen Weisiger, Librarian

Kathryn Wickson, Chapter I

Aides

Debbie Charron

Hazel Duguay, Bus Aide
Pauline Ginn
Susan Laroche

Laura Loiselle, Special Education

Lisa Menard
Helen Scarola

School Lunch Program
Dorothy Townsend
Florence Loven
Sandra Connolly

Karen Rogers

Bus Drivers

Joy Barker

Linda Beaudoin

Gordon Blais

Linda Haggett

Pat Houle
Patsy Malo
Margaret Myers
Kathy Olivier

Respectfully submitted,

Eleanor Harriger

Principal
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Pembroke Annual Report of

School Health Services for

Pembroke Academy

1987-88

Report of Local Medical Services NUMBER
Pupils Examined 112

Report of School Nurse-Teacher

Vision Tests 300

Hearing Tests 300

Heights 609

Weights 609

First Aid 2419

Complaints 3224

Blood Pressure 375

Medications 137

Ishehera's Test for Color Blindness 207

VACCINATIONS & COMMUNICABLE DISEASES
Communicable
Chicken Pox 1

Measles 2

Conjunctivitis 28

Strep 31

Mononucleosis 17

Impetigo 1

DEFECTS FOUND BY SCHOOL NURSE-TEACHER
Number seen or treated

Number by Family Physician

Vision 10 10

Clinics and Special Referrals No. Children Treated

Measles Clinic 5/04/88 169

5/20/88 166

Dr. Paul Shaw
Examining Physician

Shirley Mitchell, R.N.

School Nurse-Teacher

Pembroke Annual Report of

School Health Services for

Pembroke Elementary and
Pembroke Hill

1987-88

SPORTS PHYSICALS-by Gary A. Sobelson, MD &
Gretchen Coughlin, A.R.N. P.

Boys: 25 Girls: 36

Vision 690

Hearing 696

Inspections 1298

Height 709

Weight 709

Blood Pressure 144

First Aid 800

Complaints 935

Home Visits 287
Medications 1309

DEFECTS FOUND BY SCHOOL NURSE-TEACHER
Number of Number

Cases
Vision 13

Hearing/IMPEDANCE 35

Scalp 37
Skin 2

Posture 6

Helped for Vision Correction 4

Helped for Health Problems 2

Helped for Dental Care 6

COMMUNICABLE DISEASES
Chicken Pox
Pediculosis

Strep Throat

Scarlet Fever

Conjunctivitis

Ringworm

Treated

11

35

37
2

6

2

37
47

6

5

1

IMMUNIZATION CLINICS BY CONCORD V.N.A.
& PEMBROKE WOMEN'S CLUB

DPT/DT 11

Polio

MMR 1

DENTAL HEALTH GRADES R-8
Dental Cleaning & Flouride 76

Scoliosis Screening 219

Impedance Screening 383

Pre-School Registrations

Respectfully Submitted,

Geraldine R. Perron, R.N., B.A.

School Nurse-Teacher
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Graduates of Pembroke Academy 1988

Allenstown
Charles Andrews
Michael Auger
Karen Battistelli

James Bean
Jerri Beauchesne
Brigitte Bergeron
Donald Berube
Marcia Bilodeau

Stacey Boisseau

Dan Bouffard

Lee Ann Breton

Stephen Clement
Laurianne Demers
Lisa Marie DiVitto

Edwards Fay
Kevin Fleury

Carrie Forcier

Scot Frechett

Matthew Gage
Christine Gauthier
Lisa Gelinas

Vanessa Gonzalez
James Goodnow
Michael Goodnow
Leonard Guest
Dana Hamel
Robert Holland
Anthony Johnson
Amy Juranty

Lee Ann LaBelle

Robin Lockhart
Tammie MacDearmid
Angela McQueen
Kevin Messing
James Nadeau
Judith O'Brien
Robert O'Leary
Karen Pevear
Robert Prince

Bernice Rowell
Lorie Sabean
Eric Strazze

Shawn Theriault

Michelle Therrien

Tracy Venne
Ann-Marie Welch

Chichester

Donna Anderson
Shawn Boisvert

Daniel Carter

Francis Cavanaugh
Jeffery Cushman
Brenda Dykstra

Brian Gamache
Martha Lienhart

Jennifer Mayville

James Mihachik
Daniel Randall

Eric Rauscher
Kristine Solberg

Naomi Wallenstein

James Wilber

Robert Williams, III

Deerfield

Michael Bugnacki
Marianne Hirn
Martina Stefanits

Epsom
Steven Auger
Keith Bachelder

Cathy Berry

Marcel Biron

Tracie Briggs

Sheri Brown
Lori Caron
Kirsten Carter

Scott Colby
Kerry Harman
Michelle Henderson
April Hobart
Joseph Jankauskas
Kurt Lomartire

Eric MacArthur
Amy Miner
Jennifer Miner
Tracey Moran
Edward O'Brien

Stacey O'Dell

Jennifer Parrott

Eric Paul

Jeffery Preve

Jon Redmond
Tricia Reeves
Nelson Sanchez
Avery Severance

Joshua Sheehy
Roger Thibeault

Brenda Lee Trask

Sheri Tully

Melynda Turcotte

Shannon Walsh
Robert Whitcomb

Pembroke
Jodi Abbott

Sandra Abbott
Michael Arbo
William Bell

Robert Bellen

Robert Bergeron
Bonny Blake

William Boomhower
Pamela Brown
Gregory Burbank
Burton Burkholder
Eric Carter

Lisa Champagne
Steven Chapman
Michael Chase
Merideth Courtemanche
Tracy Culberson
Jeffrey Darby
Michelle Davie

John Demers
Denise Dwyer
Jad Flewelling

Donald Fuller

Gary Gaskell

Pamela Gendron
Wilhelm Gertz

Christine Girard

Jakob Hansen
Brent Harden
Renee Hebert
Dwayne Hopps
Tricia Johnston
Heidi Jolin

Richard LaFratta

Jessica LaFrazia

Christina Landry
Timothy Laughlin

Deborah LeBlanc

Renee LeBlanc

Marcel Ledoux, III

Denise Martel

Christopher Millette

Steven Nadeau
Ronald Noel
Jennifer Palmer
William Palmer
Katherine Phillips

Jean Plante

Tami Porter

Catherine Roy
Frederick Slama
Rhonda Smith
Kristen Thompson
Roland Verville

Joey Wheeler
Carl Wiswell
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Pembroke High Street School 1988 Graduates

Kirsten Allgeyer

Edward Andrews
Joshua Annis

Joyce Armstrong
Paula Beauchain

Holly-Ann Beauregard

Lisa Beauregard

Shane Belanger

Matheu Bernard

Jessica Blanchard

Tina Bouffard

Robert Burns, III

Kimberly Cain

Dina Callery

Tanja Carlsson

Patrick Carter

Paul Chardbourne
Christina Chase

Ann Marie Connor
Frank Corente

Wade Courtemanche
Daniel Currier

Brandy Daviault

Ernest Dwyer
Darci Ford

Timothy Ford

Elaine Garon
Amy Gignac

Matthew Greco

Kristine Green
Gregory Grueneigh

Michelle Hagemeyer
Heather Hartford

Timothy Hickey

Nicholas Isaia

Nathan Jacobs

Christopher Jordan

Lynn Kelble

Andrew Lakowicz

Jeffrey Lamy
Trisha Laroche

Christopher Larson

Jennifer Leavitt

Richard LeBlanc, Jr.

Michelle Ledoux
Jessica Lefabvre

Suzanne Letendre

Rochelle Lofstrand

Michael Martin

Jamie McCarthy
Jeremy McCormack
Debra Miner

Brian Montmarquet
Alycia Morris

David Morvan

Kandi Mudge
Michael Neunenfeldt

Aaron Nolin

Kristine Olivier

Jennifer Palmer-Johnson

Mary Parent

Katherine Paulsen

Jodie Pepin

Philip Percy

Daniel Plante

Suzanne Poggi

Gregory Prestage

Kristie Preve

Cassandra Rochon
Chris Rodgers

Christopher Sammon
Khamsouk Sengphachanch

Tory Serafin

Jennifer Severance

Belinda Shattuck

Erik Smith

Joseph Smith

Debra Theroux

Beth Thompson
Kiley Thompson
Kristine Timmons
Margaret Wells

Bryan Woody
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Pembroke Academy Teacher Roster 1988-1989

GRADE/SUBJECT NAME SALARIES DEGREE
YEARS

EXPERIENCE

Latin Allen Bonnie $12,397.00 BA 6

Social Studies Annis, Roy 25,165.00 BA+20 12

English Barnea, Anne M. 18,675.00 BA+12 3

Horticulture Bates, Jeanne 22,900.00 BA 10

Drafting Bonaceto, Arthur 25,165.00 BA+32 18

English Bonnett, Ronald 19,999.00 BA+3 5

Art Brogden, Aubre 24,762.00 MA 8

Liaison Teacher Brousseau, Deborah 22,648.00 M.Ed. +6 6

Biology Brown, Janine 8,280.32 MA +16 5

Science Burr, Emily 11,205.00 BA 3

English Cantara, Francoise 25,165.00 BA 13

English Christiansen, Allyn 25,795.00 BA+21 20

Industrial Arts Czarnosz, Jr., John 25,165.00 BA+15 15

Guidance Couns. Dolphin, Michael 27,688.00 MA +25 12

Math/Computer Dutremble, Richard 17,067.00 BA
Social Studies Duval, Denise 20,662.00 BA 7

Math Edgecomb, Donald 26,165.00 BA+30 27
School Couns. Foreman, Corinne 27,126.00 M.Ed. 16

Home Economic Fossum, Joan 18,659.45 MA 4

Home Ec. Frangione, Barbara 24,478.00 BA+15 14

Industrial Arts Frechette, Leon 26,165.00 BA+16 24

Business Gardner, Claire 25,108.00 BA 20

Social Studies Gardner, William 25,795.00 BA+20 20
Spanish Gresham, Carole 22,900.00 BA+6 9

Speech Ther. Haywood, Emily 6,190.50 MA 9

Phys. Education Hutchinson, Susan 18,076.00 BA 3

Math Johnson, Jeannie 19,999.00 BA+3 6

Music Jones, Duke 15,497.50 BA 7

Business Kazakavich, Judith 25,165.00 BA+18 21

Science Kelly, David 21,987.00 M.Ed. 4
Math Knapp, Thomas 21,324.00 BA & BS 8

Science Lamos, Susan 14,994.00 MA 7

Librarian Macfarlane, Joan 28,592.00 MA 11

Math McFall, Elizabeth 23,588.00 BA+21 11

French Mehegan, Peter 22,800.00 BA+18 9

English Miknaitis, Roger 22,800.00 BA+24 9
Foreign Lang. Munroe, John 27,688.00 MA +16 11

Rem. Reading/Math Palisi, Robert 23,689.00 BA 10%
Phys. Ed./Sc. Pickering, Richard 17,476.00 BA 1

Chem. /Physics Ray, Donna 16,276.00 MS 15

Science Riel, Cleon 22,800.00 BA+29 9

Resource Room Roth, Helen 18,675.00 BA 3

Home Ec. /Health St.Martin, Virginia 20,125.00 MA 1

English Sharp, Kenneth 24,478.00 BA 16

Sp. Education Smith, Nancy 22,900.00 BA+3 10

English Space, David 25,165.00 BA+12 20
Social Studies Steenbergen, Arnold 26,165.00 BA+51 25 Vz

Industrial Arts Tucker, David 25,795.00 BA+18 21

Math Vaitkunas, Jane 27,688.00 MA +30 13

Science Wallace, Mark 27,688.00 MA +30 14

Business Watts, Joanne 23,973.00 MA +2 7

Eng./Soc. Stud. Wescott, Lloyd 24,478.00 BA 21
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YEARS
GRADE/SUBJECT NAME SALARIES DEGREE EXPERIENCE

Reading Yeaton, Nancy 28,126.00 MA +6 27

Math (3/5) Zeaman, Jacqueline 13,740.00 BA 9

Administrators

Phys. Education Cloe, Edward 27,423.76 BA+2 21

Art Ehmling, Carol 26,310.00 MA 7

Math Ellis, Arthur 31,483.76 BA+20 20

Science Frye, Harry 35,251.28 MA 23

Hum. Leader Hodgdon, David 35,105.93 MA +18 13

Business Doore, Roberta 36,807.12 MA +17 21

Career/Voc. Director Rush, Ronald 37,375.36 MA +17 25

Guidance Wrightington, Donald 30,192.00 MA 27

Nurse Mitchell, Shirley 16,095.52 RN 13

Asst. Headmaster Kelly, George 38,296.00 MA 32

Headmaster Edwards, George 42,000.00 MA

Pembroke High Street Teacher Roster 1988-1989

YEARS
GRADE/SUBJECT NAME SALARIES DEGREE EXPERIENCE

Intermediate Buckingham, Amy $18,076.00 BA 3

Science Campbell, Mary 18,076.00 BA 3

Art Huppi, Susan 25,549.00 BA+30 10

Intermediate Jenna, Susan 19,999.00 BA 6

Music Jones, Duke 5,165.00 BA 7

French/English Leathers, Jacqueline 18,763.00 BA+15 3

Math/Science Lis, Carolyn 25,108.00 BA+8 17

Phys. Education Marston, Jonathan 21,324.00 BA 8

Math/Science Masters, Lesley 25,165.00 BA+15 14

English McGarrigle, Maureen 27,756.00 MA 18

English Neibrief, Julia 10,993.50 MA 5

Social Studies Onufry, Richard 21,349.00 BA+15 7

Intermediate Petit, Elizabeth 27,126.00 BA+26 12

Reading Wells, M. Cyrene 20,125.00 MA 2

Speech Ther. Haywood, Emily 12,381.00 MA 9

Resource Room Hill, Loretta 19,999.00 BA 6

Special Education Persichetti, Cynthia 22,113.00 BA 8

Resource Room Wilson, Kathleen 25,549.00 BA+15 10

Guidance Couns. Farese, John 22,648.00 MA 6

Nurse Lofstrand, Nancy 7,243.00 RN 23

Principal Zipke, Allen 40,606.00 CAGS 19
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Pembroke Hill School Teacher Roster 1988-1989

YEARS
GRADE/SUBJECT NAME SALARIES DEGREE EXPERIENCE

Elementary Beaudry, Nancy $26,165.00 BA+24 29

Elementary Carignan, Susan 17,067.00 BA 1

Elementary Cassidy, Susan 22,113.00 BA 9

Elementary Cate, Betty 23,973.00 MA 8

Elementary Constantine, Lucille 19,716.00 MA 1

Elementary Cotter, Nancy 27,126.00 MA 14

Elementary DeFelice, Judy 25,795.00 BA+15 18

Elementary Dubois, Crystal 19,338.00 BA 5

Elementary Erskine, Robin 19,338.00 BA 5

Elementary Gagne, Loretta 25,795.00 BA+5 17

Elementary Gaynor, Patricia 25,165.00 BA 14

Phys. Education Gesen, Kristin 18,076.00 BA 3

Elementary Guiliano, Sophie 26,165.00 BA+23 21

Music Hayes, Ellen 19,999.00 BA 6

Elementary Lanseigne, Carol 19,999.00 BA 6

Elementary Lister, Virginia 24,762.00 MA 9

Elementary Loiselle, Claire 24,478.00 BA 14

Elementary Lugg, Sheila 25,795.00 BA+39 25

Elementary Murphy, Nancy 22,113.00 BA 9

Art O'Gorman, Kathleen 20,662.00 BA 6

Elementary Plourde, Cindy 18,076.00 BA 2

Elementary Poznanski, Margaret 24,762.00 BA+15 9

Elementary Raduazo, Julie 22,900.00 BA 10

Elementary Sarapin, Beverly 25,165.00 BA+15 15

Elementary Todd, Judith 22,900.00 BA+6 10

Elementary Valine, Sandra 18,675.00 BA 3

Elementary Varsalone, Anna 22,113.00 BA 10

Elementary Vaughn, Nancy 25,108.00 BA 19

Elementary Wolf, Marilyn 26,165.00 BA+20 34
Resource Room Colpitts, Elizabeth 17,067.00 BA 1

Speech Ther. Earley, Nancy 20,662.00 BA 7

Speech Ther. Haywood, Emily 6,190.50 MA 9

Resource Room Hering, Kathleen 26,338.00 MA 10

Special Education Libby, Carolyn 18,076.00 BA 2

Guidance Wason, Kevin 23,872.00 MA 6
Nurse Lofstrand, Nancy 7,342.00 RN
Librarian Weisiger, Kathleen 25,165.00 BA+20 20
Principal Harriger, Eleanor 40,606.00 M.Ed. 31
Asst. Principal Whitbeck, Suzanne 31,000.00
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Pembroke Marriages 1988

Date Place Names Residence Birthdate Birthplace Officiant

Jan. 02 Bedford Russell D. Harvey, in Pembroke 04-28-58 Massachusetts Edward J. Osborne
Diane E. McCabe Bedford 06-03-58 Maryland Justice of the Peace

Jan. 02 Hooksett Michael J. McGranaghan Pembroke 08-06-47 New Hampshire Donald F. Jennings
Shirley A. Pierce Pembroke 03-29-41 Massachusetts Clergy

Feb. 06 Concord Timothy E. Yaw Concord 11-21-58 Mississippi James A. Batten

Leslie A. Fryer Pembroke 01-25-65 New Hampshire Methodist Minister

Feb. 14 Manchester Frank A. Indyk Pembroke 10-07-68 Kansas Nancy Grant
Kimberly A. Palmer Pembroke 01-14-70 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

Feb. 20 Concord Scott P. Levesque Manchester 07-28-65 New Hampshire James A. Batten

Jennie C. Maguire Pembroke 06-02-65 New Hampshire Methodist Minister

Feb. 22 Concord Steven L. Beck Pembroke 11-14-54 New Hampshire John I. Johnson
Marymargaret Anne Knight Pembroke 10-27-64 Florida Clergyman

Feb. 25 Pembroke Buel Wayne Knott Pembroke 08-27-45 Oklahoma Barbara G. Mayhew
Cindy A. Clark Pembroke 12-28-57 Massachusetts Justice of the Peace

Feb. 27 Pembroke Dean B. Corliss Vermont 10-10-50 Vermont Barbara Freeman
Laurie A. Ryan Vermont 10-09-59 Vermont Justice of the Peace

Feb. 27 Pembroke William H. Crowley Pembroke 09-03-36 New Hampshire Louise A. Kathan
Claire M. Mills Pembroke 02-23-57 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

Feb. 29 Pembroke Roland N. Devoe Pembroke 09-23-65 Massachusetts Jimmy J. Muhnisky
Linda L. Lapointe Pembroke 02-28-68 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

Mar. 04 Portsmouth Scott Hilliard Black Pembroke 02-10-62 New York Michel E. Couret
Florence H. Joffroy Connecticut 04-23-65 France Justice of the Peace

Mar. 05 Concord Manuel D. Mariani Pembroke 08-14-51 Germany Christina M. Pollock

Pauline A. Sumbillo Pembroke 02-26-50 Maine Justice of the Peace

Apr. 09 Manchester Peter J. Hutchins Pembroke 12-17-71 New Hampshire Rev. David L. Shreve
Kristine I. Simoneau Pembroke 07-21-71 New Hampshire Licensed Minister

Apr. 16 Concord Joseph R. McLoughlin Pembroke 11-19-58 Rhode Island Rev. James A. Riel

Catherine A. Russell Pembroke 01-24-63 Rhode Island Roman Catholic Priest

Apr. 30 Pembroke Norman R. Baird Pembroke 01-19-55 Vermont Mark W. Emery
Faith B. Nadeau Pembroke 05-23-52 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

May 07 Manchester Donald H. Nichols Pembroke 11-21-51 Massachusetts Henry A. Beairsto

Theresa P. Jacques Manchester 12-30-63 New Hampshire Reverend

May 14 Pembroke Steven A. Goupil Pembroke 11-07-62 New Hampshire Rev. Eugene J. Pelletier

Janeen E. Hammar Pembroke 12-18-62 New Hampshire Roman Catholic Priest

May 17 Pembroke Glenn J. Petruzzi Pembroke 10-13-50 New York Patrick W. Keeler

Pamela S. Smith Pembroke 04-22-52 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

May 21 Bradford Richard A. Cansler Pembroke 06-06-54 New Hampshire Rev. Robert Washer
Linda K. Cilley Jones Concord 08-04-52 New Hampshire Minister

May 27 Shelburne William W. Caswell, II Pembroke 07-18-60 Massachusetts Edward J. Reichert

Carol L. Hills Pembroke 03-23-60 Maine Justice of the Peace

May 27 Pembroke Michael P. John Pembroke 04-25-50 New Hampshire Fred G. French, Jr.

Lorraine I. Cote Pembroke 07-15-53 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

May 28 Pembroke James H. Burgan Pembroke 03-05-52 New York Louise A. Kathan

Michelle M. Theriault Pembroke 02-07-57 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

May 28 Pembroke Gregory J. Mossinghoff Virginia 02-13-61 Montana William R. Keeffe

Sandra L. Marshall Pembroke 05-22-61 New Hampshire Pastor

May 28 Berlin George E. Devoid, Jr. Pembroke 07-06-60 New Hampshire Alan Schaffmeyer

Deborah L. Lowe Pembroke 05-30-64 New Hampshire Pastor

May 28 Pembroke Robert A. Maker Pembroke 03-28-30 Massachusetts Edward H. Frekey

Nancy M. Girard Pembroke 10-12-40 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

May 28 Pembroke Lewis J. DiTommaso Durham 11-02-50 Massachusetts Irving S. Jones

Alicia M. Young Pembroke 04-29-63 New Hampshire Minister
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Date Place Names Residence Birthdate Birthplace Officiant

June 04 Epsom Thomas J. Pratt Pembroke 10-29-65 Rhode Island Edward H. Frekey

Donna S. Coutu Pembroke 12-10-64 Rhode Island Justice of the Peace

June 11 Concord Kalim Desir Pembroke 12-12-63 Haiti Wayne G. Berube

Stephanie A. McCarthy Pembroke 12-29-69 Massachusetts Ordained Minister

June 15 Hooksett Donald J. Strandell Pembroke 03-01-47 New Hampshire Barbara G. Mayhew
Rebecca A. Cutroni Pembroke 04-25-54 Massachusetts Justice of the Peace

June 25 Pembroke Walter G. Kenney Connecticut 11-09-62 Connecticut Rev. Peter W. Lovejoy

Debra L. Davis Pembroke 12-03-65 New Hampshire Clergyman

June 25 New Boston Michael A. Roosa Pembroke 11-27-64 Massachusetts Rev. Robert N. Woodland
Tamara C. Bose Pembroke 08-05-64 New York Presbyterian Minister

June 25 Pembroke Douglas P. Annis Massachusetts 08-16-50 New Hampshire Barbara G. Mayhew
Cindy A. Clark Massachusetts 07-13-66 Maine Justice of the Peace

June 25 Concord Hayward K. Gillies Pembroke 07-22-54 Washington Rev. Walter Larson

Jane E. Laramie Pembroke 07-31-55 New Hampshire Pastor

July 01 Dunbarton David E. Stuhr Pembroke 09-06-36 Indiana Emily B. Geoghegan
Sandra L. Bishop Dunbarton 12-11-45 New York Reverend

July 02 Gilford Kenneth B. Smith Pembroke 06-17-65 Massachusetts William A. Zedkhausen
Lindsay J. Holden Pembroke 11-29-64 Massachusetts Ordained Minister

July 02 Pembroke Clifford V. Bousquet Pembroke 09-17-65 Maine Marlyn R.P. Handers
Karen A. Booth Pembroke 10-15-67 Vermont Justice of the Peace

July 02 Pembroke Rene G. Boyer Washington 07-27-61 New Hampshire Harold W. Morcombe
Sandra K. Dalphond Washington 09-05-62 New Hampshire Pastor

July 02 Northwood Dean Edmunds Pembroke 09-22-39 New Hampshire Ruth C. Williamson
Nancy E. Bumford Pembroke 11-11-45 New Hampshire Clergywoman

July 03 Bartlett Daniel E. Chase Pembroke 01-08-51 New Hampshire Valorie Augusta
Wendalyn J. Christie Pembroke 11-21-62 Massachusetts Justice of the Peace

July 03 Penacook Richard P. Hunt Pembroke 11-12-53 California Rev. Barry Cass
Lillian D. Lemay Pembroke 06-30-65 New Hampshire Ordained Clergy

July 04 Concord David G. Rockwell Pembroke 12-04-56 Vermont Fred G. French, Jr.

Jacqueline G. Wiren Pembroke 11-05-46 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

July 13 Chichester Michael J. Hislop Pembroke 11-28-58 New Hampshire Edward H. Frekey

Louise I. Noel Allenstown 12-19-58 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

July 30 Concord Alan H. Tilton Pembroke 03-24-64 New Hampshire John B. Goff

Donna J. Cilley Pembroke 09-06-66 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

July 30 Deerfield Eric R. Fields Pembroke 09-11-64 New Hampshire Delisa Little

Michelle B. Couture Pembroke 09-08-64 New Hampshire Pastor

Aug. 19 Pembroke Robert R. Grondin Pembroke 06-05-46 New Hampshire John B. Goff
Lee A. Keniston Pembroke 12-09-59 Connecticut Justice of the Peace

Aug. 20 Concord Robert J. Barcomb Pembroke 06-30-65 Vermont Teresa Payne
Julie A. Merrill Pembroke 06-10-69 Connecticut Curate/Priest

Aug. 20 Franklin Steve M. LaRochelle Pembroke 05-28-69 New Hampshire Dawn Swartz
Cynthia M. Adams Manchester 03-08-70 New Hampshire Minister

Aug. 27 Allenstown Eddie H. Currier Allenstown 12-26-64 New Hampshire Rev. Eugene J. Pelletier

Diane M. LaBranche Pembroke 10-31-65 Maine Roman Catholic Priest

Aug. 27 Epsom Robert L. Hanright Pembroke 07-31-68 Massachusetts Sheila A. Turnblom
Tammy L. McQueeney Allenstown 03-23-71 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

Aug. 27 Manchester David S. Zona Pembroke 02-26-64 New Hampshire Nancy Grant
Kimberly M. Mascone Pembroke 09-23-63 Massachusetts Justice of the Peace

Aug. 27 Concord Duke G. Jones Pembroke 12-06-59 Pennsylvania Lafayette Pinckney
Elizabeth A. Thompson Pembroke 11-27-64 New Hampshire Reverend

Aug. 27 Sanbornton David E. Jenkins Pembroke 05-20-63 Vermont James W. Kelley

Beverly M. Bergeron Pembroke 05-26-67 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace
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Date Place Names Residence Birthdate Birthplace Officiant

Sept. 10 Pembroke James E. Plourde Pembroke 11-30-63 New Hampshire Janice W. Emonds
Jennifer S. Johns Pembroke 08-23-64 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

Sept. 10 Allenstown Alan B. Bailey Nashua 07-18-58 Massachusetts Rev. Eugene J. Pelletier

Virginia J. Manseau Pembroke 03-21-65 New Hampshire Roman Catholic Priest

Sept. 10 Manchester Alan D. Bean Pembroke 06-09-50 New Hampshire Beth I. Jenkins

Alison J.M. Graham Massachusetts 06-23-61 Massachusetts Associate Pastor

Sept. 10 Concord Arthur J. Nolin Pembroke 01-20-34 New Hampshire Jimmy J. Mihnisky
Sandra J. Wentworth Pembroke 09-10-39 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

Sept. 17 Pembroke Michael J. Danckert Georgia 03-05-60 Massachusetts Rev. Peter W. Lovejoy
Marjorie L. Bickford Georgia 11-28-56 New Hampshire Clergyman

Sept. 17 Deny Gerald B. Odom Pembroke 10-01-41 Louisiana Stephan J. Pauwels
Janet J. Siple Pembroke 08-02-53 Ohio Reverend

Sept. 24 Pembroke Angel M. Almestica, Jr. Pembroke 08-16-64 New York Irene A. LaBonte
Rosaura Santiago Pembroke 11-03-68 New York Justice of the Peace

Sept. 24 Pembroke Michael J. Almestica Pembroke 07-18-68 New York Irene A. LaBonte
Valerie J. Martinez Pembroke 01-14-70 New York Justice of the Peace

Sept 24 Chester James D. Terrill Pembroke 05-13-60 New Hampshire Loren Murray
Janice E. McDermott Pembroke 09-01-58 Vermont Reverend

Sept 24 Pembroke Ricky M. Morrissey Pembroke 06-16-63 Massachusetts Christine Averill

Linda I. Hinse Pembroke 03-30-63 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

Sept 26 Lyme Daniel S. Bragg Pembroke 02-13-66 New Hampshire Nancy E. Grandine
Donna A. Girard Pembroke 01-06-68 Connecticut Justice of the Peace

Oct. 01 Pembroke Douglas E. Bohman Georgia 02-13-61 Massachusetts Rev. Peter W. Lovejoy

Michele L. Joos South Carolina02-12-61 South Carolina Clergyman

Oct. 05 Pembroke Roland W. Thibeault, Jr. Concord 09-30-66 New Hampshire Shiela S. Turnblom
Rhonda M. Martin Pembroke 09-24-65 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

Oct. 06 Boscawen Jack E. Melton Pembroke 07-13-58 North Carolina Alfred L. Page
Susan G. Hoitt Penacook 12-10-54 Ner Jersey Reverend

Oct. 08 Concord Eric G. Falkenham Pembroke 06-24-60 Massachusetts Thomas E. Keenan
Amy J. Ireland Concord 01-16-66 New Hampshire R. C. Pastor

Oct. 08 Pembroke Maurice F. King Pembroke 12-28-59 New York Paula J. Reinhard

Kimberly A. Keating Pembroke 12-08-60 New Hampshire Justice of the Peace

Oct. 08 Epsom Richard H. Verville Pembroke 12-20-65 New Hampshire Rev. Lisa W. Stedman
Christy M. Ransom Epsom 09-29-69 New Jersey Ordained Minister

Oct. 15 Allenstown Christopher J. Girard Pembroke 08-05-66 New Hampshire Rev. Eugene J. Pelletier

Heidi A. Dupont Allenstown 05-19-67 New York Roman Catholic Priest

Oct. 15 Nashua Torrey R. Johnson Massachusetts 05-22-62 Massachusetts James S. Chaloner

Mary E. Pitman Pembroke 01-07-65 New Hampshire Minister

Oct. 20 Concord K. Jay Salamy Pembroke 07-20-56 New Hampshire Janet F. Devito

Lois E. Geiger Pembroke 07-16-55 Horida Justice of the Peace

Oct. 22 Concord Jeffrey L. Paquette Epsom 12-19-64 New Hampshire Robert E. Gorski

Linda L. Saucier Pembroke 12-22-67 New Hampshire Priest

Oct. 22 Epsom Brent Edmonds Pembroke 09-22-49 New Hampshire John F. Spring

Collene Mitchell Pembroke 08-10-67 Germany Pastor

Oct. 22 Manchester Marc A. Vanson Hooksett 06-28-55 New York Richard M. Babcock

Donna M. Kittredge Pembroke 06-13-57 New Hampshire Clergyman

Oct. 31 Allenstown Martin J. Schmitt Pembroke 11-01-58 Connecticut Rev. Eugene J. Pelletier

Katherine A. Andersen Pembroke 08-28-63 Nebraska Roman Catholic Priest

Nov. 11 Manchester Bruce M. Kinney Manchester 06-20-56 Maine Nancy Grant

Vicki-Diane O 'Toole Pembroke 04-08-62 England Justice of the Peace

Nov. 12 Pembroke James A. Peters Pembroke 09-10-46 Maine Rev. Richard R. Noyes
Judith A. Stewart Pembroke 05-27-46 New Hampshire Clergy
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Date Place Names Residence Birthdate Birthplace Officiant

Nov. 18 Pembroke

Nov. 22 Chichester

Nov. 24 Manchester

Nov. 25 Concord

Dec. 03 Concord

Dec. 12 Concord

Dec. 17 Deny

Dec. 17 Pembroke

Dec. 30 Concord

Dec. 31 Pembroke

William L. Allaire

Dorothy E. Schindler

Paul D. DeGange
Patricia L. Melycher

Kevin L. Harriman
Sandrina L. Goff

James S. Viall

Jeanne M. Dyer

David N. Urton
Diane L. Gartner

Lionel R. Caron
Constance L. Martel

Clark H. Leyland
Cheryl A. Coombs
Raymond J. Nolin, Jr.

Nancy A. McPherson

Richard A. Clark, Jr.

Linda J. Paquette

Jeffrey M. Watson
Annette C. Duclos

Pembroke
Pembroke

Pembroke
California

Pembroke
Pembroke

Pembroke
Pembroke

Pembroke
Concord

Pembroke
Pembroke

Pembroke
Deny
Pembroke
Pembroke

Pembroke
Epsom
Pembroke
Pembroke

12-18-52

08-29-51

11-25-60

10-17-62

08-16-59

05-22-67

05-23-56

08-26-57

11-24-61

06-21-60

04-18-41

07-31-41

07-27-67

12-12-66

04-26-42

04-10-56

12-16-65

10-04-66

07-15-57

03-26-58

New Hampshire
Massachusetts

Connecticut

California

Maine
New Hampshire

Massachusetts

Rhode Island

New Hampshire
New Jersey

Maine
New Hampshire

New Hampshire
New Hampshire

New Hampshire
New Hampshire

New Hampshire
New Hampshire

Rhode Island

Pennsylvania

Russel E. Ayer
Justice of the Peace

Edward H. Frekey

Justice of the Peace

John B. Goff

Justice of the Peace

Aime A. Boisselle

Roman Catholic Priest

Roger W. Davis

Associate Pastor

James M. Cassidy

Justice of the Peace

John H. Lamprey
Justice of the Peace

James S. Spence
Justice of the Peace

Rev. James P. Watson
Pastor

Wiliam E. Boc
Justice of the Peace
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Pembroke Births—1988
Date Place Name of Child Sex Father Mother

M Fern Lessard Jr. Renee H. Evans

M Joseph R. McGovern Rebecca Muse

M Matthew A. Chellar Shanti Joseph

M Edward R. Duguay Alice S. Maynard

F David C. Daniels Patricia A. Gilbert

F Kevin W. Hamilton Cindy L. Collins

M Buel W. Knott Cindy A. Clark

F Donald A. Letendre, Jr. Cheryl A. Partridge

F Mark J. Colling Bethany A. Winterle

F Robert J. Barcomb Julie A. Merrill

M Joseph A. Portinari II Ilene Quintana

F Gregory M. Bailey Barbara Calder

M Erik P. Hodges Kathryn G. MacGregor

F Ronald A. Webber Theresa M. Day

F Alan K. Topliff Brenda M. Spaulding

F Stepen T. Destefano Ellen J. Zlomek

F Edward P. Mitchell Judith Russell

F Myron C. Scofield Suzanne M. Cahill

M Martin Joseph Torre Barbara J. Farrell

F Angel M. Almestica Rosaura Santiago

F Paul D. Champagne Rosaline H. Simmons

F James D. Laverdiere Elaine M. Richard

M David M. Hartshorn Andrea D. Noga

M Joseph J. Doucet Lynn M. Laverdiere

F Bruce T. Diamond Kimberly Randall

F James A. Bernier Suzanne C. Vautour

M Levi N. Parry Dorothy J. Nault

F Edward S. Casa Jean E. Cook

M Daniel J. Messier Rosemary A. Serpa

F Richard A. Chandler Jamie M. Labonte

F Frederick M. O'Brien Cynthia E. Reed

F Leigh R. Welcome Teresa M. Brown

M Randy J. Duford Judith Fox

M Laurence W. Getman Susan Scott

F Mark P. Noel Deborah M. Nolin

F Paul Alfred Cremeno Jane D. Bryant

M John W. Kane Kim D. Cumings

M Robert A. Lavalley Ann T. Auger

M Paul F. Finnegan Sheila D. Renaud

F Robert W. Plourde Cynthia M. Vale

M James E. Bean Christina L. Jardine

M Robert G. Levasseur Judith N. Arseneault

F Thomas H. Doheny Lynn M. Migneault

Jan. 2

Jan. 6

Jan. 7

Jan. 8

Jan. 9

Jan. 9

Jan. 14

Jan. 30

Feb. 4

Feb. 9

Feb. 9

Feb. 10

Feb. 10

Feb. 10

Feb. 11

Feb. 23

Feb. 25

Feb. 26

Mar. 05

Mar. 8

Mar. 9

Mar. 10

Mar. 11

Mar. 12

Mar. 26

Apr. 2

Apr. 4

Apr. 6

Apr. 7

Apr. 18

May 5

May 14

May 19

May 20

May 24

May 29

June 1

June 1

June 3

June 7

June 9

June 10

June 15

Concord

Concord

Hanover

Concord

Concord

Deny

Manchester

Concord

Concord

Manchester

Concord

Concord

Concord

Maiden, MA
Concord

Manchester

Concord

Concord

Manchester

Manchester

Concord

Manchester

Concord

Manchester

Concord

Manchester

Concord

Concord

Manchester

Concord

Manchester

Concord

Manchester

Concord

Concord

Manchester

Manchester

Concord

Concord

Manchester

Manchester

Manchester

Manchester

Partick Allen Lessard

Joseph Conor McGovern

Sean Niven Chellar

Brian Keith Duguay

Allyson Elizabeth Daniels

Kelly Elizabeth Hamilton

Hayden Wayne Knott

Christine Lee Letendre

Laura Eileen Colling

Moriah Gabrielle Barcomb

Joseph Allen Portinari III

Whitney Laura Bailey

Harper Cameron Hodges

Allison Patricia Webber

Kathryn Irene Topliff

Allison Kate Destefano

Erica Leigh Mitchell

Samantha Kate Scofield

Joseph Martin Torre

Eva Marie Almestica

Chelsey Anne Champagne

Christine Elsie Laverdiere

David Ryan Hartshorn

Christopher Kevin Doucet

Krista Marie Diamond

Ashlee Marie Bernier

Krystopher Tyler Parry

Danielle Alexandra Casa

Daniel Victor Messier

Ashley Lynne Chandler

Shannon Rebecca O'Brien

Katherine Leigh Welcome

Daniel Joseph Duford

David James Getman

Dana Marie Noel

Sara Jane Cremeno

Patrick Cumings Kane

Timothy Michael Lavalley

Daniel Babson Finnegan

Elizabeth Angell Plourde

Jaymes Dale Bean

Benjamin Robert Levasseur

Alison Eileen Doheny
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Date Place Name of Child Sex Father Mother

June 20 Concord Laurel Christine Kilmain F Stephen J. Kilmain Nancy McLeavey

June 20 Concord Brandon Tyler Martel M Adrien E. Martel Evelyn I. Maheu

June 22 Manchester Laura Marie Campbell F Kevin R. Campbell Debra M. Berube

June 23 Concord Patrick James Allen M Gean M. Allen Chantal Rousseau

June 28 Concord Matthew Anthony Spadafora M Peter J. Spadafora Melanie Demartino

Julyl Concord Jade Hellings F Richard S. Hellings Rena Vezina

July 2 Concord Jacob Marc Parris M Mark R. Parris Tina R. Currier

July 4 Concord Ryan Kenneth Burke M Troy R. Burke Buffi A. Dudley

July 4 Manchester Nicole Jeanne Marshall F David J. Marshall Cynthia K. Proulx

July 6 Manchester Derek Michael Olivier M Michael R. Lamper Kelly A. Olivier

July 7 Concord Michelle Marie Kilens F George L. Kilens Joyce M. Wendell

July 7 Concord Jennifer Margaret Sandelli F James M. Sandelli Janet M. Corigliano

July 10 Manchester Larry Arthur Champagne Jr. M Larry A. Champagne Tammy R. Verville

July 12 Concord Cody Michael Gregory Goff M Rolfe A. Goff Anne L. Severance

July 13 Manchester John Charles Broek M Jonathan R. Broek Lacinda D. Simmons

July 14 Manchester Stephanie Joy Noel M Marc J. Noel Karen L. Feldmann

July 16 Manchester Hayley Amber Ricard F Robert A. Ricard Jewel A. Young

July 17 Concord Jonathan Francis Mehegan M Peter L. Mehegan Eva M. Kilhed

July 19 Concord Craig Paul Lavin M Leo A. Lavin III Susan J. Grandmaison

July 20 Concord Caleb Marc Devost M David M. Devost Leah L. Ener

July 25 Manchester Charissa Rae Williams F Kenneth B. Williams Rayline Sargent

July 27 Manchester Jonathan Telgener M Richard J. Telgener Johanne Roy

July 28 Concord Zachary Taylor Brackett M Glenn Allen Brackett Shirley J. Hinksmon

July 28 Concord Mallory Leigh Scott F Fred J. Scott Nancy A. Buchanan

July 29 Concord Brady Andrew Carroll M Walter W. Carroll Susan M. Sullivan

Aug. 26 Concord Christopher Mathew Winn M Mark C. Winn Cherry L. Spicer

Sept. 3 Concord Tiffany Ann Hutchins F Peter J. Hutchins Kristine I. Simoneau

Sept. 6 Pembroke Amber Lynn Bowker F Richard N. Bowker Sandra L. Hanks

Sept. 10 Concord Robert Winston Clark M Kevin R. Clark Anita M. Baxter

Sept. 14 Concord Graham Patrick Ward M Jay C. Ward Carol Dralle

Sept. 15 Concord Jacob Copeland Eaton M Stacy J. Eaton Patricia A. Brooks

Sept. 23 Manchester Laura Elizabeth Hebsch F Steve E. Hebsch Patricia K. Keyes

Sept. 25 Concord Michael Paul Beauchesne M Paul A. Beauchesne Jr. Kelley S. Riley

Oct. 9 Manchester Justine Liana Boudette F Daniel G. Boudette Gisele C. St. Germain

Oct. 11 Manchester Krystyna Lynn Anderson F Paul A. Anderson Lorry L. Malo

Oct. 22 Manchester Joshua Michael Joyce M Mark A. Joyce Leanne M. Thompson

Nov. 9 Concord Emily Lynn Parker F James H. Parker Bette O. Isakson

Nov. 17 Concord Mathew Micheal Gagnon M Anthony M. Gagnon Marie R. Baum
Nov. 26 Manchester Michelle Jeanne Stanyan F William B. Stanyan Debra J. Riley

Dec. 6 Concord Alexandra Bussman Heiser F George S. Heiser Anne M. Bussman

Dec. 16 Concord Shelby Evengeline Petruzzi F Glenn J. Petruzzi Pamela A. Smith

Dec. 17 Manchester Deric Gary Fields M Eric R. Fields Michelle Couture

Dec. 19 Concord Travis Zene Gergen M Christopher Z. Gergen Le Ann Galbraith
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Pembroke Deaths 1988

Birth

Date Place Name Age Sex place Occupation Father Mother

Jan. 12 Manchester Paul L. Hebert 42 M NH Machinist Leo J. Hebert Rachel Neveu

Feb. 09 Concord Perry L. Eaton 67 M NH Police Chief Perry L. Eaton Mabel E. Caverly

Feb. 17 Concord Jesse D. Blackstone 78 M MA Bird Carver Arthur M. Blackstone Jessie Dill

Feb. 23 Pembroke Madeleine A. Rivard 84 F NH Weaver Oliva Rivard Vitaline Levesque

Mar. 06 Manchester Nicole K. Kumfer 15 F MI Student George Kumfer Tonia Gustafson

Mar. 21 Concord Shirley A. Ryan 58 F MA Self-employed Carl E. Sylven Elna C. Larson

Mar.24 Hanover Richard Hunt 23% hrs. M NH None Richard P. Hunt Lillian Lemay

Mar. 27 Pembroke Mary T. LaDuke 87 F MA Laundry Adelbert Longley Jennie Miette

Apr. 05 Concord George A. Marble 63 M MA Welder George A. Marble Doris Shores

Apr. 23 Manchester William F. Washburn 45 M MA Construction William F. Washburn, Sr. Rita (unknown)

Apr. 25 Manchester Robert E. Plourde 56 M NH Public Accountant Romeo Plourde Theresa Riopel

May 08 Manchester Keith D. Gunther 77 M IL Cabinet Worker Delmar Gunther Lula Mattox

May 09 Manchester Adrien J. Houle 78 M NH Painter Rudolph Houle Louisa Dupont

May 26 Manchester Walter H. Hurd 84 M Eng. Supervisor Henry Hurd Hattie Pitts

Jun. 05 Nashua Charles S. Fowler 73 M NH Research Librarian George W. Fowler Grace M. Smith

Jun. 15 Manchester Grady C. Alexander 56 M OK Press Man Samuel Alexander Effie Hendricks

Jun. 15 Manchester Anne M. Batchelder 75 F NH Sales Person Wallace Chroniak Christine Bednarcyzk

Jun. 15 Concord Kenneth N. Girardin 65 M MA Assembler Napoleon Girardin Beatrice Ansty

Jun. 21 Concord Henry W. Lamontagne 74 M NH Owner/Retail Store Francois Lamontagne Adele Roy

Aug. 02 Pembroke Marion B. Sanderson 84 F NH Homemaker Maurice Blaisdell Nettie Kidder

Aug. 03 Pembroke Andrew N. Vezina 40 M NH Card Tender Rene Veniza, Sr. Jeanne Malo

Aug. 16 Manchester Charles H. Evans 63 M MA Supervisor Charles H. Evans, Sr. Helen Becker

Aug. 19 Concord Francis McGee 80 M MA Principal Thomas J. McGee Elizabeth Higgins

Aug. 23 Pembroke Lorraine E. Cotting 43 F NH Winder Arthur T. Brasley Annette C. Boisvert

Aug. 25 Manchester Gardner W. Mills 71 M NH Catalog Store Owner Oscar H. Mills Celinda Watts

Aug. 27 Concord Andrew T. Massie 02 M MA None James A. Massie Denine M. Vaillancourt

Sept. 06 Pembroke Robert C. Holbrook 59 M NH Public Accountant Charles Holbrook Mary Wood

Nov. 06 Concord Gabriel V. Ryan 73 M Ire. Medical Doctor Gabriel V. Ryan Theresa (Nee Brennan) Ryan

Nov. 24 Concord Aime G. Brisbois 76 M NH Weaver/Loom Fixer Joseph Brisbois Marie Michaud

Nov. 27 Epsom Horence Honor 94 F NH Housewife James T. Colby Annie M. Smith

Nov. 30 Concord Helen Hook 87 F Can. Clerk Christian Jensen Marie Sorensen

Dec. 04 Manchester Joseph E. Bonenfant 83 M NH Painter Achille Bonenfant Aime Dube

Dec. 27 Concord Kent W. Harrington 60 M ME Research Engineer Oliver A. Harrington Rose A. Bell
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